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We Do It Right. Easier said than done, our commitment is a serious

undertaking that carries a lot of weight.

This visionary principle forms the core of everything we do, from
market timing, location choice, architectural design to project
operation and talent development. The design of this year's annual
report highlights a number of precision measurement instruments:
professional tools relied upon for centuries to get the job done right,
to the most exacting criteria. At Hang Lung, we believe that measuring
up to our own meticulous standard is the best way to ensure
We Do It Right.

Our pledge of excellence is transforming the Group into the most
admired and leading national commercial property developer running

multi-city operations.
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Hang Lung Properties Limited

Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 101) is the property arm of Hang Lung
Group Limited (stock code: 10).

We are a top-tier property developer in Hong Kong and on the Mainland with a
recognized commitment to quality.

We are a truly diversified property development company with a varied portfolio
of commercial, office, residential, serviced apartment, industrial/office and car park
properties. Our primary focus is to acquire the best sites in the cities with growth
potential and employ only the top architectural firms to achieve the highest design
quality and develop the best properties.

In Hong Kong and on the Mainland, our corporate strategy is to constantly review
and, where necessary, upgrade our tenant mix while regularly refurbishing our
existing developments so as to achieve a maximum return on our investments. We
also emphasize value-added services and incentives, which add to the appeal and
marketability of our properties.

Our long-term vision is to expand on the Mainland while continuing to invest in our
home market of Hong Kong. As our business will certainly continue to grow with
soaring perspectives, we are set to develop into the most admired and leading
national commercial property developer.
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%145 Results
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Year ended Six months ended
December 31, December 31,
s s 2012 2011
WEBBETHE in HK$ million (i)
(Br5=HZEHA) (unless otherwise stated) (Note 1)
- Turnover
YMEHRE Property leasing
BB Hong Kong 3,016 1,483
R A, Mainland China 3,082 1,393
YIEEEE Property sales 1,274 193
EERmES Total turnover 7,372 3,069
B ERE AL 4 F) Net profit attributable to shareholders 8,395 2,516
A Dividends 3,313 1,610
BHRER Per share data
EF Earnings $1.88 $0.56
f% 8 Dividends
AR HA Interim $0.17 N/A
R HR M2 Final Nete 2 $0.57 $0.36
st Total $0.74 $0.36
AR R RS Shareholders’ equity $26.3 $24.9
BEFE Net assets $27.7 $26.2
BRERERE Shareholders’ equity 117,928 111,462
k2 EEE Payout ratio 39% 64%
B fFER = Gearing ratio o3 0% 0%
EHARZLE Underlying Results
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IEFE 17N EA
Year ended Six months ended
December 31, December 31,
e e s 2012 2011
WEBBHETHE in HK$ million (i)
(BREBEFEH) (unless otherwise stated) (Note 1)
BRERIE L B AL s Underlying net profit attributable to
shareholders N4 6,178 1,650
BRAR MW Earnings per share o5 $1.38 $0.37
iR B EL 3R WS Payout ratio N 54% 97%
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1. In 2011, the Group changed its financial year end date from June 30 to December 31.
As a result, the Group had a six-month financial period in previous year from July 1,
2011 to December 31, 2011.

2. The $0.36 represented final dividend per share for the six-month financial period from July
1, 2011 to December 31, 2011.

3. Gearing ratio represents net debt over equity plus net debt. Net debt represents bank
loans and other borrowings and finance lease obligations, less cash and deposits with
banks. Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests.

4. To facilitate better understanding of the Group’s operational results, the underlying
net profit attributable to shareholders is presented by excluding the effect of adopting
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40, Investment Property which requires changes in
fair value of investment properties and investment properties under development, net of
related deferred tax and non-controlling interests to be accounted for in profit or loss.

5. The relevant calculations are based on the underlying net profit attributable to
shareholders.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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SUSTAINABLE RENTAL TURNOVER AND PROFIT GROWTH
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STRONG FINANCIAL CAPABILITY TO CAPTURE EXPANSION OPPORTUNITIES
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A Financial years ended June 30

6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end

date from June 30 to December 31

For the 12-month period from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012

Interest cover represents operating profit before changes in fair value of investment
properties and investment properties under development and interest income divided

by net interest expenses before interest capitalization.
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The ruler is a measurement
tool calibrated for fine and
exact measurements. At Hang
Lung, we believe that living up
to our own stringent internal
benchmarks  ensures  the
utmost quality in all facets of
our operations.
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By holding ourselves to the highest
standards of excellence in every aspect o
our business, we strive to deliver fi

quality and create unparalle
our stakeholde
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3 B o plot routes Our principles guide our long-term

and identify directions since

ancient times. Hang Lung's strategic planning, management decisions

internal  compass  guides and daily operations - making sure we
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<20 B croedy an choose the best course for our business.
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path to create long-term value
for our stakeholders.
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Ronnie C. Chan

Chairman
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

As shareholders know, in 2011 we changed our fiscal year end to
coincide with calendar year end. For good corporate governance and
a more meaningful comparison of performance between 2011 and
2012, we requested KPMG to audit historic results covering the twelve
months of 2011. Comparing the two calendar years, turnover increased
29% to HK$7,372 million, net profit attributable to shareholders leaped
72% to HK$8,395 million, and earnings per share similarly to HK$1.88.

When excluding all effects of revaluation gain, the underlying net profit
attributable to shareholders rose 98% to HK$6,178 million. Underlying
earnings per share jumped 97% to HK$1.38.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.57 per share. If
approved by shareholders, total dividends per share for the year
ended December 31, 2012 will be HK$0.74. For the six-month period
from July 1 to December 31, 2011, we paid HK$0.36 per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

From the perspective of our business, global economic conditions have
not changed substantially in the past six months. Europe remains in the
doldrums and America’s recovery, while progressing, is still somewhat
tenuous. China’s growth rate has moderated from the high 9-10% per
annum and it is difficult to predict if and when it will pick up.

11
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Nevertheless we took advantage of opportunities to part with several
mature, non-core investment properties in Hong Kong. Together with
the sales of completed apartments and increase in rental income, we
produced turnover and net profit attributable to shareholders which were
much higher than those of a year ago.

None of these should be surprising to our shareholders, as we
have for some time been waiting for an auspicious moment to sell.
Moreover, | had repeatedly pointed out that semi-annual revaluations
of our rental portfolio were rather conservative. Latest transactions
have proven those words correct — we achieved a surplus of sales
proceeds over valuation of 74%. Buildings sold accounted for about
11% of our Hong Kong rents. These efforts have had the effect of
enhancing the average quality of our investment portfolio.

In the coming year, such activities will slow down considerably if
not altogether. We have all intentions to keep the better investment
properties in our fold in the long haul.

Sales of 108 apartments of The Long Beach achieved a profit margin
of 83% while that of 9 units of The HarbourSide was 73%. Both are
historic highs. As mentioned before, we are more than happy to sell
a lot more flats at similar price levels. The market however will have
to cooperate.

Mainland China’s retail business remained weak. As the vyear
progressed, it had gotten worse. Deceleration in sales growth of
luxury goods in which we are strong far exceeded that of general
consumer products.

Tough conditions notwithstanding, there are areas for optimism.
For example, retail sales at Grand Gateway 66 increased due to the
introduction of higher price point brands. For the first six months of
2012, rents at the Plaza 66 shopping center barely eked out a 2%
rise. However, the full-year number was up 4% implying that rental
growth for the second half was about 6%. The reopening of three
major tenants after shop refurbishment and enlargement was just one
reason. The fact that many top global fashion brands have expanded
their operations further confirms the vibrancy of that mall.

13
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Total retail rents received on the Mainland rose by 24%. Taking out
the two newer properties with less than two full years of operations,
the increase was 8%. When offices were added in, the year-on-year
growth in overall rental turnover was 18%.

In all projects and in almost all product types, rental margins have
improved. The most marked change came in Shenyang Palace 66 which
more than doubled from 12% to 27%, and in Jinan Parc 66 from 34%
to 51%. Being newer facilities, such an outcome is to be expected, and
numbers will likely get even better.

With the exception of Palace 66, occupancy everywhere approached
100%. In this first mall of ours outside Shanghai, surrounding road
works stopped only for a short period at the beginning of the year,
but digging soon resumed and had continued for the rest of the year.
We took advantage of this slow period to revamp tenant mix as | had
previously written. The process is almost complete and we should
achieve 95-96% occupancy later this year. Like all our other properties,
unit rents have been rising.

In terms of unleveraged gross rental yield on investment cost, the two
Shanghai properties have reached approximately 40%. Shenyang
Palace 66, after aimost 2.5 years of operations, stayed at 5%, a level
achieved in the first year of our two Shanghai properties over a decade
ago. The primary reason for the underperformance is no doubt the
aforementioned road works which has been ongoing for the better part
of the past two years.

The picture in our other new facilities was far more positive. Sixteen
months after inauguration, Jinan Parc 66 has achieved an unleveraged
gross rental yield of 8%. This is slightly ahead of our corresponding
experience in Shanghai. Shenyang Forum 66 was even more
encouraging. Barely three months old, the projected full year is about
10%. In Shanghai, only in the fourth year did we see this figure!

15
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In Hong Kong, all segments in our investment portfolio performed
satisfactorily. Retail did the best where rental turnover advanced by
11%, while those for offices rose by 7% and for other miscellaneous
buildings 2%. On the surface, total rents received grew only 3%, but
comparing like with like by taking out discontinued properties, rent
actually increased by 9%. With the exception of serviced apartments,
all space is basically fully let.

Putting Mainland and Hong Kong together, we collected 10% more
rent while operating profit advanced by 11%. Mainland now accounts
for 50.5% of total rental turnover and 48.4% of operating rental profits.
The corresponding Hong Kong numbers were thus 49.5% and 51.6%.

In the past year, we saw the departure of two executive directors. We
must always do the right thing as enshrined in the tagline adopted early
last year. | firmly believe that the Company is today a better and stronger
one. The two vacancies were immediately filled by former deputies to
the two positions whom we have groomed for some time. Needless to
say, we will continue to build out our senior management team.

STRATEGIC CONSIDERATIONS

There is a common misunderstanding regarding Mainland China’s
shopping center business which warrants some discussion. It is
often said that competition is extremely keen and the increasingly
crowded market will be troublesome. Even the most sophisticated
institutional investors succumb to this mantra which is fundamentally
flawed. It shows a lack of understanding of the market as well as
industry dynamics.

Consider the fact that perhaps 95% of all shopping centers of
reasonable size are strata-titted. Mainly due to financial weakness,
almost all developers must cut up a mall into “bite-size” shops and
sell them off piecemeal, sometimes before building completion.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Management of such facilities becomes difficult and quality of the
facility inevitably deteriorates. No one can control what goods will be
sold in the neighbor’s space and degeneration happens almost the
day the development opens. This is not to mention the fact that more
often than not, the project is poorly designed, hastily constructed and
in mediocre locations.

To regard such properties as competitors of well-designed shopping
centers in top locations with a single owner is frankly ridiculous. While
new, the former may for a period affect the pricing power of proper
malls, but the effect will not and cannot last.

In the whole Mainland market, there are probably not more than
half a dozen players who have the financial wherewithal to not
“‘condominiumize” the malls. The majority of them are from Hong
Kong, and those from the Mainland are understandably all state-owned
enterprises. Frankly, hardly any non-government linked developer has
had the time to build up sufficient financial strength, not to mention
the necessary experience, to become proper commercial developers.
And given the enormity of the Mainland market, what are half a
dozen developers?! This was why in the past few years, we had only
encountered one or two competitors when bidding for sites.

Moreover, besides the lack of expertise in designing retail complexes
on the part of most Mainland developers, there is also the propensity to
construct all too hastily. City officials as sellers of the land often want to
see buildings completed in a very short period of time. The existence of
numerous skyscrapers and humongous malls in their cities somehow
becomes a proof of modernity and hence the officials’ competency,
which may in turn lead to their future career promotions.

Recognizing this mindset of the government, developers gladly oblige
and promise to open malls in say 18 months from the time of land
acquisitions. As anyone experienced in the design process knows, for
large and otherwise complicated projects, that time period is barely
sufficient to arrive at a reasonably optimal design, let alone to complete

17
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construction! No wonder the end products are suboptimal if not
outright horrendous. Even if such properties are not strata-titled, they
can hardly be considered as competitors.

There is also a general misunderstanding of industry dynamics. Malls
are not commodities which are fungible; they are highly differentiated
assets. Not only is the market highly tiered or segmented — luxury
centers with the likes of Chanel and Louis Vuitton do not compete with
mass facilities with say a Walmart — it is also location specific. Once
a well situated, well designed and well constructed shopping center
is built and succeeds in attracting the right clientele, it tends to retain
customers. Loyalty is obviously not as strong as seen in high fashion
brands but a good measure of it does exist.

In other words, once a shopping center is successfully established, it
will not be easy for newcomers to dislodge it. That of course assumes
that the leader is vigilant and continuously upgrades and changes
according to the latest consumer trends. Such is our challenge in
Shanghai and soon also elsewhere.

As | have written several years ago, the result of all that is the bifurcation
of market participants — there will be clear winners and losers. On the
Mainland, there will be far more of the latter than the former. We have
seen it happen in first tier metropolises like Shanghai, and the same
is emerging in tier-two cities. Our goal for each and every property of
ours is to be among the very few winners in each city —in fact to be the
best — for such will take the lion’s share of consumer dollars. Higher unit
rents will then follow.

Given the above, the conclusion can only be that the market for
commercial real estate in Mainland China is wide open. It is far from
being saturated.

A second issue that | would like to address relates to our relationship with
Chinese government officials. Recently a few institutional investors have
asked me about it and here is our position on this important aspect of
doing business on the Mainland.
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It is said that the now globally famous Chinese phrase “Guanxi” or
relationship is paramount to business success on the Mainland. There
is certain truth to it, but | submit that the same is true for anyone wanting
to do business in Brooklyn or the Bronx in New York City, in Chicago or
almost anywhere else. But since it is probably correct that corruption
is more prevalent in developing China than in the developed West, so
much the more we have to use “Guanxi” cautiously and judiciously.

QOur basic premise everywhere is that unless there is an actual
legitimate need, we do not approach government officials. This is true
for us in Hong Kong and especially true on the Mainland. We do not
unnecessarily befriend local leaders or those in Beijing. We never give
gifts except inexpensive ones. One example is that we designed a
chess board with chess pieces bearing either the Chinese character
for “Hang” or “Lung” — both being auspicious words in that language.
Made locally in China, the value is not much more than a few hundred
Hong Kong dollars. Nor do we entertain officials at expensive places;
we always do what is proper and reasonable. We do not only abhor evil
but also avoid the appearance of evil.

Fortunately, being a sizable company of repute, doors that we need
to open are always open to us. In the past 20 years on the Mainland,
we have never once failed to reach a city or provincial official whom we
need to reach. Having established our reputation of being a straight
shooter, corrupt officials probably know better than to ask us for favors.

One interesting case happened about 20 years ago when | was asked
to approach a senior government official who supposedly could help
us in a land transaction. The one meeting so arranged did not leave me
with a comfortable feeling. That, together with other reasons, caused
us to give up that excellent city. Later the person | met was arrested
and imprisoned for corruption, so my instinct was correct. We have
not been successful there ever since, but at no time would we yield on
ethical principles just for a good deal. That to us is not a good deal at
all for it will leave us vulnerable and, conscience-wise, compromised.
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Our standard of ethics goes beyond mere avoidance of corruption. At
times Chinese officials would ask businessmen like us to sign MOU
(memorandum of understanding) for transactions which they have no
intention to proceed forward. Such signed documents are only meant
to make those government leaders look good before their superiors.
We always refuse to sign unless we have genuine interest in the actual
project. It is not so much because we do not like the risk in case the
government changes its mind and try to consummate the deal, but
because of the inherent hypocrisy. As a result, we have probably lost
a few friends but frankly those “friends” are not the kind we want.
In one particular case, | might have been personally ostracized by
certain leaders but | am willing to pay the price to maintain a high
standard of ethics.

| trust that my shareholders are on my side on this point. If not, please
sell Hang Lung shares, for we will not change.

That said, neither are we foolish. Through developing iconic projects such
as the two in Shanghai and through a number of meaningful and even
unique community services on the Mainland, we are known to many top
leaders of the country and of the provinces. All these have earned us the
respect of local officials and have opened many doors for us.

What we practice on the Mainland is in principle no different from what
we have always done in Hong Kong. For example, we must be one of
the very few companies if not the only one in our industry which have
a stated policy of not hiring former senior government officials. We do
not object to others doing this as long as the process is legal and
transparent. But for us, it is simply in our Company genes to uphold a
higher standard.

For many years | have believed that we have one of the best corporate
governance in the industry. For example, it is hard to find a company
that has independent non-executive directors which are as active and
as independent as Hang Lung’s. They probably exercise more power
than most if not all their peers. Few firms are as transparent as we
are not only in terms of financial disclosures but also our strategy and
management thinking. This is why | personally pen all chairman’s letters
to shareholders, most of which of the past decade are far longer than
this present writing.
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Yet we are deeply aware of our need to improve further. As
management transits from strategy-focused to operationally-intensive,
challenges abound. Working on the Mainland, especially for the lower
echelon of the Company, is fraught with pitfalls. We need to strengthen
our systems and build an even stronger culture of ethics at all levels
of the organization. That we have begun and will continue. We will
always strive to live up to the tagline adopted by management early
last year and which | communicated to shareholders six months ago,
namely “We Do It Right!”. We consider this as a strategically significant
competitive advantage which must be further enhanced.

PROSPECTS

Chinese government statistics show that annual growth in retail sales
of consumer goods has slowed to 14.3% in 2012. The year before, it
was 17.1%. The second half of last year saw further deterioration. A
better approximation to our mall business however is the luxury sector.
According to a December 2012 report by a reputable international
consulting firm, growth has decelerated from 30% a year ago to an
estimated 7% for 2012. The picture seems clear: reversal of the slow
down has yet to happen.

Nevertheless, there are two economic phenomena which cause one
to wonder if the worst might be behind us. First, the stock market,
a leading indicator for the economy, has been rising in the past few
months, after languishing for quite a long time. Secondly, residential
prices and transaction volume which went nowhere for almost a year
have exploded during the last quarter of 2012. The wealth effect
created therefrom may help reverse the slowing retail sales. Moreover,
one should be reminded that things can move very fast in China. Once
sentiment changes, the speed may surprise many.

With the late November ground breaking of Kunming Spring City
66, all seven projects with land acquired since 2005 are now under
construction or are already completed. Total cost is estimated to be
approximately HK$70 billion, of which HK$30 bilion have already
been spent. The outstanding amount of HK$40 billion will likely be
expensed over the next decade or so. In Hong Kong, as we sell off the
remaining completed apartments valued today at over HK$25 billion,
and having already parted with certain non-core assets, cash inflow will
cover a good portion of the expected capital expenditures, leaving the
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Company still in a comfortable financial position. This means we can
take on further projects whether they are on the Mainland or in Hong
Kong as market conditions allow. As always, we will be patient and wait
for an auspicious time to purchase. Nevertheless we should not try too
hard to time the entry point, for no one is so smart as to know when
the market will bottom.

About a decade ago | made a conscientious decision to articulate
through this letter to shareholders our strategies and the thinking that
led to them. The worry then was that others would imitate us, thus
negating any competitive edge that we might have built. The advantage
for writing however was that only by doing so would our share price
have a chance of being properly reflected. At that time, our counter had
had perhaps three decades of underperformance. Even all the correct
decisions made in the 1990s went unnoticed.

Eventually what convinced us to open up was our assessment that
even if we let the world know our strategy, it would not be easy for our
competitors in the near future to gain the expertise needed. By the time
they do — and if they do — we would have amassed one of the best land
banks in economically vibrant cities that would assure us continued
success. Once we have secured the best located plots, we will have
acquired a commanding competitive advantage. After all, given financial
constraints we can only play in a limited number of municipalities,
and opportunities on the Mainland far exceed the resources of any
company. There is plenty of room for many developers, and we should
not run into each other too much.

Those decisions of ours led me to write some of the longest chairman’s
letters | have known, the record being in 2009/2010 with over 11,000
words. Each year, | covered one or more critical aspects of the Company
that were not only pertinent at the time but would also affect our long
term health. For management, it was a useful exercise because putting
thoughts on paper forced us to think through market conditions and our
strategic response. Of course we recognize that quality of information
cannot be measured only by the length of writing. Nevertheless, we are
gratified that many shareholders have expressed their appreciation for
the clarity of thoughts, and our share price has had an almost ten-year
run of out-performance compared to our peers. We turned from being
ignored to a counter which is — allow me to say — respected.
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As to the competitive landscape, a few Mainland players in commercial
real estate have in the past decade improved somewhat, although
in our assessment we still hold a considerable lead. Naturally what
is of actual significance to us are only the cities in which we have
developments. Fortunately, there we were able to purchase some of
the best located land. As long as we build out those projects to our
highest standards and provided that the Mainland market holds up,
our future should be bright.

As mentioned previously, now the Company has entered a new phase
of progress. For the coming years, while continuing to hunt for more
land, we will increasingly concentrate on operations. As such, there will
be less need to pen lengthy pieces to shareholders although | will not
hesitate to revert to my old habit when necessary.

In mid 2009, | wrote that the 2010s should herald Hang Lung’s golden
era. We still hold strongly to that view. The reason is that all our
efforts on the Mainland since 2005 are beginning to bear fruit. Years
of land acquisitions and construction have paved way for world class
commercial complexes to be erected and rented. As projects will be
progressively opened over the years and it usually takes one to two
rental cycles to stabilize a new facility especially a mall, the golden
era will dawn upon us gradually over this decade. In other words, full
harvest is ahead.

There is no denying that we are beginning to taste the fruits of our
efforts. New developments are being successfully completed and
overall rents have been rising. Rental margin has improved and rental
yield is coming through. Better yet, much more can be expected. As
long as we hold our course steady and diligently execute, we shall have
a bountiful harvest.

In the more immediate term, our investment income from Hong Kong
should perform satisfactorily. Rental growth rate should approximate
that of the past year which is quite acceptable. On the Mainland, we
are hopeful that retail sales will pick up and rents from all our facilities
will rise somewhat. Operational efficiencies for the newer malls are
anticipated to be further enhanced thus strengthening the bottom line.
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This September we should see the inauguration of the 120,000 square
meter mall at Wuxi Center 66. Leasing is progressing well and we
expect full occupancy at opening. Contracted unit rent so far is rather
satisfactory.

Ouir first office building to be completed outside Shanghai, the first of
two towers at Wuxi Center 66, will be handed over to tenants from
the first quarter of next year. Pre-leasing has started and the signs
are encouraging.

For some time we had explored the possibility of first occupying the
lower floors of the first office tower at Shenyang Forum 66 later this
year. Such a phased completion of a skyscraper has never been
done on the Mainland, and the practical and technical difficulties are
not easily overcome. At the end, challenges and associated risks
prove too plentiful for the city and for us to accept, and the idea was
dropped. Now the entire building is slated to open in early 2015 as
originally planned.

As explained earlier, we do not foresee much selling of Hong Kong non-
core investment properties this year, but we are hopeful of parting with
completed apartments. Subject to market conditions, our Blue Pool
Road project in Happy Valley should be ready for release by the third
quarter of this year. Although only 18 semi-detached houses of some
450 square meters each, unit price may be rather pleasing resulting in
good profits.

Overall results for 2013 will obviously depend on our ability to sell Hong
Kong apartments which in turn will depend on market conditions. If we
only look at rental income, there is reasonable anticipation that we will
see some healthy increase.

Ronnie C. Chan
Chairman
Hong Kong, January 31, 2013
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With 10 major property developments commanding prime locations in

eight major cities across mainland China, Hang Lung is evolving into the
most admired and leading national commercial property developer.
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Every facet of our business works
together  precisely. We  carefully

tailor our strategy for each project,
delivering projects with faultless quality.
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In 2011, both Hang Lung Properties Limited (HLP) and Hang Lung
Group Limited (HLG) changed their financial year end date from June
30 to December 31. As a result, both companies had a six-month
financial period in the previous year from July 1, 2011 to December
31, 2011. Comparing the current financial year ended December 31,
2012 with the previous six-month financial period ended December 31,
2011, total turnover was up 140% to HK$7,372 million.

To enhance comparability of performance between 2012 and 2011,
the below-mentioned comparison was made with the historic results
covering the 12-month period from January 1, 2011 to December 31,
2011, audited by KPMG.

In 2012, Hang Lung Properties continued to record solid and
defensive results, with total turnover up 29% to HK$7,372 million when
compared with the year ended December 31, 2011. Underlying net
profit attributable to shareholders grew by 98% to HK$6,178 million,
contributing towards a 97% increase in earnings per share to HK$1.38.

PROPERTY LEASING

Our core business, property leasing in Hong Kong and mainland
China, continued to deliver sustainable growth in both rental turnover
and operating profit.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EEMEEANERBHESREER
Our property portfolio in Hong Kong enjoys steady rental growth

HE-_Z——F+_-_A=+—HIt+=1 For the 12-month period ended December 31, 2012, overall rental
AEIAR - HEWARLERET S 2 +E#  turnover increased by 10% to HK$6,098 million, riding on 3% growth
BXHEALTN\EET  EREB LA inHong Kong and 18% growth on the Mainland. Excluding the effect of
A= W EFABESZ+H/\ o 45T A the disposed non-core investment properties, the overall rental turnover
EHERNIEZOIREMENTE - [8fEH#  for Hang Lung Properties would have grown as much as 14%. The
EMREEASIWAERES 2 +M - K&  Group also achieved growth in overall rental margins to 84% in Hong
BEEEHESEEMNBEREREIEE - &8  Kong and 77% in mainland China. Riding on these positive results,
FEEAZES > Z/\TWE  REREM EF rental operating profit grew by 11% to reach HK$4,896 million, up 4%
EAMZEtTE - EFEEFTRAEZFE  inHong Kong and 18% on the Mainland.

T BEHEMEMES, 2 +—E2BKHT

NENTFREEL EFFELABSZ

b A EABFDZ TN o

BB Hong Kong

CEEFERN - REBETHEEMEMLAESHE  During the year under review, steady growth in our leasing portfolio in
BHESETERE  BHHESWKALAHAS  Hong Kong supported a 3% increase in rental turnover to HK$3,016
ZEEBE=ZFTE-—TNEBT £2%  milion, with a 4% rise in operating profit to HK$2,525 million. Excluding
FEAEDZ2OEBE-_FTHE-_THE  the effect of the disposed investment properties, rental turnover of
BT Tt ADEENKREYMENST  Hong Kong investment properties would have been up 9%.

Z FEREVENHSBAENE D

A, o

NI

=

N_EB—_F  EEHEEMEMBASIEARE  Our Hong Kong property leasing portfolio contributed 49% of the
EHSWAREE 2l - Group’s total rental turnover in 2012.
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Both Plaza 66 and Grand Gateway 66 enjoy prestigious market positions and reputations
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Mainland China

Leasing in mainland China delivered HK$3,082 million in total rental
turnover, up 18% compared to the previous year. Riding on this
increase, profit grew by 18% to HK$2,371 million.

Making an impressive debut, Forum 66 in Shenyang opened in
September 2012 with 100% occupancy rate — delivering rental turnover
of HK$70 million in its first three months of operations.

The Group’s properties in Shanghai, Plaza 66 and Grand Gateway
66, achieved consistently high occupancy rates. Together, the two
properties contributed HK$2,483 million in rental turnover, an increase
of 7% compared to the previous year.

Optimization of the tenant mix at Palace 66 in Shenyang resulted in a
slight dip in occupancy rate to 88%, but is already paying dividends by
enhancing profit margins by 15%. As a result, profit rose 114% to HK$45
million. In addition, Parc 66 in Jinan — which is almost fully let — generated
rental turnover of HK$365 million, up 197% year on year.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group’s property leasing
operations in mainland China accounted for 51% of total rental turnover.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Reinforcing the nationwide prestige of the renowned “66” brand,
we opened the shopping mall at Forum 66 — our second project in
Shenyang — on September 28, 2012. From day one, the property has
been fully leased to more than 150 tenants. Forum 66 is our largest
project under construction, with a total gross floor area of 1,060,000
square meters. Upon full completion, the complex will also feature
office towers, a hotel and serviced apartments.

On November 28, 2012, the Group hosted a groundbreaking ceremony
for Spring City 66 in Kunming, the capital city of Yunnan Province. This
project represents a major business milestone as it marks our entry
into the southwest region of mainland China. Spring City 66 is centrally
located in the business and commercial heart of Kunming, and sits
at the core of the central business district. The prime 56,000 square-
meter site will be developed into a world-class shopping mall, with a
Grade A office tower and serviced apartments.

Phase 1 of Center 66 in Wuxi is on track for opening in 2013; and pre-
leasing activities for the shopping mall have commenced in preparation
for launch.

The Group’s other development projects on the Mainland are
progressing well according to schedule.

FINANCIAL POSITION

We upheld a healthy and robust balance sheet, with cash and bank
deposits of HK$36,025 milion as at December 31, 2012. After
deducting total borrowings of HK$29,736 million, the Group had a
net cash balance of HK$6,289 million. Further enhancing our financial
flexibility, we issued an equivalent of HK$5,799 million of 10-year fixed
rate bonds under the Medium Term Note (MTN) Program.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The Group maintains ample capacity to finance all development
projects on hand, with sufficient reserves to capitalize on promising
expansion opportunities when they arise.

OUTLOOK

The volatile macro environment will continue to affect market sentiment
and, in turn, domestic spending. However, the Group’s experience and
financial strength will allow us to minimize potential challenges of unstable
markets while simultaneously taking advantage of attractive land acquisition
opportunities to fuel future growth. In the mid to long term, urbanization in
China would be a boost for consumption and thus benefit the Group.

In Hong Kong, our properties command excellent locations, supported
by refined tenant mixes, upgraded facilities and active promotion
campaigns, and will continue to pose healthy and steady growth.
Constantly vigilant, the Group closely monitors the market to capture
the most favorable timing for sale of residential units.

We are also looking forward to steady business growth on the Mainland,
with Phase 1 of Center 66 in Wuxi being on track for launch in 2013.
Other developments bearing the renowned “66” brand are scheduled
to come on line over the next few years, expanding our presence
around the country.

In February 2013, Hang Lung successfully acquired a prime site
for commercial property development in Wuhan, Hubei Province.
Ideally located on Jinghan Avenue in the bustling Qiaokou District,
the commercial and business heart of Wuhan with light rail and
mass transit railway accessibility, the land has a net site area
of approximately 82,637 square meters. It is also close to two
renowned commercial zones, namely Wuguang and Zhongshan
Avenue. With an investment amount of about RMB12 billion, the
new site is to be developed into a commercial complex comprising
a world-class shopping mall, office towers and serviced apartments
with a maximum floor area of about 460,000 square meters for long-
term investment. The acquisition extends the geographic spread
of our presence into the largest and most important city in central
China and adds further to our Mainland portfolio.

Skillfully executing our precisely planned growth strategy and remaining
firmly focused on long-term development, Hang Lung is developing into
the most admired and leading national commercial property developer
running operations in multiple major cities across mainland China.

41



L EIEMEZHH & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Zﬁ HEYETHE HONG KONG PROPERTY LEASING

&= 2 H A
Prime Locations

-

e '{I..

\
-

L LI
-

BMIyHE
L

-

42 | EEMEFRAR ZFT—FF¥H  HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



LTEES
The Peak Galleria
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When it comes to commercial property, location is
everything. Our business strategy revolves around
building the finest quality projects in premium locations.

BIRRER S - HEBMEMETISIFEE  Ongoing turbulence in the global economy continued to affect the
IR o R BB LEE - A3l leasing market in Hong Kong. However, through strategic planning,
HEHEEB A AR ANTES] - FFIR)  attractive promotional campaigns and effective cost controls, our
BRI AENAEREEHRIZR  shopping malls and office developments maintained steadily high
RASZATARBES ZATHEMBNE/K  occupancy rates of 96% and 94%, respectively. Rental turnover and
oo EMEEFA  MESWAREF S profit increased by 3% to HK$3,016 million and 4% to HK$2,525
FIIEEAE D Z2=Kao 2l EZAE¥  milion, respectively, due to positive rental reversion.

=t R-—FTREETERBE -_TARE=T

ABHETT
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Fashion Walk in Causeway Bay
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In addition, to optimize our Hong Kong property portfolio, we
disposed of non-core investment properties including Star Centre,
Park Towers, Laguna Plaza, Park Building and Stanhope House.
Disposal of non-core investment properties recorded a turnover of
HK$5,303 million. The gain on disposal of HK$2,148 million was
recorded as Other Income.

Excluding the effect of the disposal of non-core investment properties,
the growth in rental turnover would have been 9%.

COMMERCIAL

Despite a slowdown in Mainland tourist arrivals and the associated
effect on consumption, the performance of the Group’s core properties
remained stable in prime districts such as Causeway Bay, Mongkok and
The Peak. At the same time, local household consumption continued
to support steady growth at regional shopping malls like Amoy Plaza
and Kornhill Plaza. Building on a steady performance from our flagship
shopping malls, rental turnover in Hong Kong increased by 6% to
HK$1,609 million for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2012,
Excluding the effect of the disposed non-core properties, rental turnover
would have increased by 11%.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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“Savour Life « Coffee Time” organized by Fashion Walk
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During the financial year under review, we continued to invest in
upgrading the Group’s core properties — paving the way for long-term
sustainable growth at our developments. Our continuously fine-tuned
tenant mixes appealed directly to target audiences, supported by a
bustling schedule of promotional activities designed to attract shoppers
with unique lifestyle experiences.

New flagship tenants, including AEON Supermarket and Pacific
Coffee Emporium at Fashion Walk in Causeway Bay, have formed
a strong nucleus of popular lifestyle attractions in the Group’s
property portfolio. A complementary campaign of brand-building
events, such as the “Savour Life * Coffee Time” and “Halloween@
Fashion Walk” celebrations, drew heavy crowds to Fashion Walk
and Hang Lung Centre.

a2k

Partnership

BHMEREEFPHNRARME -
BfIRaERE  BaME
NENTISEFEE RHEE
BIEIEN AR - HEIER -
We value our long-term
relationships with tenants and
treat them as partners. Working
closely with our tenants across
different markets, we generate
mutual success by creating an
exceptional lifestyle experience
for shoppers.

mEH
Passy Wong

EREE — AR RMEER
Senior Manager - Leasing & Management
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A rebranding campaign at The Peak Galleria highlighted the mall as an
icon of Hong Kong style and culture, as well as a distinctive wedding
venue. Our “Hong Kong Fantasia at The Peak” event, jointly developed
with Hong Kong Art School and supported by the Hong Kong Tourism
Board, thrilled visitors with a dazzling display of lights and synchronized
sound effects at The Peak. The outdoor fagade show — which was held
from September 29 to October 7, 2012 — inspired audiences to further
explore Hong Kong'’s unique style, history and character. Building on
the success of “The Peak of Love” event in 2011, The Peak Galleria
continued the tradition with a “12.12.12 The Peak of Love” wedding
ceremony in 2012, solidifying the mall’s position as a unique wedding
venue in Hong Kong.

Making the most of mobile data technology, we introduced iPhone
applications for Fashion Walk and The Peak Galleria which keep
customers conveniently updated with the latest offers and events at
our properties anytime, anywhere.

In Mongkok, we carried out major renovation works at Grand Plaza
(previously known as Grand Tower) to create two new duplex retail
shops — which are a highly sought-after rarity in the district’s prime
shopping area. We also welcomed new tenants including Rolex,
Tudor and Collect Point, which have been warmly received by
enthusiastic shoppers.

P
LI

“12.12.12 The Peak of Love” organized by The Peak Galleria
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Komnhill Learnscape at Kornhill Plaza
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We have also upgraded facilities at Kornhill Plaza to hone its competitive
edge in the marketplace. Several new food and beverage outlets
provide a wide variety of cuisines and lure additional foot traffic to the
shopping mall. In addition, we introduced more tenants, which provide
different educational services, to Kornhill Learnscape, drawing more
family-oriented traffic to the mall.

In the premium Central district, limited supply is fueling correspondingly
high demand for prime retail locations. The Group is currently renovating
the commercial podium in Standard Chartered Bank Building, and will
introduce new tenants upon completion — upgrading the quality of our
portfolio while enhancing the overall performance of our Hong Kong
leasing operations.

OFFICE AND INDUSTRIAL/OFFICE

For the 12-month period ended December 31, 2012, total rental
turnover increased by 5% to HK$1,005 million, based on a steady 94%
occupancy rate.

(LR PIREVEITIRITAE
Standard Chartered Bank Building in Central
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Pricing and occupancy rate at the Group’s office and industrial
properties remained stable, although activity in the office leasing market
began to slow in the second quarter of 2012 due to global economic
uncertainty. Our strategy of creating themed zones for office buildings
continued to generate stable rental turnover from properties including
Hang Lung Centre in Causeway Bay, Kornhill Plaza — Office Tower in
Quarry Bay and Grand Plaza in Mongkok.

We introduced new high quality tenants to the retail space at our office
buildings at Duddell Street in Central, including Lalique and the flagship
five-story 18,000-square-foot Shanghai Tang Mansion. The improved
tenant mix is transforming the area into a lifestyle destination, which
is subsequently driving follow-on demand from office tenants. An
increased proportion of semi-retail tenants at the Duddell offices has
helped to diversify the tenant mix, while increasing rental turnover and
mitigating risk from the unstable economic environment.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to diversify trade sectors
and broaden our tenant mix. These strategic moves will help to
increase rental yields and create greater risk resilience against
uncertain markets.

RIRERZ R —5%
1 Duddell Street, Central

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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We Care for Every Guest

BREDREMEMBEE - BRMETRRE
T EBHBE o mEAFIE TIEEE -
BB R FIR AL LRI TR RO RE O IR
With warm smiles and a friendly greeting every
day, we enjoy building close relationships with
all our residents. Our passion and enthusiasm
make the difference and inspire us to deliver
the highest standards of services.

RESIDENTIAL AND SERVICED APARTMENTS

Due to instability in worldwide markets, housing budgets are tight
and expatriate family arrivals from the banking and financial sector
have remained low — contributing towards slowing demand for luxury
apartment units. Total rental turnover for 2012 was HK$282 million.

As aresult, we have diversified our tenant portfolio by branching out into
new industries such as fashion and apparel, information technology,
trading and pharmaceuticals — which are becoming major sources
of expatriate family movements. The Group is targeting corporate
accounts, local households, overseas expatriates and visitors, and will
continue to diversify our client base to deliver steady returns.

AR
Winco Lam
BREFREEE — e

Senior Guest Services Supervisor,
The Summit
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KE+ZMEA - RFEHZEHFHTASE  Over the next 12 months, we expect to see a moderate downward

SREDGESEIEMARE - AiE4%  adjustment in average rental of luxury residences, in line with global

BAEFPRERABEMNAEERLFMM  trends. In response, we are continuing to allow more flexible leasing

BETLFAPAES - R - EEIIE S terms while embracing a more diversified tenant mix. At the same

THREAETHEMNMZSESZREAE  time, Hang Lung is committed to continuously improving our serviced

Fff » DATS PRI A HY AR & B3R o apartments, such as The Summit and Burnside Villa, to drive optimal
rental returns.

iz e T+ PO {EAR S8R FLAAE S BB

The Summit encompasses a complex of 54 glamorous duplex suites
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BBRB YR 2RI DT
Geographical Analysis of Hong Kong Investment Properties
#¥+=A=+—H At December 31

wiEEmmEr (FERK)
Total Gross Floor Area” (000 sg. m.)
2012 2011
3= Hong Kong Island
FIRKEEE Central and Admiralty 51 58
e KB Causeway Bay and Wan Chai 92 112
e R 8 AR Kornhill and Quarry Bay 134 164
HTE R 1L & The Peak and Mid-Levels a7 47
BEEE Hong Kong South 12 12
LEE Kowloon
A Mongkok 140 140
EQVLENS T Tsim Sha Tsui and West Kowloon 88 89
SEEAREE Ngau Tau Kok and Kwun Tong 76 96
RE MR Cheung Sha Wan and Kwai Chung 9 52
st Total 649 770
* BIERBESCEEEE
Including gross floor area of car parks
BERREYFEZIREDNT
Segmental Analysis of Hong Kong Investment Properties
HZEZ+-HA=1+—HILFJE For the years ended December 31
BEEER FARUA R
(FFHK) (B¥BE®ET) (ADtL)
Total Gross Floor Area Rental Turnover Occupancy Rate
(000 sg. m.) (HK$ million) (%)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Bk Commercial 246 271 1,609 1,517 96 96
#/ﬁ#’&@{i Office and Industrial/Office 169 237 1,005 956 94 93
TITH/MRE
FERER Residential and Apartment 68 79 282 331 75 85
RES Car Park 166 183 120 114 N/A N/A
Bt Total 649 770 3,016 2,918 92 93
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High-end residential complex in southwestern Kowloon — The Long Beach
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Hong Kong'’s property sales market faced a year of consolidation in
2012 due to the uncertain global economy, increased land supply and
tightened government policies, such as the Buyers’ Stamp Duty, which
affected consumer sentiment.

However, demand remains enthusiastic for top quality residential
properties in prime locations. Offering high quality residences to the
market via a disciplined sales approach, the Group is optimizing
the value of our residential developments for both end-users and
shareholders alike.

During the year under review, we captured several windows of
opportunity to launch property sales, including 108 residential units
at The Long Beach, nine units at The HarbourSide and others, which
generated an aggregate profit of HK$846 million.

THE LONG BEACH

The Long Beach is a high-end residential complex with a premium
address in southwestern Kowloon. The development includes 1,829
residential units spread across eight towers, and also features a unique

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The HarbourSide offers stunning 180-degree views of Victoria Harbour
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wave-inspired design, spectacular sea views and a four-story best-in-
class clubhouse with the latest recreational facilities. A total of 108 units
were sold during 2012.

THE HARBOURSIDE

Towering above southwestern Kowloon, this top-of-the-line residential
complex commands prestige with its prime location. Comprising
1,122 units in three inter-connected 65-story towers, The HarbourSide
offers stunning 180-degree views of Victoria Harbour, cutting-edge
architectural design and a full complement of modern lifestyle facilities.
Nine units were sold during 2012.

BLUE POOL ROAD

This luxury development project offers residents a prime location on Blue
Pool Road in Happy Valley. Construction at the 7,850 square-meter
site is scheduled for completion in 2013. This milestone development
is the first project in the world registered under the LEED (Leadership
in Energy and Environmental Design) for Homes International Pilot
Scheme launched by the U.S. Green Building Council.
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We enter the right markets with the right projects at the right time

AEENYEL R AGERNERETHE - mERE A
o — (B2 BRI EES -
Showcasing modern architecture and design,

the Group's properties form a nationwide portfolio of
city landmarks across mainland China.
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B ERIH)ERE o

During the 12-month period ended December 31, 2012, total rental
turnover from property leasing in mainland China rose 18% to
HK$3,082 million.

We enter the right markets with the right projects at the right time. As
one of the early pioneers amongst Hong Kong’s property developers
to expand operations nationwide, Hang Lung established a presence
in mainland China in the early 1990s and began building a portfolio of
world-class commercial complexes and city landmarks for long-term
investment. On-the-ground experience and a solid development track
record have laid the foundations of success for our national property
leasing portfolio.
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FREERBZEE 2K
China’s first Louis Vuitton Maison
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BERTEHREMEME -

» BEE FEREFE F 8 B (Dior Homme) 1
ﬁ%fi(Hermes)E’]Bi“*frﬁuu)Eiﬁ-ﬂ AR
Bl B XS EE 2 K (Louis Vuitton Maison)
BEERE  ZBIESR T EFENESK
ABLEEIF o EEIRIREE—IERRFTRIA
5 EESRENSIEE LR INENR
#:22 (Roger Vivier) « B3t (Celine) ~ BIZEE
(Bvigari) ~ B AFI5/E (Giorgio Armani) At
=4 (Dolce & Gabbana) E/2Ak 38 A M 17
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One of the highlights in 2012 was the grand opening of our shopping
mall at Forum 66, our second project in Shenyang, in September
2012. Fully leased upon opening, the development contributed HK$70
million to rental turnover in only three months of operations. The mall’s
success has further cemented our foothold in the city, and is helping to
drive the overall momentum of the Group’s Mainland leasing portfolio.

PLAZA 66, SHANGHAI

Rental turnover from Plaza 66 in Shanghai increased 4% to HK$1,475
million during the year under review. Extensive renovation and upgrading
works at the shopping mall carried out during the first half of the year
combined with a general slowdown in retail consumption contributed
towards relatively moderate turnover growth.

However, sales picked up during the last six months of the year with the
re-opening of the mall’s Dior Homme and Hermeés flagship boutiques,
as well as the grand opening of China’s first Louis Vuitton Maison.
These global design icons anchor a high-end stable of luxury brands
including Roger Vivier, Celine, Bvigari, Giorgio Armani and Dolce &
Gabbana, creating a strong synergy that is accelerating foot traffic and
boosting retail sales, further strengthening the Group’s leading position
in Shanghai.
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Plaza 66 enjoys a superior leading position in Shanghai
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Service Excellence

BN EEEBERERREREM
BEENRY - BUHMABORE - BT
ABEBR - WIREE SR -
Shoppers’ satisfaction is our top
priority, which we achieve by providing
friendly, responsive and professional
customer service. We strive to create
a unigue and pleasurable shopping
experience for our customers.

A new external facade development is to be completed in the first
quarter of 2013 — providing the perfect showcase for international
brands including Louis Vuitton, Hermes, Prada, Dior and Cartier.
Maximizing synergy with our tenant remix program, we will be
refocusing our selection of tenants to optimize the mall’s long-term
sustainable growth.

Occupancy rate at Plaza 66’s office towers remained impressively
high at 99%, with stable rental turnover up 5% during the year.
Improving market sentiment helped to generate increasing rental
returns during the first half of the year, which stabilized with the

2=

Liu Ting
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Customer Service Assistant —
Shopping Mall, Grand Gateway 66
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market in the third quarter. Highlighting the Group’s commitment
to environmental sustainability, both Office Towers 1 and 2 at Plaza
66 were awarded “Precertification under Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell Development — Gold
Level” issued by the U.S. Green Building Council.

Looking ahead to 2013, we expect to see a continued stable growth in
rentals. As our existing anchor tenants’ demand for space increases,
they are providing a steadily rising baseline of support for both
occupancy rate and rental turnover.

GRAND GATEWAY 66, SHANGHAI

Although the global economic situation maintained its pressure on
the retail sector and on high-end luxury brands in particular, rental
turnover at Grand Gateway 66 grew 11% to HK$1,008 million during
the year under review. Corresponding profit also increased by 13%
to HK$888 million.

When luxury brands choose to enter a new market, critical decision
factors include outlet location, shopping environment, targeted
consumers and tenant mix. With its distinctively upmarket business
positioning, Grand Gateway 66 has a proven track record of success
in attracting premium luxury brands entering the Mainland. The mall
welcomed a number of leading international retail brands in 2012,
including Allen Edmonds and Pierre Balmain Shoes & Bags, which
have both chosen Grand Gateway 66 as a home base to launch their
retail operations in mainland China. They joined other new world-
renowned tenants like Gucci, Bottega Veneta, Chaumet, Jimmy
Choo, Diane von Furstenberg, MCM, Anteprima and Kate Spade
in drawing throngs of enthusiastic shoppers to the mall, helping to
support a consistently high occupancy rate of 99%.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Grand Gateway 66 in Shanghai
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Grand Gateway 66 has achieved a consistently high occupancy rate of 99%

Planning for the year ahead, we are expecting the new government
will focus on maintaining stability and momentum in the markets. As
such, Shanghai remains a very attractive base for international luxury
brands seeking to expand into the Mainland market — which dovetails
perfectly with Grand Gateway 66’s unique market position. With
additional new tenants scheduled to move into the mall in 2013, we
are constantly refining and strengthening our tenant mix to maintain
Grand Gateway 66’s position as a destination for high-end shopping
experience in Shanghai and to bring healthy growth in both the top
line and the bottom line.

PALACE 66, SHENYANG

We are optimizing our tenant mix to maximize long-term rental returns
at Palace 66. As the process is underway, occupancy rate temporarily
dipped slightly to 88%. However, the reorganization is already showing
dividends, with rental margin and profit up by 15% and 114%,
respectively, during the year.
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Palace 66 has introduced a collection of international designer brands
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Shoppers are drawn by our refreshed collection of international designer
brands, with many — for example, I.T Group’s AApe and Monki under
the H&M Group — choosing Palace 66 as the base for their retail debuts
in northeastern China. Young and trendy brands like Juicy Couture, lijin
and G-Star Raw were also introduced. Rounding out the tenant mix is a
core of leading food and beverage brands including Starbucks, Pacific
Coffee, Arita Dessert and Han Sheng Barbecue, which are a steady
draw for foot traffic.

The mall is delivering an exceptional performance from our retail
tenants. UGG’s footwear boutique in Palace 66 set a new sales record
in November 2012, after achieving top sales income of all stores
nationwide in October. The mall’s Miss Sixty and CK Jeans outlets were
also the top sales performers amongst their numerous retail outlets
in Shenyang.

With a number of lifestyle brands currently renovating premises for
opening in the near future, including Titans International MMA Club

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Parc 66 has become the landmark of Jinan

and Fitness, Jolyvia Beauty, Eastern Renowned and Kaku Children
Playgroup, we look forward to attracting even more footfall in the
coming year.

Although market competition and economic uncertainty are posing
challenges, Palace 66 will continue to refine and optimize our tenant
mix to match the profile of our target customers, while staying ahead
of the market and leveraging our strengths to maintain our leadership
position in Shenyang’s retail arena.

PARC 66, JINAN

Offering a comprehensive package of premium dining, shopping,
leisure and entertainment facilities, Parc 66 unveils a completely new
lifestyle experience. The mall celebrated its first anniversary in August
2012, marking a milestone year of success with rental turnover up
197% to HK$365 million. Almost fully leased with an occupancy rate
of 97%, the project’s rental margin improved to 51% during the year.
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Our refined tenant mix introduced light food and beverage outlets on
selected floors, providing a comfortable environment for shoppers to relax
and recharge. Enhancing the family-friendly atmosphere of the mall, we
introduced a Jurassic-themed zone as well as a children’s playground on
Level 5 and also launched a Kids Club — which offers entertainment and
educational activities as well as special discounts on purchases. Tenants
offering related products and services have experienced improved
footfall and revenues from our renewed family focus.

Parc 66 earned a number of industry accolades during the year,
including a Gold Award in the 2012 ICSC Asia Pacific Shopping
Center Awards in the “New Developments” category under the
“Design and Development” section, as well as a Gold Award for
“Sustainable Design”. Echoing that success, the mall also earned a
Silver Award for “Best Retail and Leisure Development” at the MIPIM
Asia Awards 2012.

FORUM 66, SHENYANG

Forum 66 contributed rental turnover of HK$70 million during its first three
months of operations. Having celebrated its grand opening on September
28, 2012, it is the Group’s second landmark development in Shenyang

and the largest project currently under construction.

BERTHERESN —E——FhAA-+/\BHEEMHE

Forum 66 in Shenyang celebrated its grand opening on September 28, 2012
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Our work demands careful attention
to details, as well as patience
and dedication to the job. We are
committed to the safety and comfort
of our customers, and to protecting
the well-being of our environment.

Forum 66’s shopping mall offers 101,960 square meters of retail space
and more than 2,000 car park spaces for shoppers’ convenience. The
mall has been fully leased since opening to more than 150 world-class
luxury brand tenants. Chanel, Giorgio Armani, Ralph Lauren, Roger
Vivier, Valentino, Baccarat and many others have chosen Forum 66
for their first stores in Shenyang or northeast China — joining other
internationally renowned brands like Bottega Veneta, Cartier, Celine,
Dunhill, Salvatore Ferragamo, Loewe, Tiffany & Co. and Tod’s, to
name just a few. Forum 66 offers an exceptional lifestyle experience
for trendy and affluent shoppers in Shenyang and is expected to take
a leading role in the luxury retail market in Shenyang.

T

Wang Jian
EERT — TNEEES
Technician - Air Conditioning,
Forum 66
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CENTER 66, WUXI

Marking the Group’s entry into Wuxi, Phase 1 of Center 66 is scheduled
for its grand opening during the third quarter of 2013. It comprises
263,800 square meters of premium shopping space and Grade A
office towers.

Located in the heart of Wuxi’'s commercial area, the project is destined
to become a new commercial landmark in the city of Wuxi. Bearing
the hallmark reputation and leading positioning of the “66” brand, the
118,500 square-meter shopping mall at Center 66, with over 270
shops and 1,300 car park spaces, has become the top choice for many
renowned international luxury and fashion labels seeking a presence in
Wuxi. A number of them have chosen Center 66 as the home of their
first stores in Wuxi, including Roger Vivier, Chaumet, Kate Spade and
more. Featuring a handpicked selection of food and beverage outlets
as well as lifestyle facilities, the development will offer a unique one-
stop shopping experience for customers.

R E A SR A 2 EB D
Mainland China Rental Turnover by
Business Segment
RZE——F+-A=+—H

At December 31, 2012

1%

75%

W &

Commercial

RN
Office

B FF5
Car Park

A Financial years ended June 30

# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011
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Segmental Analysis of Mainland China Investment Properties
#HZE+—- A=-+—HIL4EE For the years ended December 31

RIEEEE fﬂ/i\%y\_ TR =
(FFHK) (BEBHET) (AHLL)
Total Gross Floor Area* Rental Turnover Occupancy Rate
('000 sq. m.) (HKS$ million) (%)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
i Commercial 556 454 2,305 1,862 97 98
WAE Office 160 160 734 701 98 99
(=85 Car Park 460 263 43 38 N/A N/A
45t Total 1,176 877 3,082 2,601 97 99
* R EME KR 2 IS T A
Including gross floor area above and below ground
A B A 3% B W 5 I B R R IR B W 2 IR AT
Geographical Analysis of Mainland China Investment Properties and
Investment Properties Under Development
MR=ZF—=—%F+=H=+—H At December 31, 2012
BIEEEE
(FFHK)
Total Gross Floor Area*
('000 sg. m.)
BREYE Investment Properties
L Shanghai
BER Xuhui District 165
7R Jing’an District 273
B Shenyang
O @ (P AR ) Shenhe District (Zhongjie Lu) 181
EE(FFEAE) Shenhe District (Qingnian Da Jie) 301
BE Jinan 256
et Total 1,176
BRPIEYE Investment Properties Under Development
&G Shenyang
o (FEKRE) Shenhe District (Qingnian Da Jie) 759
55 Wuxi
SLBm(ARPER) Chong’an District (Renmin Zhong Lu) 264
S (EER) Chong’an District (Jiankang Lu) 113
xi# Tianjin 153
KE Dalian 222
=8z Kunming 401
1Est Total 1,912

* BIEME MK 2 EE R

Including gross floor area above and below ground
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The shopping mall at Center 66 in Wuxi will open its
doors for business in 2013. It is destined to become
a new city landmark and the flagship of the Group's
operations in Wuxi.
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CENTER 66 — PHASE 1, WUXI

Center 66, another world-class project of the Group in Wuxi, is set to
open in the third quarter of 2013. As we further extend our footprint on
the Mainland, we are set to develop into the most admired and leading
national commercial property developer in the market.

Phase 1 of Center 66 spans over a total gross floor area of 263,800
square meters with premium shopping space and Grade A office
towers. The shopping mall to be completed first will house an
impressive array of internationally renowned luxury brands. Boasting
a diversified tenant mix and excellent customer service, Center 66 will
definitely create an extraordinary lifestyle and shopping experience.
Located on Renmin Zhong Lu in Chong’an District, Center 66 enjoys
a prime location in the very heart of Wuxi’'s central business district. In

addition to the heavy pedestrian flows in the area, Center 66 will also
benefit from the busy traffic that the Metro Lines 1 and 2, currently
under construction, will bring.

Center 66 will definitely create an extraordinary lifestyle and shopping experience
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Center 66 will become Wuxi’s

major landmark

The design and planning of Center 66 evolve around the concepts of
flow, circulation, harmony and connection, and embody the essence
of Chinese calligraphy. The energetic and fluid curved lines of the word
for “people” (Chinese form: A) flow through the sites of both Phase 1
and Phase 2, uniting all the buildings with the common language of
movement while enhancing the dynamism of the created space.

Attesting to the quality of the development as well as the many
environmental initiatives that have been included in its design, the
shopping mall and Phase 1 office tower obtained their “Precertification
under Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for
Core and Shell Development — Gold Level” from the U.S. Green
Building Council in July 2009. In May 2012, Center 66 also clinched
the “Best Mixed-use Architecture in Asia Pacific” and the “Five-star
Best Mixed-use Architecture in China” titles in the prestigious 2012
Asia Pacific Property Awards.

CENTER 66 — PHASE 2, WUXI
Phase 2 of Center 66 will consist of commercial and office facilities
as well as a hotel and serviced apartments. When completed, it will
bring the total gross floor area of Center 66, Phases 1 and 2, to an
impressive 376,800 square meters, making it the largest retail
and commercial landmark in the central business district
of Wuxi. The Phase 2 site is situated at the intersection
of Jiankang Lu and Hou Xixi, adjacent to the south of
Renmin Zhong Lu where Phase 1 is located.
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FORUM 66, SHENYANG

Forum 66 has a total gross floor area of 1,060,000 square meters.
Following the grand opening of the shopping mall in September 2012,
the project’s office towers are scheduled for completion next. The twin
office towers rising 350 meters above the city will be the tallest office
buildings in northeast China. Apart from the shopping mall and office
towers, Forum 66 also comprises hotels and serviced apartments. The
complex is the largest of our projects currently under construction.

This prime landmark complex is ideally located on Qingnian Da Jie,
the “Golden Corridor” which runs through the city center. It is also
sited among Shenyang’s most well-known landmarks, including
Liaoning Grand Theater, Liaoning Provincial Museum, Municipal
Government Building, as well as City Plaza. Boosting traffic flow even
further, a new metro line which has been built along the “Golden
Corridor” will also provide direct internal access from the
station to our development. The shopping mall of Forum
66 has been awarded “Certification under Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and
Shell Development — Gold Level” issued by the U.S. Green
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RIVERSIDE 66, TIANJIN

Located in the heart of Tianjin on a prime site on Heping Lu, one of
the “Ten Most Famous Commercial Streets in China”, Riverside 66 will
provide 152,800 square meters of world-class commercial facilities,
and also create an iconic landmark for the city as one of the longest
shopping malls in China. Specially designed to integrate Riverside
66’s internal elements with its external surroundings, the development
boasts a unique glass shell design which enables an external view into
the shops and activities within the mall. This innovative design has
won Riverside 66 a host of awards including the prestigious “2010
AIA New York Chapter’s Design Awards — Unbuilt Category” from
the American Institute of Architects (AIA) New York Chapter. We are
probably the first Hong Kong developer operating on the Mainland to
receive this well-known award. It also won the “MIPIM Architectural
Review Future Project Awards 2007 — Retail and Leisure” title. In 2009,
Riverside 66 received its “Precertification under Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell Development —
Gold Level” issued by the U.S. Green Building Council. The project is
due for completion in 2014.
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OLYMPIA 66, DALIAN

Upon its expected completion in 2015, Olympia 66 will offer a new
leisure and lifestyle experience with 221,900 square meters of prime
shopping, dining and entertainment space. Centrally located at Wusi
Lu, one of the city’s leading commercial avenues, the design concept
of traditional twin dancing carps of the project creates a dynamic icon
for the city. Moreover, Olympia 66’s grand indoor plaza will connect
the complex’s vibrant atrium spaces, bringing them all together under a
crystalline skylight. Attesting to the innovation and sophistication of this
design, Olympia 66 won numerous awards including the “MIPIM Asia
Awards 2011 — Bronze Award” in the category of the “Best Chinese
Futura Projects”, as well as the highly coveted “Best Retail Architecture
in Asia Pacific” and the “Five-star Best Retail Architecture in China”
titles in the distinctive International Property Awards 2011. Even more
significantly, our project outperformed top projects from across the
world to bring home the ultimate “Best International Retail Architecture
2011” award. In view of its environmental and sustainability features,
Olympia 66 also received its “Precertification under Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell Development —
Gold Level” from the U.S. Green Building Council in August 2011.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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SPRING CITY 66, KUNMING
On November 28, 2012, Spring City 66 hosted an official
groundbreaking ceremony, which symbolized a new growth chapter in

the southwest region of our Mainland operations. Due for completion
in phases from 2018, Spring City 66 consists of an impressive total
gross floor area of 401,300 square meters, which will be developed
into a world-class shopping mall, with a Grade A office tower and
serviced apartments.

Spring City 66 is centrally located in the business and commercial
heart of Kunming, and is sited in the core area of the central business
district now being planned. Located where the municipal building of
the Kunming government was originally erected, Spring City 66 is
ideally positioned, stretching from the intersection of Dongfeng Dong
Lu to the north and Beijing Lu to the west, the two leading commercial
avenues and main thoroughfares in the city. The Metro Lines 2 and 3,
now under construction, will run along Beijing Lu and Dongfeng Dong
Lu, respectively, offering direct access to Spring City 66 and attracting
further traffic flow to the complex.

NEW PROJECT IN WUHAN

In February 2013, Hang Lung successfully acquired a prime site for
commercial property development in Wuhan, on Jinghan Avenue in
Qiaokou District. The new site is to be developed into a commercial
complex comprising a world-class shopping mall, office towers and
serviced apartments with a maximum floor area of about 460,000
square meters for long-term investment.
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SBTFZ%% MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES

A EB2ERTYE
Major Properties Under Development

MR-ZT——F+—-F=+—H At December 31, 2012

BEEER TEE
ih 88 E g (FEFHK) &R B
(EFAK) Total Gross e TR B Expected
Site Area FEZME  Floor Area Stage of Completion
2k Location (sg. m.) Main Usage (sg. m.) Completion Date
T HONG KONG
By Blue Pool Road, 7,850 R 8,005 BELE 2013
NHLER 5747 55 IL 5747 Superstructure
&5 SHENYANG
M EREES - Forum 66, 92,065 H/O/S 758,800 BELE 2014
SEKRE Qingnian Da Jie, Superstructure fi
A [ Shenhe District onwards
B WUXI
BEES(—H) Center 66 (Phase 1), 37,324 C/O 263,800 BELE 2013
ARAFEE Renmin Zhong Lu, Superstructure e
s Chong’an District onwards
1B ES(=H) Center 66 (Phase 2), 16,767 C/H/O/S 113,000 FTElH
R Jiankang Lu, Planning
SZE Chong’an District
X TIANJIN
BEES - Riverside 66, 42,697 © 152,800 BELE 2014
MR Heping Lu, Superstructure
¥ [@ Heping District
KiE DALIAN
BfERES Olympia 686, 63,400 @ 221,900 BELEE 2015
FPOE Wusi Lu, Superstructure
PN Xigang District
B KUNMING
1BIZ &S - Spring City 66, 56,042 C/0/S 401,300 FHEH 2018
e Dongfeng Lu, Planning #8
BEEmE Panlong District onwards
C : % Commercial
H : JBJE Hotel
O : #A 2 Office
R : {£= Residential
S : lRFBEFRT Serviced Apartment

N EWELSRE2ERSR

All the above properties are wholly owned by the Group
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Properties Completed for Sale

MR-ZT——F+—-F=+—H At December 31, 2012

) =#E =E
HIEEmE E=EE N HHAHE
(EA*) #H No. of
Total Gross No. of Car Park
FEH®BE  Floor Area Residential Space
bk Location Main Usage (sg. m.) Unit for Sale for Sale
T HONG KONG
BERAT - The HarbourSide, R 35,856 273 254
- EEFE 15 1 Austin Road West,
JUBEAHLER 1108055 KIL 11080
IR The Long Beach, R 92,814 1,126 =
G HEE 85 8 Hoi Fai Road,
TUBERHEER 1115258 KIL 11152
EEEX AquaMarine, R 1,939 21 =
REXBE 85K 8 Sham Shing Road,
L BE A HE ER 6338 51 NKIL 6338
EZrI - Carmel-on-the-Hill, R 286 2 14
MERET R - 9 Carmel Village Street,
TUBEAHIER 1112257 KIL 11122

R : {£=E Residential

A EMEEREE2EHE

All the above properties are wholly owned by the Group
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SBTFZ%% MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES

C TEREM=E

Major Investment Properties
RZZE——F+=F=+—H At December 31, 2012

With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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MmEmERE(EAX)
Total Gross Floor Area (sg. m.)
N 95 )
I£/iNE (EEREHR BHiuEA
Ith£2 Office and  Residential No. of
=i S H ki Industrial/ and Car Park
2k Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
& HONG KONG
IR CENTRAL
ENRIAT - Printing House, 2848 1,709 5,980 - =
HE=FE69% 6 Duddell Street,
b EL 339 5% IL 339
HEHE 15 - 1 Duddell Street, 2848 2,340 6,616 - -
ANHLER 731055 IL 7310
LERRAT Baskerville House, 2880 1,473 3,379 = =
EMET225% - 22 |ce House Street,
NHBER 644 5% IL 644
BITERITAE - Standard Chartered 2854 4,814 23,730 - 16
fEEiEP 4-4A%% © Bank Building,
EEHER 103 57 4-4A Des Voeux Road Central,
AR K BER Sections A&B of ML 103
) 5782 N B AT CAUSEWAY BAY AND WAN CHAI
BEF L Hang Lung Centre, 2864 8,777 22,131 = 126
BEHFA2-205% © 2-20 Paterson Street,
NHLER 524 5% I IL 524 & IL 749
74958
BEY - Fashion Walk, 2842, 2864 31,072 = 7,935 -
BEHE - E#E - Paterson Street, & 2868
sSEAMERE Houston Street,
hnEfy - =t 1EAT - Great George Street,
HITE Cleveland Street, Kingston
TS EHER 231 5% Street, Gloucester Road,
N 5255 MHBER ML 231 & ML 52,
46955 2 47055 IL 469 & IL 470
Il Shui On Centre, 2060* - 16,313 - 42
155284 - 15/F-28/F,
BB 6-855 6-8 Harbour Road,
N HLER 8633 5 IL 8633
BZ1a (I E0m) KORNHILL (QUARRY BAY)
= Kornhill Plaza, 2059* 53,080 10,577 = 1,069
RILE1-25% 1-2 Kornhill Road,
b 8566 57 IL 8566
EEE - Kornhill Apartments, 2059* - - 35,275 -
ERILZE 258 - 2 Kornhill Road,
b 8566 5% IL 8566
* AIEHE+RF



mEmER(CERR)
Total Gross Floor Area (sg. m.)

N =95
T£/#NE HFEEREMR BHiuEAE
Ith 22 Office and  Residential No. of
i S HR Gk Industrial/ and Car Park
i 2k Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
FE(E) HONG KONG (Continued)
WTE R L& THE PEAK AND MID-LEVELS
WIEES - The Peak Galleria, 2047 12,446 - — 493
IITEE 11855 - 118 Peak Road,
T 2B 40 EE 357 RBL 3
TEEZ Nos. 283, 2078 & 2886 — — 558 25
2-35REE —FE - Garden Terrace,
E | LTRE AR - Block 2,
b L 896 57 & 8A Old Peak Road,
28505% IL 896 & IL 2850
=z The Summit, 2047 = = 15,225 54
AEPB41CHE - 41C Stubbs Road,
N HLER 887055 IL 8870
eoketea] HONG KONG SOUTH
BERE Burnside Villa, 2072 = = 9,212 89
MEE 9 - 9 South Bay Road,
T 2P EX 994 5% RBL 994
i A MONGKOK
HEATLE—H - Argyle Centre, Phase |, 2060 64 - _ _
HE 6885k 688 Nathan Road,
JUBE A ER KIL 1262
12625%
TR L Grand Plaza, 2060 20,905 31,251 = 40
BB 62557 625 & 639 Nathan Road,
% 6395% - KIL 10234 &
JUBE A ER KIL 10246
10234 55 &2 10246 5%
BRAE - Hang Tung Building, 2045* - - - 1,000
ERE1112-11205% - 1112-1120 Canton Road,
TUBE A ER KIL 9708
9708%5%
L ATSESN WY Park-In Commercial Centre/ 2044* 7,454 30,205 - 478
K&y Gala Place,
BT E 5655 56 Dundas Street,
TLEE A ER KIL 9590
95905%
RFEREETR L+ Hollywood Plaza, 2047 9,139 17,941 = -
HHBE6105% 610 Nathan Road,
JUBEIHEER KIL 11024
11024 5%
2l Carmel-on-the-Hill, 2050 2,131 - - 11
MEREISR 9 Carmel Village Street,
TLEE A ER KIL 11122
111225%

* ATEHEtTRE

With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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C FEREMEE)
Major Investment Properties (Continued)

MR-ZT——F+—-F=+—H At December 31, 2012

wEmEE(EAXK)
Total Gross Floor Area (sq. m.)
N =95
T/ E HFEREM HUHA
thE2 Office and  Residential No. of
=i S H Gk Industrial/ and Car Park
HhEh Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
(&) HONG KONG (Continued)
B EPNGiEWAN- TSIM SHA TSUI AND WEST KOWLOON
BER L Grand Centre, 2038 3,688 7,198 - -
#HEFTE8Y © 8 Humphreys Avenue,
JUBE A HIER KIL 7725 & KIL 8026
772557 1% 80265
BERERTEE Hanford Fashion, 2037 1,444 4,891 = =
TZCE221B-E9E - 221B-E Nathan Road,
NBERHIER 106195 KIL 10619 & KIL 8132
¥ 81325%
FEX AquaMarine, 2050 22,350 = = 494
IREXFE 85K - 8 Sham Shing Road,
M LRE A ER NKIL 6338
633835%
IR The Long Beach, 2050 20,174 = - 390
JErEE SR 8 Hoi Fai Road,
JLEE A ER KIL 11152
111525%
HGE £ NGAU TAU KOK
AR Amoy Plaza, 2047 49,006 - = 620
HEEABETTH 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
¥ BENHEER 535% - NKIL 53, NKIL 1482,
148255 ~ 266055 % NKIL 2660 & NKIL 3947
3947 %%
EARLIERL - Amoycan Industrial Centre, 2047 = 6,547 = -
HEEMABTR 7 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
BRI HIER NKIL 1744
174455
28 KWAI CHUNG
ZEER - Laichikok Bay Garden, 2047 3,109 = - 172

#2138 1A1 - 1A2 - Shops 1A1, 1A2,
5A - 6A K 6B + 5A, 6A & 6B,
BIE45 45kER  Lai King Hill Road,
33365 Lot 3336 of SD 4
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REEEE (ERR)
Total Gross Floor Area” (sg. m.)

WRER
122 T&/#0E EEREMN HAUHA
s 4 1A Office and  Residential No. of
Lease Gk Industrial/ and Car Park
2k Location Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
Lig SHANGHAI
TBIEEREES Grand Gateway 66, 2043 120,000 - - 835
TSRS 1 5% 1 Hong Qiao Lu,
TREER Xuhui District
’E%E% 0 Plaza 66, 2044 53,700 159,600 - 804
FMRPaE%12665% © 1266 Nan Jing Xi Lu,
Hzm Jing’an District
& SHENYANG
SWERES - Palace 66, 2057 109,300 - - 864
FRATRS 12855 128 Zhongjie Lu,
& [ Shenhe District
M EREES - Forum 66, 2078 101,960 - - 2,139
SERE Qingnian Da Jie,
&R Shenhe District
ER JINAN
BEES Parc 66, 2059 171,000 - - 789
SIREE1885% 188 Quancheng Lu,
N Lixia District

f BENE MR B EEE

Including gross floor area above and below ground
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Turnover

BEEET
HK$ million
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2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 7-12/ 2011%* 2012
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73 803 A
Segment Profit

AR
HK$ million

— 10,000

—— 8,000
B $5,742
— 6,000 million
(e B B EEmERAE
Hong Kong | Hong Kong
leasing | leasing
W A% B PR
HE — 2,000 Gich-
Mainland China | Mainland China
leasing — leasing
W YEHE - W WEHE
Property sales ) Property sales

2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 7-12/ 2011* 2012
2009" 2010° 2011 2011*

A Financial years ended June 30

*

6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end
date from June 30 to December 31

# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

REVIEW OF 2012 FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group changed its financial year end date from June 30 to
December 31 at the end of 2011. Accordingly, the 2012 financial
period covered the 12 months ended December 31, 2012 whereas the
preceding financial period covered the six months ended December
31, 2011 (“the 2011 financial period”). To make a more meaningful
comparison of the financial results between 2012 and 2011, we
also requested our auditor, KPMG, to audit the results covering the
12-month period from January 1 to December 31, 2011 (“the last
corresponding period”).

Turnover increased by 140% to HK$7,372 million; and net profit
attributable to shareholders and earnings per share soared by 234% to
HK$8,395 million and 236% to HK$1.88, respectively, when compared
with the 2011 financial period.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.57 per share, making
a total dividend of HK$0.74 per share for 2012. For the six months
ended December 31, 2011, we paid HK$0.36 per share.

Against the last corresponding period, turnover and net profit
attributable to shareholders increased by 29% and 72%, respectively.
Earnings per share also increased by 72%. The significant increases
were mainly due to continuous growth in leasing income as well as
increases in property sales and gain on disposal of certain non-core
investment properties during the year.

The underlying net profit attributable to shareholders, being profit after
taxation without taking into account the net revaluation gain, amounted
to HK$6,178 million, increased by 274% and 98%, respectively, against
the 2011 financial period and the last corresponding period.

Our core business, property leasing in Hong Kong and mainland
China, continued to achieve pleasing results against the backdrop
of global economic uncertainty. Rental turnover and leasing profit
increased by 112% and 113% to HK$6,098 million and HK$4,896
million, respectively, against the 2011 financial period. The growth
in rental turnover and leasing profit was 10% and 11%, respectively,
when compared with the last corresponding period. When excluding
the effect of non-core investment properties disposed of during 2012,
the overall rental growth between the two comparable periods would
be 14%.

Rental turnover and operating profit generated from Hong Kong
investment properties grew by 108% and 105% to HK$3,016 million
and HK$2,525 million, respectively, when compared with the 2011
financial period. Against the last corresponding period, the increases in
such rental turnover and operating profit were 3% and 4%, respectively.
Rental turnover would be up 9% in 2012 should the effect of the
disposed investment properties be excluded.

With the grand opening of Forum 66 shopping mall in late September
2012, mainland China investment properties achieved 121% growth
to HK$3,082 million for rental turnover and HK$2,371 million for
operating profit when compared with the 2011 financial period.
Against the last corresponding period, growth in rental turnover and
operating profit was 18%.
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Interest Income and Expenses
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6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end
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# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

The sales of nine units of The HarbourSide and 108 units of The Long
Beach, etc. generated turnover and profit of HK$1,274 million and
HK$846 million, respectively. Property sales in both the 2011 financial
period and the last corresponding period amounted to HK$193 million
only.

There was also a significant increase in Other Income mainly attributable
to gain on disposal of certain non-core investment properties and a
sizable increase in interest income.

Disposal of non-core investment properties in Hong Kong during
2012 recorded a turnover of HK$5,303 million. The related gain on
disposal amounted to HK$2,148 million was recorded as part of
Other Income. No such disposal was made in 2011.

As a result of the growth in rental turnover, increases in property sales
and gain on disposal of non-core investment properties, operating profit
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grew 233% to HK$7,890 million against the 2011 financial period. When
compared with the last corresponding period, the growth was 77%.

Increase in fair value of investment properties amounted to HK$2,522
million, compared to HK$964 million in the 2011 financial period and
HK$2,016 million in the last corresponding period.

The Group had significant cash balances, with the majority held in
Renminbi (RMB) deposits to hedge against future RMB denominated
construction payments on the Mainland. Benefiting from the higher
interest rates of the RMB than Hong Kong dollars (HKD) deposits,
net interest income of HK$273 million was recorded for the year, an
increase of 269% and 65%, respectively, against the 2011 financial
period and the last corresponding period.

Taxation charges for the year amounted to HK$1,249 million,
increased by 133% against the 2011 financial period and 18% against
the last corresponding period, in line with the higher rental turnover
and development profit.

As a result, profit for the year increased by 226% to HK$8,920 million
when compared with the 2011 financial period. Against the last
corresponding period, profit for the year rose 67%.

REVIEW OF 2012 FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group maintained a strong balance sheet with ample financial
resources and liquidity at appropriate currency mix to meet all
obligations as they fall due.

Investment properties rose by 5% during the year to HK$98,223 million.
This is the net result of inclusion of Forum 66 shopping mall upon its
opening in late September 2012, moderate gains on revaluation of the
leasing portfolio and after the disposal of certain non-core investment
properties in Hong Kong during the year.

Taking advantage of the Group’s relatively low borrowing cost and
a much higher RMB bank deposit rate compared to HKD rate, we
adopted a policy of maintaining a high cash balance and converting
the majority of its cash surplus to RMB deposits as a natural hedge for
its future RMB equity injections and construction payment obligations
on the Mainland. As at December 31, 2012, the Group had cash and
bank deposits of HK$36,025 million, an increase of HK$12,293 million
when compared with a year ago. The cash in hand was predominantly
held in RMB deposits.
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o

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

A Financial years ended June 30

* 6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end

date from June 30 to December 31

# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

Total capital commitments of the Group as at December 31, 2012
amounted to HK$34,871 million. Those commitments were mainly
RMB denominated land and construction costs in respect of projects
under development on the Mainland.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group issued in total an
equivalent of HK$5,799 million 10-year fixed rate bonds with coupon
rates ranged from 3.55% to 4.75% per annum through the Medium
Term Note (MTN) Program. Proceeds from the bond issue were mainly
used to repay some short-term bank borrowings.

The MTN Program is part of the Group’s long-term financial management
strategy to add an alternate source of debt financing to bank borrowings.
Leveraging on the prevailing favorable bond market conditions like high
liquidity and low interest rates, raising fixed rate and longer term debts
through bond issues provided the Group with more financial flexibility
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and further enhanced its ability in managing interest rate volatility and
re-financing risks in the future. The average maturity period of the debt
portfolio has been lengthened to 4.5 years from 3.5 years during the year.

The current market conditions provide a window for the Group to tap
the bond market to mitigate various financial risks and to convert the
surplus cash to RMB deposits. As a result, it could earn higher interest
income while at the same time benefiting from a natural currency hedge
for the Group’s capital commitments on various Mainland projects.

Consequently, both the cash and borrowings of the Group increased
during the year. After netting off total borrowings, all unsecured, of
HK$29,736 million, the Group had net cash of HK$6,289 million as at
December 31, 2012. As at December 31, 2011, net cash of the Group
amounted to HK$2,998 million.

The Group will continue to adopt a prudent and sound financial
management strategy to support its long-term growth. With a strong
balance sheet and cash generation capability, the Group is well positioned
to buy more land and seize new investment opportunities when arise.
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LAND BANK ACQUISITION AND

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Taking a long-term view towards growth, the Group’s development
strategy for investment projects in mainland China is minimally affected
by short-term market fluctuations and government policies.

Our expansion strategy is to establish and maintain a solid land
bank for property development. Each development project or land
acquisition is carefully scrutinized for related risks and returns —
including consideration and assessment of relevant government
policies, the level of local government support, economic data as well
as the adequacy of infrastructure support in the surrounding area. If
these requirements are met, purchases and projects are presented to
the Board for final approval.

Upon launch, the project team carefully monitors the progress of each
project, evaluating and approving any important design or construction
changes. Management actively supervises projects and conducts
regular progress reviews to maintain a clear overall picture, which
facilitates prompt decision making. Each project designates a team of
skilled and experienced professionals who are tasked with keeping the
Board fully informed through regular and comprehensive reports.

The cost and quality control of construction work are crucial to the
Group. With several large development projects in the pipeline, these
elements will account for a significant portion of project financials.
Management will continue to enhance controls over the selection of
contractors as well as material suppliers and monitoring of work quality
to maintain high standards of excellence.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Our stringent internal controls are marked by clear guidelines and a
well-established control environment of close and regular management
reviews, segregation of duties, budgetary controls, well-defined
and specific limits for various levels of authority, whistle-blowing
mechanisms, Codes of Conduct for both staff and trading partners, as
well as appropriate training for staff development.

Further enhancing our corporate governance and transparency — in
addition to the requirements on Directors’ security transactions — all
executive staff are required to submit a signed declaration of compliance
with the Code of Conduct regarding “Transactions in the Company’s
shares” on a half-yearly basis.

TREASURY RISK

Although the scale and scope of the Group’s activities expose us to
a variety of treasury risks, we have made every effort to mitigate them
through the Group’s well-established treasury policies.

(a) Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange

As most of the Group’s borrowings are floating-rate bank loans, we
are exposed to interest rate movements. Interest rate risks are closely
monitored and, as and when appropriate, the Group may adopt
measures to manage associated risks — including but not limited to the

issuance of fixed rate bonds and interest rate swaps.

Renminbi exchange rate risks arising from the Group’s investments
on the Mainland are prudently managed for maximum protection. An
appropriate level of Renminbi resources are maintained to meet the
Group’s capital requirements for ongoing Mainland projects. Recurring
rental turnover in Renminbi also provides a natural hedge for these
investments.

The US Dollar exchange rate risk faced by the Group is not considered
significant as its net exposure to US Dollar is moderate and HK Dollar
is pegged to US Dollar under the prevailing pegged rate regime in
Hong Kong.
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(b) Cash Management, Funding and Liquidity

The Group’s cash and financing are managed and controlled at the
corporate level. It helps negotiate better borrowing terms and facilitate
coherent financial risk management.

The Group ensures that sufficient funds, banking facilities and multiple
fund raising channels are available to meet obligations as and when
needed. The maturity of deposits and loans is also carefully planned
and managed to reduce liquidity risk. During the year, average debts
maturity of the Group has been lengthened as a result of issuance of
long-dated bonds. Given the Medium Term Note Program in place, we
have flexibility to tap the bond market if we so choose. We will closely
monitor the markets to manage repayment and refinancing risks in a
prudent manner.

(c) Credit/Counterparty

Credit/counterparty risk exposure is primarily in the areas of rents
receivable, installments receivable relating to property sales and
deposits placed with banks.

Rents receivable risks are mitigated through credit assessments of
prospective tenants, collection of rental deposits and close monitoring
of outstanding rent. Receivables related to property sales are protected
with collateral on the properties in question. The Group assigns
exposure limits on banks to mitigate concentration risks, and deposits
are made only with reputable banks that have sound financial strength
and/or good credit ratings.

(d) Use of Derivatives
Derivative instruments are used only for hedging purpose. Group
policies do not permit speculative derivative transactions.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL RISK

The Group closely monitors market trends and the overall business
environment to ensure that our properties maintain the highest market
standards and a keen competitive edge. Regular maintenance and
renovation uphold the safety and quality of our properties, and the
Group has adequate insurance coverage in place to protect properties
against accidental losses and/or other hazards. Established internal
controls are in place to safeguard our assets and reputation against
any potential liabilities.

A designated team of skilled and experienced professionals closely
monitors the overall design, progress and capital expenditure involved
in major maintenance and renovation projects. They report regularly
to the Asset Enhancement Committee which comprises senior
management representatives from multiple disciplines.

An independent team of internal auditors frequently reviews and tests
key aspects of business critical internal control systems to ensure
that our policies are adequate, cost-effective and stringently adhered
to. As part of the Group’s systems continuity plan, off-site back-up
procedures are in place to safeguard against any potential loss of
computer data.

We Do It Right means not only acting responsibly as a global corporate
citizen, but also meeting and staying ahead of market expectations.
The Group continuously upgrades our environmental conservation
measures to achieve these goals.

PEOPLE RISK

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works to ensure the
Group’s remuneration levels for directors and senior management
are competitive and proper management succession plan is in place.
Employee remuneration packages are evaluated and monitored
against market trends to make sure we attract and retain top market
talent. We also maximize staff potential by providing financial support
for additional training through recognized professional programs.
With a focus on two-way staff dialogue, we have clearly established
channels of communication and an accessible grievance reporting
system for all levels of staff. The Group also conducts exit interviews
with departing staff to gather feedback and relevant information for
future improvement.

89



2012

—_H FEB
ERMWE-_ZT—T/——F
EFEREEBTMerComm,
Inc. EMHME =+ 7 EBEE
MERCURY Awards ¥ - &8
[FREERIBIBIEGERAA]
R EERAAR] -

HLP is named
Q the Silver
- Winner in the
ﬂwﬂ' * category of
¥ w  “Annual Reports
it
Siber Wotner Overall
S Presentation:
_ mmeese  Holdings &
Property —
4 Developments”
(o, its 2010/11

Annual Report
at the 25" MERCURY Awards
organized by MerComm, Inc.
of the United States.

7~ A JUN

= A MAR
BErEMERCEMNGEE
BYERN T ——FESE
—EDMNEBERSKEFR
BRI &EREEBELA
(BB R - EREMESE
FHELEBRAKEEAEER
[DMZRETBRAR(REE
BAR)] o

HLP is named the “Best
Investor Relations Company
(Hong Kong)” at the 2" Asian
Excellence Recognition Awards
2012 hosted by Corporate
Governance Asia. Mr. Philip
Chen, Managing Director

of HLP, is also honored as
“Asia’s Best CEOs (Investor
Relations)”.
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HLP’s monthly staff
newsletter Connections wins
the Bronze Award in the
prestigious ASTRID Awards
2012 in the category of
“Employee Publications —
Staff Publications” bestowed
by MerComm, Inc. of the
United States.
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Center 66 in Wuxi is awarded
the “Best Mixed-use
Architecture in Asia Pacific”
and the “Five-star Best
Mixed-use Architecture in
China” titles in the prestigious
2012 Asia Pacific Property
Awards under the International
Property Awards program.
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HLP is awarded “The Best
of Asia” title in the Corporate
Governance Asia
Recognition Awards
2012 presented
by Corporate
Governance Asia.
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HLP is voted the “Best
Corporate Governance”

and “Best Corporate Social
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HLP wins the
Autodesk Hong
Kong BIM
Awards 2012

for innovative
application of

the Building
Information Modeling
technology on its luxury
house development under
construction on Blue Pool
Road in Happy Valley.
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Plaza 66 (Office Tower 1)
in Shanghai is awarded
the “Precertification under
Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design
(LEED) for Core and Shell
Development — Gold Leve
issued by the U.S. Green
Building Council.
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HLP is selected
as one of the
constituent companies of

the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index and the
Hang Seng (Mainland and HK)
Corporate Sustainability Index
for the third straight year.
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Grand opening of Forum 66 in

Shenyang.
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Parc 66 in Jinan clinches the
Gold Award in the 2012 ICSC
Asia Pacific Shopping Center
Awards in the category of
“New Developments” under
the section of “Design and
Development”, as well as the
Gold Award for “Sustainable
Design”.
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Groundbreaking ceremony of
Spring City 66 in Kunming.
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Parc 66 in Jinan
clinches the Silver
Award in the
category of “Best
Retail and Leisure
Development” at
the MIPIM Asia
Awards 2012.
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The 2011 Annual Reports of
HLG and HLP win the Bronze
Prize and Honourable Mention
award, respectively, in the
“General Category” of the
2012 Best Annual Reports
Awards held by the Hong Kong
Management Association.
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Grand Gateway 66 (Office
Tower 1) in Shanghai is
awarded the “Precertification
under Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design
(LEED) for Core and Shell
Development — Gold Level”
issued by the U.S. Green
Building Council.
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Plaza 66 (Office Tower 2)

in Shanghai is awarded
the “Precertification under
Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design
(LEED) for Core and Shell
Development — Gold Level”
issued by the U.S. Green
Building Council.
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Forum 66 in Shenyang is
awarded the “Certification
under Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design
(LEED) for Core and Shell
Development — Gold Level”
issued by the U.S. Green
Building Council.
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i66, HLP’s bilingual style
magazine produced for its
shopping malls in mainland
China, clinches the Award of
Merit at the 24" Hong Kong
Print Awards in the category of
“Magazine — Not For Sale”.
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The sophisticated clockwork

of the perpetual calendar
tracks the dates over years.
Hang Lung's commitment
to environmental protection,
community and staff
relationships is a multi-year
process best measured by
lasting and long-term impact.
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SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH

BRABBHEEME  FTRINEEARRE
BRRERE - BRILE  HEAT

We live up to our responsibility to society by
committing to the principles of good corporate
citizenship, environmental protection, positive
socialimpact and continuous staff development.
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At Hang Lung, we view sustainability as complementary and
enabling for our business strategy. We seek to build long-
term, iconic buildings in growing cities. Demonstrating
good governance, building and maintaining environmentally
efficient properties, and enhancing our human capital help
the Group's business operations and the wider community.

2012%F EGH TN EREESEERGERERS
B3 [RERIRIFRAT LB — o0 RINRER ]
%ﬁﬂbﬂ

In 2012, Forum 66 in Shenyang is awarded the
“Certification under Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell
Development — Gold Level” issued by the U.S. Green
Building Council
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Our priorities for 2012 in the area of sustainability were to continue to

pursue green building initiatives and further improve various aspects
of our human resources management in light of our rapid staff
growth. We also decided to put in place a new structure to guide
our sustainability journey and incorporate this into our executives’
performance evaluations.

OUR BUILDINGS

As a property developer, the largest impact we have on the
environment is through the buildings we construct and operate. In line
with our long-term business model, building to own and building to last,
environmental and efficiency considerations are embedded throughout

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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We communicate with our staff through staff briefing
sessions

the life-cycle of our buildings, from design and construction to operation
and maintenance. This translates into the adoption of internationally
recognized environmental certification for all new buildings.

We benchmark the environmental performance of our buildings against
the Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification
issued by the U.S. Green Building Council. In all of our projects in
mainland China, we plan, design, construct and operate with the LEED
gold rating as the ultimate target. Our intention is to create iconic
properties that will appeal to users and also to make Hang Lung a
preferred partner for municipalities.

At the same time, we also look for opportunities to make our operating
properties more energy efficient. Since 2006, we have upgraded or
replaced air conditioning chillers at 12 buildings in Hong Kong. In 2012,
we completed the replacement in Grand Centre at a cost of HK$14.8
million, with plans to invest a further HK$147.5 million to replace chiller
plants in 10 more of our buildings in Hong Kong.

As a result of our energy efficiency initiatives over time, we achieved
optimal energy savings at all our properties.

OUR PEOPLE

Hang Lung employs over 3,300 staff in Hong Kong and mainland China
and we are in a period of rapid growth as more properties come into
operation. We therefore need to be able to simultaneously attract and
retain talented staff and integrate them into our corporate culture.

To do this, we have invested heavily in training and seek to create a
working environment that stands out as a desirable place to be. In
2012, we invested over 66,000 hours in training for our employees on
a range of topics.

We engage regularly with our staff through staff briefing sessions,
department and team meetings, conferences and focus groups and
the “MD Lunch” where staff members have an informal lunch with the
Managing Director. We communicate key initiatives and projects of the
Group to our staff through the monthly staff newsletter, Connections.

We have policies and procedures in place to guide our staff conduct.

We ensure that our employees strictly follow our Code of Conduct and
we do not hesitate to take action when appropriate.
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Staff members from Hong Kong and mainland China join “Hang Lung As One” volunteer team to contribute to the community
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& SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

BIEFESRMNTRARLTED - RIETIFRAETNTE
Hang Lung Social Club promotes work-life balance through different
recreational activities

OUR COMMUNITIES
We see connectedness with the communities that we serve as a driver
for making Hang Lung a developer of choice.

We contribute to the community by providing access to our facilities
and buildings to community members, supporting our community
partners and organizing staff volunteer activities.

In 2012, we donated HK$14 million directly to non-profit organizations
and also made space in our venues available for a range of charitable
activities. We continue to encourage our employees to participate

in volunteer activities. Our volunteer team, “Hang Lung As One”,

EERERTE

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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organized a range of activities in Hong Kong and mainland China. In
total, our volunteers clocked up 3,870 hours of service over the year.

We launched the Hang Lung Green LEEDers program which allowed
students to gain a better understanding of sustainability through
a series of activities focusing on low-carbon living, energy saving,
eco-experience and waste diversion, fostering a commitment to
environmental protection of the next generation.
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In 2012, our volunteers clocked up 3,870 hours
of service

HFIE DA EE RRS
RF—MERBEMERE - YARLABR
Bl BOBBEAREEROKRE - —EMN
o - B ER R SRR B AT R R
TYEMBAE - BT 56  EEMBERER
BURTAREERES - TREZH
REEHREBNCNEIIRE  EFHE
2 TR MVE A HEE RS BN TN
RE -

BEELARMETSERRTEN
THE - WHRNNERRKEFILIRE - AIE
f PA R AT B GE - JRE P A Bk
B ARASEAREZRR TENFS - &
SHRPNAFEERES

#3000 B E L REARAEKAELIHN—H T
Over 300 staff and their family members have joined our volunteer team

OUR FIRST SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Our commitment to honesty and transparency extends to our
sustainability performance. Whereas previously, Hang Lung reported
on its sustainability performance in its Annual Report, this year, the
Group will publish its first standalone Sustainability Report, which is
in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative G3.1 reporting
guidelines. This provides a more comprehensive review of our
sustainability performance for our stakeholders.

The Report communicates our sustainability efforts and strives to
provide an honest account of our commitment to the environment,
community and our people, and the challenges we face while upholding
this commitment. For more details of our sustainability performance,
please refer to our Sustainability Report.
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The protractor and compass

are designed to create and
measure one of nature’s most
perfect shapes, the circle. Our
goal at Hang Lung is to deliver
360° oversight of the business
through perfect governance
and management controls.
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We Do It Right by maintaining sophisticated
corporate governance and a professional
management system, earning the trust
and respect of our stakeholders.
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2012
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Announcement of interim results

JLA SEP
R3S R EANS B

Interim dividend paid

2013

—E——FtA=+—H
July 31, 2012

—E——-FNA+=H
September 13, 2012

— H JAN
BEEE N

Announcement of annual results

P9 A APR

BUESER B \ N
(BAHERRBAFAERNE FREME)

Latest time for lodging transfers
(for attending and voting at annual general meeting)

iEmEkmiBdE R
(HEFRRBFAGRNE LREMS)
Closure of share register
(for attending and voting at annual general meeting)

IRERBERE
(BEHB2HAFRN 2 RRAFASRE)

Annual general meeting
(Details are set out in the notice of annual general meeting
accompanying this annual report)

BLEHERO B (AR EME)

Latest time for lodging transfers (for final dividend)

BiEmEkmnBsER(ARBEREmE)
Closure of share register (for final dividend)

A A MAY

RS e 2 RS
Proposed final dividend payable

—Z-=f—A=t+—8
January 31, 2013

—ZT—=#mMA+HA
TFmE =15
4:30 p.m. on April 15, 2013

—E-=FMA+BET/\H
(BERMABEEA)
April 16 to 18, 2013
(both days inclusive)

—2-=5mA+NR
FFRIE
10:00 a.m. on April 18, 2013

—E=—FWmA=+=H
TFmEE =15
4:30 p.m. on April 23, 2013

—E-=#p/=+mA
April 24, 2013

VN
May 8, 2013
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ERE AT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEERES OUR STRONG BELIEF IN GOVERNANCE
1BEE(E - @mB NNE B ARMETE  Hang Lung firmly believes that strong governance is the foundation
A EHRMoEKRTEBEZ - AEFH to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to its

REFANRIALR - BB MESR  stakeholders over the long term. The core of the governance structure
(TEER))  BRIMEEEBEIZL o ] is an effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”) which is
BOEHSKENDESHRIZE 28  committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
RERES ] - AR AMBERETE - I sound internal control and effective risk management to enhance
BHRIESERAE  REM - A= HK%EH  transparency, accountability, integrity and honesty, in order to earn the
& BhEBREMEMIFNENED - confidence from our shareholders and other stakeholders.

TRERRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

IR EE I D E
Shareholders and Other Stakeholders
A

BEBAE Transparency
& 14 Accountability
AME 7 Integrity
B FE Honesty

BEH
Board of

Directors

HNIEAZEREM NAWE WITEEE RENGMEES BZEEg BB ETAM
External Company Executive Nomination and Audit ~<— Internal
Auditor Secretary Committee Remuneration Committee Committee Auditor
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A SOUND CORPORATE CULTURE

As good governance is essential to corporate success, we instill the
core principle of good corporate governance into our corporate culture.
A sound governance culture starts from the root. Hang Lung maintains
a code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”) which every staff and
supplier is made aware of and required to adhere to.

PROFESSIONAL AND RESPONSIBLE MANAGEMENT
The Board comprises professionals from different facets of society
who bring in a wide range of business and financial experience and
expertise to the Board. The Board includes a balanced composition
of Executive and Non-Executive Directors so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. To improve on the function of the Board, three
committees, namely the Executive Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee had been set up to take up
different responsibilities.

PRUDENT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognizes the various risk factors it will face in its
operations, and properly deals with them in a manageable manner by
setting a good internal control environment and making improvements
where necessary. Further explanations are disclosed hereunder.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The following are the major aspects of our corporate governance
practice in addition to the code provisions and some recommended
best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(effective until March 31, 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code
(effective from April 1, 2012) (the “New Corporate Governance Code”)
(both, the “CG Code”) as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Six regular Board Meetings were held in 2012.

A strong independent element is maintained on the Board as over half of the
Board is represented by Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Management is invited to join the Board Meetings, where appropriate, to
provide appropriate information to enable the Directors to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises only Independent
Non-Executive Directors to ensure no Executive Director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration package.

The Audit Committee met the external auditor more than two times without
the presence of the Executive Board members in 2012.

Since 2008, the Company has announced its interim and annual results within
one month from the end of the accounting period.

Our Internal Audit Department is independent of our operation and accounting
functions.

The Company has adopted a corporate Code of Conduct since 1994, which
is applicable to all staff and Directors. The Code of Conduct contains our
whistle blowing policy.

The Company continuously enhances its website as a means of communication
with stakeholders. Principal corporate governance structures, newsletters and
webcast of analysts’ briefings are available on its website.

103



»

ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ?&% CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

.

OEFER
1. #RK R IHAE
BEERAEATRKE

s —ERHUTEZF NAARREEL -
BREI1EIEE RAIZ S R4

s —HIWITEF ARERKLE R

o REBFIUFNITEF  NRIARHE
4 BEEEEL  BEHEL R
Lokt  BEREIHRRAHESL
o REHEBEEZBMEERE
RAME LV BEEES - UARE
ENEELMBERRAEERFELE
B o

BRELERKFEREDFIINR -T—=
Ft-AtT-ART—HBEERERTHR
TEE -

RRBIREBEBRX G REEMERAR (&
BRSMDBERESRFTNESEE - 7
HAENBE  UNERERT B
HITEE - EEHNEEABRAFHRE—
BZTHEE-—B=TERNREE - W&RF
RARAEE -

E=ZRAR(ETERA)
o MRBEEZEEN
o RERMZEBRE

s HMRESMEBEEREAEMNEBR
BE 2 HETT - I

o MERMBMAIMEEHERE XK
BIENAEMERRBTE -

PAIBEEEVRRAARAKRELNRARAF
SR AR REHE (R RO BB N L Ath B A RHE -

104 | BEELARAT —T——FER

(1) The Board
1. Composition and Functions
The Board currently comprises ten persons:

e three Executive Directors, namely, Mr Ronnie C. Chan, Mr Philip
N.L. Chen and Mr H.C. Ho;

° one Non-Executive Director, Mr Nelson W.L. Yuen; and

° six Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr S.S. Yin, Mr
Ronald J. Arculli, Dr H.K. Cheng, Ms Laura L.Y. Chen, Prof P.W.
Liu and Mr Dominic C.F. Ho. They possess appropriate academic
and professional qualifications or related financial management
expertise and have brought a wide range of business and financial
experience to the Board.

Mr William P.Y. Ko and Mr Henry T.Y. Yiu resigned as Executive
Directors of the Company on December 12 and 11, 2012 respectively.

An updated list of Board members identifying their roles and

functions and whether they are independent non-executive
directors is maintained on our website and the website of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEx”). Their biographical
details, disclosed on pages 124 to 130 of this annual report, are also

maintained on our website.

The Board is responsible for, among other things:
e ensuring continuity of leadership;

e development of sound business strategies;

e availability of adequate capital and managerial resources to
implement the business strategies adopted; and

e adequacy of systems of financial and internal controls and conduct
of business in conformity with applicable laws and regulations.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategies and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments. They gave the Board and the committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation.

The Non-Executive Director, Mr Nelson W.L. Yuen and Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Ms Laura L.Y. Chen and Mr. Dominic C.F.
Ho, were unable to attend the annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company held on April 18, 2012 as provided for in code provision
A.6.7 as they had overseas engagements.

In 2012, six regular Board Meetings were held. Two Board Meetings
were held outside Hong Kong during two offsite Board trips in mainland
China including one visit to Shenyang for the opening ceremony of
Forum 66.

Details of Directors’ attendance records in 2012 are set out below:

HifE /24T 8 % Meetings Attended/Held
RERFHZES

FEIZZEE  Nomination & —E——fF

BEER Audit Remuneration BEXRE
2= Directors Board Committee Committee 2012 AGM
BN EHITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
ER e B S.S. Yin 6/6 TEA N/A TEA N/A 1/1
BEE Ronald J. Arculli 4/6 TEA N/A 1/3 1/1
EEH H.K. Cheng 6/6 4/4 3/3 1/1
EEIS Laura L.Y. Chen 3/6 174 2/s 0/1
EiaE P.W. Liu 6/6 4/4 3/8 1/1
fr] A Dominic C.F. Ho 6/6 4/4 3/3 0/1
FHITES Non-Executive Director
RER Nelson W.L. Yuen 6/6 TER N/A TEA NA 0/1
HITES Executive Directors
BRECR Ronnie C. Chan 6/6 TEFA N/A TEA N/A 1/1
PREI4E Philip N.L. Chen 6/6 TERA N/A TER N/A 1/1
A=) H.C. Ho 6/6 TEA N/A TEA NA 1/1
[Slsk e William P.Y. Ko* 6/6 TEA N/A TEA N/A 1/1
HFE - Henry T.Y. Yiu* 6/6 TER N/A NEA N/A 1/1

* SEBEEERKFEEESIR-_ZE——F+_AT_BRT—HEHEANTES - HEWEBTEERGHE -
Mr William P.Y. Ko and Mr Henry T.Y. Yiu resigned as Executive Directors on December 12 and 11, 2012 respectively. No Board Meetings were

held thereafter.
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All Directors can give notice to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
if they intend to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings.
Full Board or Committee papers will be sent to all Directors or
Committee members at least three days before the intended date of a
Board Meeting or Committee Meeting respectively. Management also
supplies the Board and its Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before the Board and its Committees
for approval. Management is also invited to join Board Meetings
where appropriate.

Furthermore, management provides all Board members with monthly
updates which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties under the Listing Rules.

All the Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to our business and make further enquiries where necessary,
and they can have separate and independent access to management.

In addition, all Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, a full time employee of the Company, who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that procedures are followed and
that all applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with. The
Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and is also a source of advice to the Chairman
and to the Board on corporate governance and the implementation of
the CG Code. The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2012.

Procedures have also been agreed by the Board to enable Directors
to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Under our articles of association, a Director shall not vote or be counted
in the quorum in respect of any contract or arrangement in which he/
she or any of his/her associates is/are materially interested.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising from
corporate activities.
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2. Chairman and Managing Director
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Managing Director to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Chairman

The Chairman, Mr Ronnie C. Chan, provides leadership for the Board.
He is responsible for ensuring that all Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear, complete
and reliable and that Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board Meetings. He also ensures that:

the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities;

e all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

e good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established; and

e appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication
with shareholders and that their views are communicated to the
Board as a whole.

He, at least annually, holds meetings with the Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the Executive
Directors being present.

He is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for
each Board Meeting. He takes into account, where appropriate, any
matters proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda, or
delegates such responsibility to the Company Secretary.

He encourages all Directors to make an active contribution to the
Board’s affairs and takes the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company. He encourages Directors with different
views to voice their concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion on
issues for the Board to deliberate and reach decisions.

He promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contributions of Non-Executive Directors in particular and
ensures constructive relations between Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors.
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Managing Director
The Managing Director, Mr Philip N.L. Chen, is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company and is responsible for:

e operating the business of the Company and implementing policies
and strategies adopted by the Board;

e the Company’s day-to-day management in accordance with the
instructions issued by the Board;

e developing strategic operating plans that reflect the objectives and
priorities established by the Board and maintaining operational
performance; and

e ensuring the adequacy of financial and internal control systems
and the conduct of business in conformity with applicable laws
and regulations.

The Managing Director chairs the monthly meetings of the Company’s
various operational divisions. He reports to the Board from time to time
matters of material importance.

3. Independence of Non-Executive Directors

We have received from each of our Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. We consider the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an Independent
Non-Executive Director who has served on the Board for more than
nine years will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. We will state in the notice of the AGM the reason why we
consider the Independent Non-Executive Director is still independent
and our recommendation to shareholders to vote in favor of the re-
election of such Independent Non-Executive Director.
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4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

In accordance with our articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation for re-election
by shareholders at an AGM. In addition, every Director is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and new
appointments to the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders
at the upcoming general meeting. Names of such Directors eligible for
re-election being accompanied by detailed biographies will be stated in
the notice of the general meeting.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are appointed for specific terms, which coincide with their expected
dates of retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

5. Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will meet with other fellow Directors and
key executives, and will receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment. Subsequently,
he/she will receive any briefing and professional development necessary
to ensure he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and full awareness of his/her responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements, and especially the Company’s business and
governance policies. The Company Secretary facilitates induction and
professional development of Directors.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
In 2012, the Company has arranged for Directors a seminar on the
topic of creating sustainable value and two offsite Board trips.
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Record of training received by each existing Director in 2012 is
summarized below:

= Directors %R Types of Training
PR RISR Ronnie C. Chan A, B, C,D
RRiME S.S.Yin A B
PREI A% Philip N.L. Chen A B,C, D
RER Nelson W.L. Yuen A B,D
BER Ronald J. Arculli A B, C
BEd H.K. Cheng A, B, D
PRE&EE Laura L.Y. Chen A B,D
BEtaE P.W. Liu AB,D
fal a2 Dominic C.F. Ho A /B, D
(GESS H.C. Ho A B,D

A HEWHNE/RE
Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B HEAH MER wmEZRKRE BERERENETEEH
Reading materials relating to general business, property development and investment,
directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C RN &/fmIBEE

Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)

D HEARER/ &2

Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)
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(11) Delegation by the Board

The Executive Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were formed in 1989, 1999 and 2003
respectively.

1. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Board of the Company was formed in
1989. Its members are all the Executive Directors of the Company, who
meet regularly to establish the strategic direction of the Company, and
to monitor the performance of management. Clear terms of reference
have been adopted by the Board, and guidelines were also set up
for certain issues requiring Board approval. Each of the Committee
members has full understanding on determining which issues require a
decision of the full Board and which are delegated by the Board to the
Committee or management.
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2. Audit Committee

An Audit Committee was established by the Board in 1999, which
now comprises four Independent Non-Executive Directors with
appropriate academic and professional qualifications or related
financial management expertise, namely Dr H.K. Cheng (Chairman of
the Committee), Ms Laura L.Y. Chen, Prof P.W. Liu and Mr Dominic
C.F. Ho. Under the CG Code, it is required that meetings are held at
least two times a year with the external auditor. Separate meetings
will also need to be held with the external auditor (in the absence
of management) as and when required. The Audit Committee has
exceeded the CG Code and has held four meetings for the purpose
of, inter alia, discussing the nature and scope of internal audit work
and assessing the Group’s internal controls in 2012. Moreover, the
Committee met the external auditor four times in 2012 without the
presence of the Executive Board members.

The terms of reference explaining the Committee’s role and authority,
which have been reviewed and revised with reference to the New
Corporate Governance Code to include duties regarding corporate
governance functions and as a minimum the specific duties as stipulated
in the Listing Rules were adopted by the Board and are available on
both our website and the website of HKEX.

The Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference; to seek any information it requires from
any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any
requests made by the Committee; to obtain outside legal or other
independent professional advice; and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise to their meetings
if necessary. Sufficient resources are provided to the Committee to
discharge its duty.

In 2012, the Audit Committee has performed, inter alia, the following:

e reviewed and obtained explanation from management and
the external auditor on the interim and annual results, including
causes of changes from the previous accounting period, effects
on the application of new accounting policies, compliance with the
Listing Rules and relevant legislation, and any audit issues, before
recommending their adoption by the Board;
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considered and proposed to the Board the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s external auditor;

considered and approved the procedures and guidelines in
employing the external auditor to perform non-audit assignments
for the Company;

received and reviewed the internal audit reports from the
Internal Auditor;

held meetings with the external auditor in the absence of
management to discuss any material audit issues;

held meetings with the Internal Auditor in private to discuss
material internal audit issues;

approved the internal audit programs for 2012 and 2013; and

carried out reviews of the internal control system of the Company
including senior management’s structure, risk management,
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and the Company’s procedures for financial
and functional reporting.

Corporate Governance Functions
reviewed and approved the Company’s policies on corporate
governance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors; and

reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee, set up in 2003, now
comprises five Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Prof P.W.
Liu (Chairman of the Committee), Mr Ronald J. Arculli, Dr H.K. Cheng,
Ms Laura L.Y. Chen and Mr Dominic C.F. Ho. Regular meetings were
held to review human resources issues, including significant changes
in the salary structure of the Group and terms and conditions affecting
Executive Directors and senior management. The Committee met three
times in 2012 to review, inter alia, the composition of Board members
and Directors’ remuneration.

The terms of reference explaining the Committee’s role, which have
been reviewed and revised with reference to the New Corporate
Governance Code to include as a minimum the specific duties as
stipulated in the Listing Rules, were adopted by the Board and can be
accessed on both our website and the website of HKEX.

The major work performed by the Committee in 2012 included
the following:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

e made recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship in view of the qualifications
and related expertise;

e made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration;

e determined the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments; and

e made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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The remuneration package of Executive Directors and senior
management, including discretionary bonus and share options, is
based on the following criteria:

individual performance;

e  skills and knowledge;

e involvement in the Group’s affairs;

e achievement of business targets; and

e performance and profitability of the Group.

The Committee also considers factors such as salaries paid by

comparable companies, time commitment and

employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

responsibilities,

Details of remuneration payable to members of the senior management
(which includes Executive Directors only) are disclosed in the note 6 on
the financial statements.

The Committee obtains benchmark reports for evaluation of market
trends and the competitive levels of remuneration being offered to
Directors and senior management. Sufficient resources are provided
to the Committee to discharge its duties. The Committee may consult
the Chairman and the Managing Director about their remuneration
proposals of other Executive Directors and has access to independent
professional advice if necessary.

4.  Management Functions

Senior management includes Executive Directors of the Company
only. Their duties were explained in the paragraph headed “Executive
Committee” above. Key executives are responsible for the day-to-
day operations and administration function of the Group under the
leadership of the Executive Directors. The Board has given clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be approved
by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the Company.
The types of decisions to be delegated by the Board to management
include implementation of the strategy and direction determined by the

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Board, operation of the Group’s businesses, preparation of financial
statements and operating budgets, and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. These arrangements will be reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate to our needs.

() Directors’ Securities Transactions and Share Interests

1. Compliance with Model Code

We have set out guidelines regarding securities transactions by
Directors under “Transactions in the Company’s Shares” in our Code of
Conduct according to the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the Code of Conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

2. Share Interests of Directors

Details of Directors’ interests in shares of the Company and our listed
parent company, Hang Lung Group Limited as at December 31, 2012
are as follows:

¥ NN EEEEERAT

The Company Hang Lung Group Limited
RIS REE
RHEE IR 2 R REEAR TR 2 IR
Number of Number of Shares Number of Number of Shares
EENE Name of Directors Shares under Option Shares under Option
FRELR Ronnie C. Chan - 36,570,000 - 11,790,000
BRiH B S.S. Yin = = = =
ogEap s Philip N.L. Chen - 14,500,000 - -
=ER Nelson W.L. Yuen = 24,320,000 - -
ELES: Ronald J. Arculli 724,346 - 1,089,975 -
B2 85 H.K. Cheng = = = =
FR&4G Laura L.Y. Chen = = = =
BiafE P.W. Liu 100,000 - - -
Epih= Dominic C.F. Ho = = = =
G H.C. Ho - 5,600,000 - -
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(IV) Accountability and Audit

1. Financial Reporting

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary. The Company’s financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance
and also the accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in Hong Kong. Appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable. A statement by the external auditor, KPMG, about
their reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on the Company’s financial statements.

The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s position and prospects in annual reports,
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

2. Internal Control

We maintain a good internal control environment to enable the internal
control systems and procedures to perform effectively and to make
improvements where necessary. The Code of Conduct details the
Group’s philosophy in running its business and acts as a benchmark
for all staff to follow.

Internal control systems have been designed to allow us to monitor
the Group’s overall financial position, to safeguard its assets against
loss and misappropriation, to provide reasonable assurance against
material fraud and errors, and to manage the risk in failing to achieve
the Group’s objectives.

We have a well defined specific limit of authority governing activities of
the Executive Committee, Directors, executives and senior staff. Annual
and mid-year budgets on all capital and revenue items are prepared
and approved by senior management and key executives before being
adopted. We monitor the business activities closely and review monthly
financial results of operations against budgets. We also review, update
and improve the internal controls to meet upcoming challenges.
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We take proactive precautionary measures in handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information. Such information is
restricted to a need-to-know basis. We have adopted a policy on

disclosure of price-sensitive information.

We maintain an Internal Audit Department which is independent of our
daily operations and accounting functions. The Internal Auditor reports
directly to the Audit Committee. An internal audit program based on risk
assessment methodology has been designed and reviewed by the Audit
Committee on an annual basis. On a monthly basis, the Internal Auditor
discusses his internal audit reviews and findings with the management
and obtains management’s responses on various issues. Internal audit
reports are prepared for the Audit Committee every quarter.

Formal meetings were held every three months between the Internal
Auditor and the Audit Committee to discuss internal audit issues in
2012. During Audit Committee Meetings, the Audit Committee also
enquired on financial and internal control matters with the external
auditor. The Audit Committee has the authority to have direct
discussion with the external auditor in the absence of management
if deemed necessary, and they meet at least once annually for this
purpose. Executive Director(s) is/are present at the Audit Committee
Meetings to answer enquiries from the Audit Committee and to report
to the Board on matters arising.

The Directors acknowledged that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control systems, and had
reviewed them four times in 2012. The Directors manage risks by strategic
planning, appointing appropriately qualified and experienced personnel
at senior positions, monitoring the Group’s performance regularly,
maintaining effective control over capital expenditure and investments,
and setting a Code of Conduct for all Directors and employees to follow.

The Directors had conducted a review covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
financial year ended December 31, 2012, and were satisfied that an
effective and adequate internal control system had been in operation.
Considerations are also given to the adequacy of resources, staff
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qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Directors
came to such a conclusion based on the Company’s policies and
procedures, specific limits of authority, budgetary controls, regular
monitoring of performance and the reports from both the external
auditor and the Internal Auditor.

We identify major risk in land acquisition for future expansion, the
development into world-class outstanding properties that will let us
stay ahead of competitors, maintaining adequate financial resources
for the projects, constantly upgrading the functions and appearance
of our properties to capture the changes in market and trend, using a
centralized treasury function and limiting the exposure to currency and
credit risk, safeguarding our assets, maintaining adequate insurance
coverage, formulating an appropriate disaster plan including a separate
computer back-up site, providing appropriate training and competitive
remuneration packages to retain quality staff.

The Directors confirm that there have been no major downside
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks faced by us from
the previous financial year, and the Company has the ability to respond
to any such changes in our business and the external environment.
Furthermore, there were no significant control failings or weaknesses
identified that have not been rectified in 2012. We closely monitor our
system of internal control, and received further assurance from the
Audit Committee that the internal audit function has been functioning
effectively. We have complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code in respect of maintaining an effective internal control system.

3. Code of Conduct
We have adopted a corporate Code of Conduct since 1994 which is
updated from time to time.

The Code of Conduct clearly spells out the Company’s stance, the legal
requirements, conflicts of interest, handling of confidential information
and company property, use of information and communication systems,
avenue for whistle blowing, fair trading with suppliers and contractors,
payment procedures, responsibilities to shareholders and the financial
community, relationship with customers and consumers, employment
practices, and responsibilities to the community. In essence, it details
the Group’s philosophy in running its business and acts as a benchmark
for all staff and suppliers to follow.
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In order to monitor and enforce compliance to the Code of Conduct,
functional managers are responsible for ensuring their subordinates
fully understand and comply with the standards and requirements
as stipulated. Any violation thereof will result in the employee being
disciplined, including termination of employment or reporting to
appropriate authorities if necessary. The Executive Directors will
also answer directly to any Board member for impartial and efficient
handling of complaints received from all shareholders and potential
shareholders; customers and consumers; suppliers and contractors
and our employees.

Also, all employees who are above a designated level are required to
complete and sign a declaration form every six months declaring their
interests, directly or indirectly, with the Company and our subsidiaries and
associated companies, so as to make sure that all operations are managed
in accordance with a high standard of practice and corporate governance.

4.  Auditor’'s Remuneration

KPMG was re-appointed as our external auditor by shareholders at the
2012 AGM until the conclusion of the 2013 AGM. They are primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements.

The total remuneration in respect of services provided by the external
auditor is as follows:

BE-ZT——fF HE—T——%F
+=—A=+—HLFE +TZA=+—HIEFE
Year ended December 31, 2012 Year ended December 31, 2011

BEAER BEEETT

HKS$ (in million) HK$ (in million)

ETEZERTE Statutory audit services 8 7
s M EMART  Tax and other services 5 5

(R) BEiFHERER

1. RE

EXREHERRBABER - KA RF
EREBBRERRR 2EABRER K
BE - DARERARRIERE BB ARREA -
RARERR R EAD T INGER LS
BB T TE AR R AIHER) o

(V) Communication with Stakeholders

1. Shareholders

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
setting out strategies that the Company has in place to promote
effective communication with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring
shareholders are provided with information about the Company and
enabling them to engage actively with the Company and to exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
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Our AGM provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and shareholders. The Chairmen of the Board and of
the Committees are normally present to answer queries raised by
shareholders. The external auditor also attends the AGM every year.
Notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting. Each separate issue
is proposed by a separate resolution by the Chairman. The meeting
enjoys strong participation from shareholders.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of paid up capital
of the Company can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary
general meeting pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Ordinance.
The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at our
registered office.

Furthermore, section 115A of the Companies Ordinance provides that
(i) shareholder(s) representing not less than one-fortieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders of the Company or (i) not less than
50 shareholders holding the shares in the Company on which there
has been paid up an average sum of not less than HK$2,000 per
shareholder can put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing signed by
the relevant shareholder(s) at our registered office.

According to our articles of association, if any shareholder(s)
representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the right to attend and vote at general meetings
of the Company wish(es) to propose a person (other than a retiring
director) for election as a director (the “Candidate”) at a general
meeting of the Company, the following documents must be lodged at
our registered office: (i) a written notice of such proposal duly signed by
the shareholder(s) concerned; and (i) a written consent duly signed by
the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. The period
for lodgment of the above documents (being a period of at least seven
days) shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting.
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Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
address or by e-mail to our Company. In addition, shareholders can
contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the
share registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about the
shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are
set out under “Listing Information” of this annual report.

Our last AGM was held on April 18, 2012 at Meeting Room S421, Level
4, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The meeting was attended by 251 shareholders
present in person or by proxy. At the meeting, the Chairman had
demanded a poll on each of the resolutions submitted for voting, and the
shareholders were provided with detailed procedures for conducting a
poll. All resolutions tabled at the 2012 AGM, inter alia, adoption of the
financial statements, re-election of Directors, re-appointment of auditor
and renewal of general mandates were voted on by poll, and the results
of poll voting were posted on the websites of our Company and of the
HKEX in the evening on the same day. There are no changes in our
memorandum and articles of association in 2012.
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EERWERABHAN_Z—=FMA+/\H  The Board confirms that there are no changes proposed to our
BIT7BEREHREITARNT 2E4E  memorandum and articles of association at the forthcoming AGM
RAMEME] - TEAMBRFEEZERRERBA  to be held on April 18, 2013. The important shareholders’ dates
NEZAH  BRUEERLREHE_S— for the coming financial year, which include the Board Meetings for
=FF+_A=+—"HULEFEZFHIEN  considering the payments of interim and final dividends for the year
FERRBMBITANEEZER2EAMHEE - LA ending December 31, 2013 and the AGM, are expected to be held at
MBERXESBE  DRIHNR T —=F+  around late July 2013, late January 2014 and in April 2014 respectively.
AR ZZT—mOF—AK WEZF—

FPY FERTT o

2. KEZE 2. Investors

RZE——F+-_A=+—HZWEFE  Details of shareholders by domicile as at December 31, 2012 are

HEBIT - as follows:

ES BRE
Shareholders Shareholdings
A Bk BHEE B

gt Domicile Number % Number of Shares %
BB Hong Kong 2,999 94.34 4,438,629,605 99.15
AR B g i Mainland China 59 1.86 4,117,220 0.09
JBFT Macau 6 0.19 376,923 0.01
e Taiwan 2 0.06 593 0.00
SN K 5 PE Australia & New Zealand 10 0.31 15,105 0.00
nEXKEER Canada & USA 45 1.42 2,462,635 0.06
REde South East Asia 44 1.38 2,611,917 0.06
Eﬁ United Kingdom 9 0.28 15,585 0.00
Efth Others 5 0.16 28,336,462 0.63
et TOTAL 3,179 100.00 4,476,566,045 100.00
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Details of shareholders by holding range as at December 31, 2012 are
as follows:

R BRE*
Shareholders* Shareholdings*

AE Aot RHOEE Aot
FREH 7 Holding Range Number % Number of Shares %
1-1,000 A% 1 - 1,000 shares 1,434 4511 690,532 0.02
1,001 - 5,000 i% 1,001 - 5,000 shares 824 25.92 2,286,093 0.05
5,001 - 10,000 % 5,001 - 10,000 shares 334 10.51 2,744,083 0.06
10,001 - 100,000 % 10,001 - 100,000 shares 483 15.19 16,669,770 0.37
100,000 & A = Over 100,000 shares 104 3.27 4,454,175,567 99.50
st TOTAL 3,179 100.00 4,476,566,045 100.00

* BEA-TAR2EPREERIWESR AL BRECHB 2 HREERNN  UEBPTREERBAERARERELHEERX-TEEN

TAANTABART BT HBEKRS

incorporating, in their respective shareholdings range, 416 participants of Central Clearing and Settlement System holding a total of 2,782,696,155
shares registered in the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

We are committed to disclosing relevant information on our
activities to our shareholders and investors through regular analysts’
briefings, press conferences and press releases, e-mails and our
website, apart from our annual and interim reports. All enquiries and
proposals received from shareholders, investors, media or the public
are responded to by Executive Directors, the Company Secretary or
appropriate key executives.

The Company’s information is accessible to all via our website.
Besides providing traditional financial data, our website also contains
the most current information including properties available for sale
and leasing, latest issued capital, updated substantial shareholders’
interests in shares, newsletters, major corporate events and frequently
asked questions.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
As good corporate citizens, we adopted the code provisions of the
CG Code. We comply with, and in many cases exceed, the CG Code
save as a deviation of code provision of A.6.7 as stated on page 105
of this report.
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EF 7T PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS

PR BRR 58 &
Mr Ronnie Chichung Chan
Z =K Chairman

Aged 63, Mr Chan joined the Group in 1972 and was appointed to
the Board of Hang Lung Properties Limited in 1986 before becoming
Chairman in 1991. He also serves as Chairman of Hang Lung Group
Limited. Mr Chan is Vice-President of The Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong, Co-Chair of the Asia Society and Chairman
of its Hong Kong Center. He also acts as an advisor to the China
Development Research Foundation in Beijing. Mr Chan sits on the
governing or advisory bodies of several think-tanks and universities,
including the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, the
University of Southern California, USA, where he received his MBA, and
Tsinghua University in Beijing.

BB kA4
Mr Shang Shing Yin
BIEERBIUIFNITESR)

Vice Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Aged 81, Mr Yin joined Hang Lung in 1970 and was appointed to the
Board of Hang Lung Properties Limited in 1980. A past Managing
Director, he has been Vice Chairman since 1992. He has over 40 years
of experience in the fields of property investment and development,
and is a qualified banker with a Banking Diploma from The Chartered
Institute of Bankers in London, UK. Mr Yin also serves as Vice Chairman
of Hang Lung Group Limited.
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PR B A% 5E &
Mr Philip Nan Lok Chen
% E B4 Managing Director

Aged 57, Mr Chen joined the Company and its listed holding company,
Hang Lung Group Limited, as Managing Director in July 2010. Mr
Chen has more than 30 years of management experience, mostly in
the aviation industry, acquiring a wealth of experience in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and beyond. Mr Chen graduated from the University
of Hong Kong in 1977 with a Bachelor of Arts degree and holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the same university.

RERLEHE
Mr Nelson Wai Leung Yuen
JEH 778 F Non-Executive Director

Aged 62, Mr Yuen was appointed as a Non-Executive Director in March
2011. He joined Hang Lung in 1978, became an Executive Director of
the Company in 1986, and was appointed as Managing Director of
the Company and its holding company, Hang Lung Group Limited,
in 1992. He held this position until his retirement in July 2010. He is
a graduate of The University of Manchester, UK and a Fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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EEFEIBLE x25®8 ovo-  £%HEE - OBE - AFM+
Mr Ronald Joseph Arculli aBwm, cvo, GBS, OBE, JP
JBN FEHTTE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 74, Mr Arculli joined the Board in 1980. Mr Arculli is a practicing
solicitor and was a Member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong
from 1988 to 2000, representing the Real Estate and Construction
functional constituency between 1991 and 2000. He was a non-official
member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR from November 2005
to June 2012, and served as Convenor from October 2011 to June
2012. He has a distinguished record of public service and has served
on numerous government committees and advisory bodies. Mr Arculli
is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and SCMP Group Limited, and a Non-Executive
Director of HKR International Limited, Power Assets Holdings Limited,
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Sino
Land Company Limited and Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited.
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EOZ 91 - sxmEs  OBE- ATML
Dr Hon Kwan Cheng aBs, 0BE, Jp
JBN FEHITE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 85, Dr Cheng joined the Group in 1993. Dr Cheng obtained an
engineering degree from Tianjin University and a postgraduate diploma
from Imperial College, London, UK, of which he is a Fellow. He is a
past President, Honorary Fellow and Gold Medallist of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy
of Engineering Sciences, and past Vice President, Fellow and Gold
Medallist of The Institution of Structural Engineers, Fellow of The
Institution of Civil Engineers, UK, Honorary Fellow of The Institution
of Engineers, Australia, and an Authorized Person and Registered
Structural Engineer in Hong Kong, with a State Class 1 Registered
Structural Engineer qualification. Dr Cheng was a Member of both the
Executive and Legislative Councils and Chairman of the Hong Kong
Housing Authority. Dr Cheng is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Wing Hang Bank, Limited, Agile Property Holdings Limited and
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Hang Lung Group Limited.

127



@ EF 7T PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS

REZTIMENTEER - R— A AEFmE
B - EREREBZRTT HWERSH
RBITETEBE—_TF B AA=ZFiE
HERMARELXFHEB 2EE - 12
RRBEAT G 2IREME - LERHEN
BREEEM- OF RZBEEZE R
REREBZEBRZENEE - Rt
REBBEESGZHTIRE - BIART
ERL(NDEESHABREARAREZS
tEatE)  SMHE(BEDE)  URZE
HEFRBEZBERZEENRE - RXLR
XEEHEREDAERBEAETIHEE
BREL  URHEXEEDETAZER
RITERERE - WAREREEBERA
AIZ B IFHITESE ©

128 | BEELARAT —T——FER

PR 4 16 22 +
Ms Laura Lok Yee Chen

JBN FEHTTE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 64, Ms Chen joined Hang Lung in 1997. She has been involved
in the banking, real estate, and financial service industries for over
twenty years, both in Hong Kong and in the USA. Since 1993, she
has been a director of the Sterling Group — a private investment
entity managing investment portfolios in global capital markets, with
a special interest in emerging markets and high-yield products. In
recent years, her professional career has made the transition into
the development and management of philanthropic programs and
activities, and she is currently the Executive Chair of the Hong Kong
based ZeShan Foundation. She serves on the advisory councils of
the Hopkins-Nanjing Center — a joint program between the Johns
Hopkins and Nanjing Universities, the Asia Society Hong Kong Center,
and numerous nonprofit organizations. Ms Chen holds an MBA from
the George Washington University in Washington, DC, USA, and a
postgraduate certificate in International Banking from the University of
Virginia, USA. Ms Chen is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Hang Lung Group Limited.
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Professor Pak Wai Liu sBs, Jp
JBN FEHITE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 65, Professor Liu joined the Board as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in 1998. He received his AB degree from Princeton
University and Ph.D degree from Stanford University in the US.
Professor Liu is Professor of Economics and was formerly Pro-Vice-
Chancellor of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a number
of positions related to his field of study, including Director of the
Economic Research Centre of the Hong Kong Institute of Asia-Pacific
Studies and Vice-President of The East Asian Economic Association.
He was formerly Director of the Institute of Global Economics and
Finance and was appointed Distinguished Fulbright Scholar in 2000-
01. Professor Liu serves on many government advisory bodies. He
is a member of the Commission on Strategic Development and the
Advisory Committee on Post-Office Employment for Former Chief
Executives and Poalitically Appointed Officials. He was a past member
of the Independent Commission on Remuneration for Members of the
Executive Council and the Legislature, and Officials under the Political
Appointment System of the HKSAR, the Provisional Minimum Wage
Commission, the Independent Commission on Remuneration for
the Members of the District Councils of the HKSAR and the Aviation
Development Advisory Committee. He is also a Director of the Hong
Kong Institute for Monetary Research of the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority, and was a Non-Executive Director of the Securities and
Futures Commission and Chairman of its Remuneration Committee.
Professor Liu is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited. He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star (SBS) in 1999, and appointed Justice of Peace (JP) in 2006.
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Mr Dominic Chiu Fai Ho

JBN FEHTTE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 62, Mr Ho joined the Board as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in April 2008. Mr Ho retired as co-chairman of KPMG, China
and HKSAR on March 31, 2007. He obtained his degrees at the
University of Houston in the United States and is a member of the
American Institute of Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a past member of
the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption and of the Insurance Advisory
Committee, both in Hong Kong. Mr Ho is also a Non-Executive and
Independent Director of Singapore Telecommunications Limited.

mZE k4
Mr Hau Cheong Ho

#77% % Executive Director

Aged 53, Mr Ho joined the Group in 2008 and was appointed to the
Board of the Company and of its holding company, Hang Lung Group
Limited, in September 2010. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr Ho possesses more than 20 years of management
experience covering a wide range of industries in England, Australia,
Mainland China and Hong Kong. He qualified as a chartered
accountant in England and Wales and Australia and holds an MBA from
the University of Melbourne, Australia and a Bachelor of Commerce
Degree in Accounting from the University of Birmingham, UK.
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Ms Prudence Bik Wah Chan

Director

Aged 54, Ms Chan joined the Group in 2011 as Director — Leasing &
Sales. She is responsible for formulating and implementing strategies
and business plans for the development of the Group’s property
leasing and management in Hong Kong and on the Mainland.
Ms Chan possesses over 20 years of management experience in
various industries such as finance, retail and telecommmunications.

Ms Bella Peck Lim Chhoa

Company Secretary, General Counsel and Assistant Director — Corporate Affairs

Aged 42, Ms Chhoa joined the Group as Company Secretary, General
Counsel and Assistant Director — Corporate Affairs, in 2011. She is
responsible for overseeing the company secretarial, legal and human
resources and training functions of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
she was head of the legal department and company secretary of two
other companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for a number of years. Ms Chhoa is a solicitor qualified to practice in
Hong Kong. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor degree in
Law from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr Henry Kam Ling Cheung

Assistant Director — Leasing & Management

Aged 56, Mr Cheung joined the Group as an Executive Assistant
in 1983. He has worked in the Leasing and Management Division
since 1984 and was promoted to Senior Property Manager in 1994.
Mr Cheung was appointed as Assistant Director in 2006. Mr Cheung
possesses over 30 years of experience in leasing and management.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Southern
lllinois University, USA, and a Bachelor degree in Economics from the
University of Victoria, Canada.
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Mr Chuk Fai Kwan

Assistant Director — Corporate Communications

Aged 53, Mr Kwan joined the Group as Assistant Director — Corporate
Communications in 2011. Mr Kwan possesses over 25 years of
experience in public relations and corporate affairs. He holds an
Executive MBA degree from The University of Western Ontario, Canada,
and a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr Moses Woon Tim Leung

Assistant Director — Project Planning

Aged 46, Mr Leung joined the Group as Senior Manager — Project
Construction in 2007 and was appointed as Assistant Director —
Project Planning in 2011. He possesses over 20 years of experience in
project design with various consultant firms and exposure in Mainland
projects. Mr Leung holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural
Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture degree from The University of
Hong Kong. He is a Registered Architect in Hong Kong, a Member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and an Authorized Person under
the Buildings Ordinance.

Mr Gavin Yee Liang Lu

Assistant Director — Project Construction

Aged 51, Mr Lu joined the Group as Assistant Director — Project
Construction in 2010. Mr Lu possesses over 26 years of experience in
architectural design, business development and project management
with major property developers and leading consultants. He has
extensive exposure to property development and property management
on the Mainland and in Asia Pacific region. Mr Lu has a Bachelor of
Science degree in Architecture and a Bachelor of Architecture degree
from The University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Registered Architect
in Singapore, a Member of The Royal Institute of British Architects and
a Member of The Singapore Institute of Architects.
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Mr Raymond Wai Man Mak

Assistant Director and Group Financial Controller

Aged 49, Mr Mak joined the Group as Assistant Director and Group
Financial Controller in 2011. Mr Mak possesses over 20 years of
experience in finance, auditing and as company secretary. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from The University of
Warwick, UK. He is a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, UK.

Mr Oliver Chun Tien

Assistant Director — Project Construction

Aged 48, Mr Tien joined the Group as General Manager — Wuxi in 2007
and was appointed as Assistant Director — Project Construction in
2011. He possesses over 20 years of experience in project design and
management with various consultant firms and developers, including
exposure to management of Mainland projects. Mr Tien holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from The University of Hong Kong. He is a Registered Architect
in Hong Kong, a Member of The Royal Institute of British Architects and
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects. Mr Tien is also an Authorized
Person under the Buildings Ordinance.
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Mr William Yu Qiang Wang

Assistant Director

Aged 57, Mr Wang joined Grand Gateway 66, Shanghai, in 1993 as
Deputy General Manager. He was appointed as Director of Shanghai
Kong Hui Property Development Co., Ltd. in 2003, and was nominated
as Board Chairman and General Manager in 2005. Mr Wang was
promoted to Assistant Director in 2009. He was appointed as the
Chairman and General Manager of Shanghai Hang Bond Property
Development Co., Ltd. in September 2011. He is a graduate of the
Economics Faculty in Zhong Gong Zhong Yang Dang Xiao and a
qualified accountant accredited by the Ministry of Finance, People’s
Republic of China. Mr Wang has been appointed as a Committee
Member of the Shanghai Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and Committee Member of two designated districts of
the Shanghai Municipal People’s Congress (Standing Committee) for
several years, and is now a Committee Member of the Shanghai Jingan
District of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr
Wang was appointed as a Committee Member of the 12th Shanghai
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in December 2012.

Mr William Wing Chung Yiu

Assistant Director — Corporate Audit

Aged 43, Mr Yiu joined the Group as Assistant Director — Corporate
Audit in 2011. Mr Yiu possesses over 15 years of finance, internal
audit and PRC taxation experience. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the California State University, Hayward,
USA, and a Bachelor of Economics degree from Monash University,
Australia. He is a Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants, an Associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Member of The
Institute of Internal Auditors.
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Mr Kelvin Kai Wing Chan

Head of Information Technology

Aged 48, Mr Chan joined the Group in 2012 as Head of Information
Technology. Mr Chan possesses over 25 years of experience in
information technology management and development. He holds a
Master of Technology Management degree in Information Technology
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a Bachelor
of Law degree from University of London, UK, and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong
Computer Society.

Mr Paul Wan Po Chan

Senior Manager - Finance

Aged 40, Mr Chan joined the Group as Senior Manager - Finance in
2011. Mr Chan possesses over 15 years of experience in auditing and
financial management. He holds a Master of Accounting degree from
Curtin University of Technology, Australia, and a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Professional Accounting from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a Member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, and also a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Ms Joanne Yuen Man Chan
Deputy General Manager — Grand Gateway 66

Aged 43, Ms Chan joined the Group in 2010 and was promoted to
Senior Manager — Leasing & Management and appointed as Deputy
General Manager — Grand Gateway 66 in 2011. Ms Chan possesses
over 15 years of experience in leasing and management. Ms Chan
holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University of Hong
Kong and a Diploma in Surveying from The University of Reading, UK.
She is a Registered Professional Surveyor in Hong Kong, a Professional
Member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Mr Tony Kai Tung Cheng

Senior Manager - IT Systems

Aged 44, Mr Cheng joined the Group in 2012 as Senior Manager —
IT Systems. Mr Cheng possesses over 20 years of [T experience
on the Mainland and in Hong Kong. He holds a Master of Business
Administration (International) degree from The University of Hong Kong —
Fudan University, China, and a Bachelor of Science degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lewis Siu Hung Cheung

Senior Manager — Project Construction

Aged 40, Mr Cheung joined the Group in 2008 and was promoted to
Senior Manager — Project Construction in 2013. Mr Cheung possesses
over 15 years of experience in project design and management for both
Hong Kong and Mainland projects. He holds a Master of Science degree
in Project Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Bachelor of Architecture degree and Bachelor of Architectural Studies
degree from The University of Auckland, New Zealand. He is a Registered
Architect in Hong Kong and a Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Architects. He also holds a PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification.
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Mr Vincent Chi Sum Ho

Deputy Financial Controller — Parc 66

Aged 43, MrHojoined the Group in 2012 as Deputy Financial Controller —
Parc 66. Mr Ho possesses over 17 years of auditing and financial
management experience on the Mainland and in Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting from The University of
Manitoba, Canada. He is a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Wilson King Man Kwok

Deputy Financial Controller — Riverside 66

Aged 43, Mr Kwok joined the Group in 2012 as Deputy Financial
Controller — Riverside 66. Mr Kwok possesses over 15 years of
auditing and financial management experience in Hong Kong and on
the Mainland. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from Deakin University, Australia, a Postgraduate Diploma in Financial
Policy from University of London, UK, and a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from La Trobe University, Australia. He is a Certified Practising
Accountant of Australian Society of CPAs, an Associate of Hong Kong
Society of Accountants, a Member of The Institute of Internal Auditors,
a Member of Information Systems Audit and Control Association and a
Certified Information Systems Auditor.

Ms Mina Pou Lam Lai

Senior Manager — Leasing & Management

Aged 58, Ms Lai joined the Group in 1995 as Corporate Services
Manager. She was appointed as Central Purchasing Manager in 2003
and was promoted to Senior Manager in January 2007. Ms Lai was
appointed as Senior Manager — Leasing & Management in September
2007. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Leicester, UK.
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Mr Shiu Wo Lam

Senior Manager — Technical, Property Services

Aged 53, Mr Lam joined the Group as Senior Manager — Project
Construction in 2007 and was appointed as Senior Manager -
Property Services in 2012. Mr Lam possesses over 30
years of experience in mechanical and electrical design and project
management with a consultant firm. He also gained exposure to
development projects on the Mainland. He holds a Bachelor of
Engineering degree in Building Services Engineering from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and is a Chartered Engineer and Registered
Professional Engineer. He is also a Member of The Chartered Institution
of Building Services Engineers, UK, American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air Conditioning Engineers, Inc, USA, The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and a LEED Accredited Professional, USGBC.

Technical,

Mr Jeffrey Kwai Sun Law

Senior Manager — Project Construction

Aged 37, Mr Law joined the Group in 2011 and was promoted to
Senior Manager — Project Construction in 2013. Mr Law possesses
over 10 years of experience in project design and management
for both Hong Kong and Mainland projects. He holds a Master of
Science degree in Urban Planning, Master of Architecture degree and
Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies from The University
of Hong Kong. He is a Registered Architect in Hong Kong and a
Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects. He is also a LEED
Accredited Professional, USGBC.

Ms Betty Shuk Man Law

Senior Manager — Corporate Communications

Aged 40, Ms Law joined the Group as Senior Manager — Corporate
Communications in 2011. Ms Law possesses over 17 years of
experience in corporate communications and media relations. She
holds a Master of International and Public Affairs degree from The
University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Arts degree from The

Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Ms Sabrina Wei Man Law

Senior Manager — Project Construction

Aged 47, Ms Law joined the Group as Senior Manager — Project
Construction in 2011. Ms Law possesses over 20 years of experience
in project design and management with various consultant firms and
developers. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a Postgraduate
Diploma in Architecture from University College London, UK, and a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Architecture from The Victoria University
of Manchester, UK. She is a Registered Architect in Hong Kong and
a Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects. She also holds a
PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification.

Mr Andrew Chee Man Lee

Senior Manager - Finance

Aged 54, Mr Lee joined the Group in 2008 as Senior Manager — Finance.
He possesses over 25 years of experience in finance and has exposure
in the commercial sector. Mr Lee holds a Master of Arts degree from
The University of Lancaster, UK, a Bachelor of Laws degree from
the University of London, UK, and a Bachelor of Laws degree from
Tsinghua University, Beijing. He is also a Member of The Canadian
Certified General Accountants Association of Hong Kong, a Fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an Associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an Associate
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
an Associate of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
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Mr Gilbert Tak Wai Li

Financial Controller — Plaza 66

Aged 49, Mr Li joined the Group as Deputy Financial Controller — Plaza
66 in 2011 and has been promoted to Financial Controller — Plaza 66
in 2013. Mr Li possesses over 20 years of experience in auditing and
financial management. He holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Wales, UK, and a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Accounting from Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is a Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a Fellow of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, UK, and a Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Ms Katherine Yan Kay Lo

Senior Manager - Leasing & Management

Aged 34, Ms Lo joined the Group as Senior Manager — Leasing &
Management in 2012. Ms Lo possesses over 12 years of experience
in strategic partnerships, as well as marketing and sales management.
She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is also a graduate of Advanced
Management Programme from INSEAD, France.

Ms Agnes Yu Man Ng

Deputy Financial Controller — Palace 66 & Forum 66

Aged 39, Ms Ngjoined the Group in 2012 as Deputy Financial Controller —
Palace 66 and was also appointed as Deputy Financial Controller —
Forum 66 in the same year. Ms Ng possesses over 14 years of
accounting and financial management experience on the Mainland and
in Hong Kong. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from University Center “César Ritz”, Switzerland, a Postgraduate
Diploma in Project Management from University of California, Berkeley
Extension, US, and a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
Hong Kong Baptist University. She is a Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr Derek Siu Fai Pang

Deputy General Manager — Plaza 66

Aged 39, Mr Pang joined the Group as Senior Manager — Leasing &
Management in 2012 and was appointed as Deputy General Manager
of Plaza 66 in 2012. Mr Pang possesses over 15 years of leasing and
property management experience on the Mainland and in Hong Kong.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from The University of Hong
Kong and he is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

Mr Simon Chun Man Shiu

Deputy Financial Controller — Grand Gateway 66

Aged 47, Mr Shiu joined the Group in 2012 as Deputy Financial
Controller — Grand Gateway 66. Mr Shiu possesses over 20 years
of accounting and financial management experience in Hong Kong
and on the Mainland. He holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from The University of Hull, UK, and a Professional Diploma
in Management Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is an Associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants.

Mr Vincent Wai Bo Sinn

Senior Manager — Project Planning

Aged 51, Mr Sinn joined the Group as Senior Manager — Project
Planning in 2013. Mr Sinn possesses over 25 years of experience in
project management for both Hong Kong and Mainland projects. He
holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree from The University of
Newcastle, Australia, and a Master of Business Administration degree
from Southern lllinois University, USA. He is a Chartered Engineer in UK,
a Member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Member of
The Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers.
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@ F21THA BT PROFILE OF KEY EXECUTIVES

Ms Iris Siu Wai Tsui

Senior Manager — Leasing & Management (China)

Aged 41, Ms Tsui joined the Group in 2001 and was promoted to
Manager — Leasing & Management (China) in 2006. She was appointed
as Senior Manager — Leasing & Management (China) in 2008. Ms Tsui
possesses over 19 years of experience in property development and
leasing and management in Hong Kong and on the Mainland.

Ms Ella Hoi Yan Wong

Senior Manager — Project Planning

Aged 39, Ms Wong joined the Group in 2006 and was promoted to
Senior Manager — Project Planning in 2011. Ms Wong possesses
over 15 years of experience in project planning. She holds a
Master of Science degree in Project Management from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a Master of Architecture degree
and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. She is a Registered Architect in Hong
Kong, a Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and an
Authorized Person under the Buildings Ordinance. She is also a
LEED Accredited Professional, USGBC.

Ms Passy Wai Chung Wong

Senior Manager - Leasing & Management

Aged 38, Ms Wong joined the Group in 2003 and was promoted to
Manager in 2005. She was appointed as Senior Manager — Leasing
& Management in 2010. Ms Wong possesses over 15 years of
experience in leasing and management. She holds a Master of Science
degree in Real Estate, a Postgraduate Diploma in Surveying (Real
Estate Development) from The University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor
of Social Science degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
She is a Professional Member of The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors and a Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Mr Rico Chi Keung Yip

Deputy General Manager — Palace 66

Aged 44, MrYip joined the Group in 2009. In 2011, he was promoted to
Manager — Leasing & Management and appointed as Deputy General
Manager — Palace 66. Mr Yip was promoted to Senior Manager —
Leasing & Management in 2012 and continues as Deputy General
Manager — Palace 66. Mr Yip possesses over 15 years of experience
in leasing and management. He holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms Cora Yuet Ngor Yiu

Senior Manager — Property Services

Aged 50, Ms Yiu joined the Group in 1990 and was promoted to
Property Manager in 2001. She was appointed as Senior Manager —
Leasing & Management in 2008 and Senior Manager — Property Services
in 2012. Ms Yiu possesses over 25 years of experience in leasing and
management. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from the University of Leicester, UK, and a Bachelor of Science degree in
Estate Management from The University of Reading, UK.

Ms Yun Zhang

Senior Manager — Legal & Secretarial

Aged 38, Ms Zhang joined the Group in 2008 as Senior Manager —
Legal & Secretarial. Ms Zhang possesses over 15 years of experience
in the PRC legal field. She holds a Master degree in Law and a Bachelor
of Law degree from Fudan University, Shanghai. Ms Zhang has been
qualified as a Lawyer by the Ministry of Justice of PRC since 1998.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding,
and through its subsidiaries, property investment for rental income,
property development for sales and leasing, car park management
and property management.

An analysis of the turnover and trading results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) by operating
segments during the financial year is set out in Note 3 on the
Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

A list of principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, together
with their places of operations and incorporation and particulars of their
issued share capital/registered capital is set out in Notes 35 and 36 on
the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the Financial Statements on pages 156 to 222.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last ten financial years is set out on page 223.

DIVIDENDS

The directors now recommend a final dividend of HK57 cents per share
which, together with the interim dividend of HK17 cents per share paid
on September 13, 2012, makes a total of HK74 cents per share in
respect of the year ended December 31, 2012. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
on April 18, 2013, will be paid on May 8, 2013 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on April 24, 2013.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers combined and the percentage of turnover
or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers combined
were less than 30% of the total purchases and turnover or sales of the
Group respectively.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 23 on the Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$14
million (HK$1 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and
HK$8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011).

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note
11 on the Financial Statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
December 31, 2012 are set out in Note 18 on the Financial Statements.

BORROWING COSTS CAPITALIZATION

Borrowing costs capitalized by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$393 million (HK$97 million for the six months ended December
31, 2011 and HK$193 million for the year ended December 31, 2011).

MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES
Details of major properties of the Group as at December 31, 2012 are
set out on pages 74 to 79.
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SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, as a result of the exercise of share options under the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on November 22, 2002 (the
“Old Scheme”), 3,796,000 shares (955,875 shares for the six months
ended December 31, 2011 and 4,435,375 shares for the year ended
December 31, 2011) of HK$1.00 each, fully paid, were issued for total
consideration of HK$59,827,080 (HK$15,851,750 for the six months
ended December 31, 2011 and HK$68,808,490 for the year ended
December 31, 2011). The Old Scheme was terminated upon the
adoption of a new share option scheme on April 18, 2012 (the “New
Scheme”). No further options shall be offered under the Old Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the New Scheme is 335,504,253 shares, representing
7.5% of the issued share capital of the Company. The total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options (including
both exercised and outstanding) granted to each participant shall not
exceed in any 12-month period 1% of shares of the Company in issue.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 22 on the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this report are listed
on page 224 and their brief biographical details are set out on pages
124 to 130. Details of their remuneration are set out in Note 6 on the
Financial Statements.
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Mr Henry T.Y. Yiu resigned as executive director of the Company
with effect from December 11, 2012. Mr Wiliam P.Y. Ko resigned
as executive director of the Company and Hang Lung Group Limited
(“HLGL") (its publicly listed holding company) with effect from December
12, 2012.

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr S.S. Yin, Mr Dominic C.F. Ho and Mr Philip N.L. Chen
retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr Philip N.L. Chen has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a specific length of service, and which shall continue
until terminated by either party giving prior notice in writing. Mr Chen
would also be entitled to an ex-gratia payment of less than one year’s
emoluments if the contract was terminated by the Company on or
before July 31, 2012.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company, its holding company or any of their subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company, its holding company or any of their subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a director of the Company was materially interested,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or
at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at December 31, 2012, the interests or short positions of each of
the directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO are as follows:

AAR(HFRE) EREEERAR(HFR)
The Company (Long Position) Hang Lung Group Limited (Long Position)
RIEHRE REHRE
2817 EIE%RSZ}&% 2817 G e
R Z (MfE1) Bz (PMtx2)
R EE B Number of R{7EE Aok Number of
Number % of Shares under Number % of Shares under
Name of of Issued Option of Issued Option
EEHAE 51  Directors Capacity Shares  Capital (Note 1) Shares Capital (Note 2)
[REfs  {EA  Ronnie C.Chan  Personal - - 36,570,000 - - 11,790,000
BRHE - S.S.Yin = - - - - _ _
FRE#%  {EA  PhiipN.L. Chen Personal = = 14,500,000 - - -
={ER {EA  Nelson W.L. Yuen Personal - - 24,320,000 - - -
2% {HAKN RonaldJ.Arculi  Personal & 724,346 0.02 - 1,089,975 0.08 -
NG| Corporate
Hzey - H.K. Cheng = = = = = = =
fREENG - LauraLY.Chen - = = = = = =
B EAR PW.Lu Personal & 100,000 - - - - -
EY Family
R - Dominic C.F. Ho - = - - - _ _
fZ& @A HC.Ho Personal = = 5,600,000 - - -
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1. REA QR ZROMET BN HELS

Movement of Options under the Share Option Scheme of the Company

RIBHETREZRE
Number of Shares under Option
BRITHEE
(¥
BHAH A201245 FRITHE H201245 Exercise REAH b=
(B/8/%) 1818 Exercised 12A31H Price (B/B/%) (B/8/%)
Date Granted As at during As at per Share Vested Dates Expiry Date
(mm/dd/yyyy) & Name Jan 1, 2012 the Year Dec 31, 2012 (HK$) (mm/dd/yyyy)  (mm/dd/yyyy)
05/20/2004  BRERZ  Ronnie C. Chan 5,090,000 - 5,090,000 $9.20 05/20/2005: 25% 05/19/2014
05/20/2006: 25%
05/20/2007: 25%
05/20/2008: 25%
11/20/2006  FREXEZR  Ronnie C. Chan 2,000,000 = 2,000,000 $17.14  11/20/2007: 10% 11/19/2016
11/20/2008: 20%
11/20/2009: 30%
11/20/2010: 40%
08/21/2007  PFRRIZ  Ronnie C. Chan 3,640,000 - 3,640,000 $25.00 08/21/2008: 10% 08/20/2017
=fER  Nelson W.L. Yuen 3,510,000 = 3,510,000 08/21/2009: 20%
08/21/2010: 30%
08/21/2011: 40%
08/21/2007  FREXSR  Ronnie C. Chan 5,600,000 - 5,600,000 $25.00 08/21/2009: 10% 08/20/2017
HER  Nelson W.L. Yuen 5,400,000 = 5,400,000 08/21/2010: 20%
08/21/2011: 30%
08/21/2012: 40%
09/01/2008  fAj%& H.C.Ho 300,000 = 300,000 $24.20 09/01/2010: 10% 08/31/2018
09/01/2011: 20%
09/01/2012: 30%
09/01/2013: 40%
12/31/2008  FREXE  Ronnie C. Chan 9,240,000 - 9,240,000 $17.36  12/31/2010: 10% 12/30/2018
#ER  Nelson W.L. Yuen 8,910,000 = 8,910,000 12/31/2011: 20%
28 H.C.Ho 300,000 - 300,000 12/31/2012: 30%
12/31/2013: 40%
02/08/2010  BRERZ  Ronnie C. Chan 6,500,000 = 6,500,000 $26.46  02/08/2012: 10% 02/07/2020
#ER  Nelson W.L. Yuen 6,500,000 = 6,500,000 02/08/2013: 20%
02/08/2014: 30%
02/08/2015: 40%
07/29/2010  FREG#%  Philip N.L. Chen 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 $33.05 07/29/2012: 10% 07/28/2020
07/29/2013: 20%
07/29/2014: 30%
07/29/2015: 40%
09/29/2010  fAJ#%g H.C.Ho 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 $36.90 09/29/2012: 10% 09/28/2020
09/29/2013: 20%
09/29/2014: 30%
09/29/2015: 40%
06/13/2011 BREIZ  Ronnie C. Chan 4,500,000 = 4,500,000 $30.79 06/13/2013: 10% 06/12/2021
BREG#  Philip N.L. Chen 4,500,000 - 4,500,000 06/13/2014: 20%
fil%g& H.C.Ho 3,000,000 = 3,000,000 06/13/2015: 30%
06/13/2016: 40%

149



@%%%ﬁ% REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
r

2. REEEEEARI A ZROMES BN HESS

Movement of Options under the Share Option Scheme of Hang Lung Group Limited

RIZERE TR 0E 2 IR
Number of Shares under Option

BRITEE

(BH)
R BH H20124F FRITHE R2012F Exercise SEEH ZHA
(R/B/%) 1A1H  Exercised 12A31H Price (R/B/%) (A/B/%)
Date Granted As at during As at per Share Vested Dates Expiry Date
(mm/dd/yyyy) & Name Jan 1, 2012 the Year Dec 31,2012 (HK$) (mm/dd/yyyy) — (mm/dd/yyyy)
05/20/2004 BRERZR  Ronnie C. Chan 5,090,000 - 5,090,000 $9.45 05/20/2005: 25% 05/19/2014

05/20/2006: 25%
06/20/2007: 25%
05/20/2008: 25%

11/20/2006 BREIR  Ronnie C. Chan 6,700,000 = 6,700,000 $20.52 11/20/2007: 10% 11/19/2016
11/20/2008: 20%
11/20/2009: 30%
11/20/2010: 40%

BREAER T ZF+ AT AREAAARREREENTES - N-F——F—A—H  WHKARHPE  TRB-_TAEL+=ER
AR ZBRORNATNEOTFREEEER 2 K&G : EER 2 BER  BIFEROHEE  IRBE-TRAA LT =8RAARZRM -

Mr William P.Y. Ko resigned as executive director of the Company and HLGL on December 12, 2012. As at January 1, 2012, he had share options
to subscribe for 25,730,000 shares in the Company and 994,000 shares in HLGL, and up to his resignation, he had share options to subscribe for
25,730,000 shares in the Company.

RFBERER T ——F+_A+—HEERARANTES - RZT—_F - A -HREZRZFER - BEERMIBE  IRBLtE A T8K
ARFZROREBREREEZ KRS °

Mr Henry T.Y. Yiu resigned as executive director of the Company on December 11, 2012. As at January 1, 2012 and up to his resignation, he had share
options to subscribe for 7,600,000 shares in the Company and 50,000 shares in HLGL.

ZERRRIN PEEEE MNP BMEME =\ (0) AR -

Such interests in share options of the Company have been included in Note 28(b) on the Financial Statements.

BRLA FRTIREESN - WEANGEEHHS  Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company or
ZIEABEAR_ZE——F+=-H=+—  any of their associates had, as at December 31, 2012, any interests or
A#EAE ARSI MEEEE 2% « 8  short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
R (D e B RE 2 R SRR © Company or any associated corporations.

BRLA EFraft o - MEREMBERE - /A2  Other than as stated above, at no time during the year was the
A HEBRARS®EZ(EMHMBATE  Company, its holding company or any of their subsidiaries a party to

BEHAMNTHEARAER(BERSE any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company (including
BB M oRim T\ F) A #E AR R their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits
SR E R 2 IR S EREE MR o by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company

or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL ~ SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2012, details of substantial shareholders’ and
other persons’ (who are required to disclose their interests pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO) interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

BEROIEBRGEE
Number of Shares or ERTREAZESHK
Underlying Shares Held % of Issued Capital
(#R) (%E) (#R) (%E)
P s (Long (Short (Long (Short
ZiE Name Note Position) Position) Position) Position)
PREBERE 25 Chan Tan Ching Fen 1 2,295,542,670 = 51.28 =
Cole Enterprises Cole Enterprises Holdings 1 2,295,542,670 - 51.28 -
Holdings Limited Limited
Merssion Limited Merssion Limited 1 2,295,542,670 - 51.28 -
BEEEEGRAT Hang Lung Group Limited 2 2,267,209,570 - 50.65 -
ERARAE Prosperland Housing 3 1,267,608,690 = 30.60 -
Limited
Purotat Limited Purotat Limited S 354,227,500 - 8.55 -
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JPMorgan Chase & Co. 4 225,512,905 954,308 5.04 0.02

Fff5E Notes

1. LSRN E—(FRESFHE 2RO RRA—HIRND - REES LT AZETESZMIA © Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited R fErtE e 2 ¥
#EA © Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited 5 Merssion Limited Fi A B BB H 2 =+ 2w - BEEEREWERRMBEE 2RHEBREEL
Mo+ —EAFTREERTEE-TABEETRBROHZEER -

These shares were the same parcel of shares held by a trust of which Ms Chan Tan Ching Fen was the founder. Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited
was the trustee of the trust. Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited and Merssion Limited held 37% interests in HLGL. The shares held by HLGL and its
subsidiaries were included in the above-mentioned number of 2,295,542,670.

2. LERGHBERER 2 EMBARRE @ Bt - EREEHREANZERNPHGER -
These shares were held by the wholly-owned subsidiaries of HLGL and as such HLGL was deemed to be interested in these shareholdings.

3. ZENAREEEEZ2EMNBLR  BE R BRE IMHEEEEMFEZ T BRATHEZTETATEE L TRROZHEAR -
These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of HLGL. Their interests were included in the above-mentioned number of 2,267,209,570 shares

held by HLGL.

4. ERODARIAESEEA - RECERREACER)/REEBHERBAFHHE - EHBE— - FTHE -+ B -FTRAENTAKTH#E

HEIRR L ©

These shares were held in the respective capacity of beneficial owner, investment manager and custodian corporation/approved lending agent. It

included 114,122,589 shares in the lending pool.

151



@%%%ﬁ% REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
r

BRAEFTHEN  RZZTE—ZF+=ZA=
+— B ARBWEENS Tt
I MARBERREIZIFGAIE=a="1
NEREBTHRT2ELZMA -

FEALTRS

EEREBRETHEAMEALTI S
ERRABRERMEE -+ NEBR - 7%
BEALR A TERBEERERSMA
RARZES ETRARTHAT REME

%5 -

EIEAU
ERNADTLERADFT LK AMEX
WD EIST T ISR RITHAL -

fBo - HENEE EhES

FARRBIREEAHMBLARLEED -
HE B LI ] EHES

2 Gl

AAFEHRENERITZ RRAFAE LR
HASR ZEBEZIRSARINE
BHARARREE  BEETERFEF
REERAILE -

AERRD

NARE

BEEM

&8 —_T—=F—-—HA=+—H

152 | BEELARAT —T——FER

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2012, no other interest
required to be recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the
SFO has been notified to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business are set out in Note 29 on the Financial
Statements. None of these related party transactions constitutes
a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 101 to 1283.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Bella Peck Lim Chhoa
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, January 31, 2013

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hang Lung Properties Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 156 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at December 31,
2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

153



BN 2B MRS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BAZS RITIE P A B BB 15 3R PR

FEeRABEBREEHNEZERE - FIEEN
RFBURRZ AR HE - B EEN

AP MEBT B RRFEERER
SR )RR o FERT A X BB BT - B E
ﬁﬁ%A?%%&Efﬁ“iﬂWﬁ%ﬁ
HBRBENOARBIES - URFFEENER
B BXERER T%W%?ﬁ%ﬂ
BRER - ERNERFEESHERAN
SRR B M TER S EETH
BEMYE - URFEMBERRAOBEI R
IR e

HFIEE - RPMESHEZERERT R
MEE AR PN EZE RIRHEAR -
=R

BPRA  ZEGAUMBHRRERERE
MBRELEINEEMAFHRR AR
K BEEER-_FT-——_F+-_A=t+—H
MEBRAN BSEEHEZHLEFED

MEEBREERE  YEZRRBRBEE(ATHE
B) ZBRE

ESR e ELA
X GRTAD

bz
FEFTE 1097
AFRE8E

—Z—=4—A=t+—H

154 | BEMELRRAT —T——FFR

RN

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
December 31, 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

January 31, 2013

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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4R zn R CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE—T——F+-A=+—H -5 For the year ended December 31, 2012

HE
B= —F—%F
—E——% +Z-A=+—H
+=—HA=+—H 1E~1EA
IEFE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
fff= December 31, December 31, | December 31,
in HK$ Million Note 2012 2011 2011
=3 Turnover 3(a) 7,372 3,069 5712
Hip A Other income 4 2,774 189 331
BEERAREEER Direct costs and operating expenses (1,630) 618) (1,139)
TRER Administrative expenses (626) (270) (455)
RETAREMEZ A FE Operating profit before change
BERE RN in fair value of investment properties 7,890 2370 4,449
WEWEZ A FEEM Increase in fair value of
investment properties 11 2,522 964 2,016
BRFAREYE 2 ANFE Operating profit after change
BEME R in fair value of investment properties 10,412 3,334 6,465
B E A Finance costs 5 (348) (104) (154)
FEGE & A Rl A Share of profits of jointly
controlled entities 13 105 42 80
BB A A Profit before taxation 3@ &5 10,169 3,272 6,391
BIE Taxation 7@) (1,249) (536) (1,062)
REE /HH A Profit for the year/period 8,920 2,736 5,329
JE(G 4R : Attributable to:
A% 2R Shareholders 23 8,395 2,516 4,890
e i R Non-controlling interests 24 525 220 439
8,920 2,736 5,329
BREF Earnings per share 10(a)
E- PN Basic $1.88 $0.56 $1.09
351 Diluted $1.87 $0.56 $1.09

MEBRRMED AR BERR 2 — 8D °
F/EIRR R GRS FFINMIELO
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attributable to the year/period are set out in note 9.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012




4re 2 MUz CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE—T——F+-A=+—H -5 For the year ended December 31, 2012

HE
BZE —E——F
—E——% +Z-A=+—H
+=A=+—H 1ERE A
LEE Six months
: Year ended ended Year ended
e et fffzx December 31, December 31, | December 31,
LB E ST E in HK$ Million Note 2012 2011 2011
AN/ HRR R Profit for the year/period 8,920 2736 5,329
Hib 2 mEWiE Other comprehensive income 7(d)
BMEGINGE A RIRRIE Exchange difference arising from
FEZ ERER translation of overseas subsidiaries 150 1,651 3,025
NEE/HEEKREEE Total comprehensive income for
the year/period 9,070 4,387 8,354
EE2ERRAE ! Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
[ Shareholders 8,545 4,036 7,667
e e R Non-controlling interests 525 351 687
9,070 4,387 8,354
WIE AT DA BTk 2 — &5 The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BATIRRN R STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZF—=—F+=H=+—H At December 31, 2012

NG|
Company
BB BESTE in HKS Million
FERBEE Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets
EYH Investment properties 98,223 93,610 - _
BERERAEEYE Investment properties
under development 24,482 23,613 - -
EMEEEE Other fixed assets 250 217 - _
11 122,955 117,440 - -
NG Interest in subsidiaries 12 - _ 71,633 62,022
ABENTER Interest in jointly
controlled entities 13 1,041 1,007 - -
Hih&E Other assets 14 - 450 - _
RIERIRE E Deferred tax assets 20(0) 12 35 _ _
124,008 118,932 71,633 62,022
REEE Current assets
e MIRTTFER Cash and deposits
with banks 15 36,025 23,732 1 1
FEMRR X K A FEUCER. Trade and other receivables 16 1,270 1,436 5 3
Hib&E Other assets 14 452 449 - _
FEWME Properties for sale 17 6,109 6,114 - _
43,856 31,731 6 4
nREAE Current liabilities
BITERLEMEE  Bankloans and
other borrowings 18 1,113 4,700 - -
EREER R EMERF Trade and other payables 19 4,811 3,823 24 18
FER B Taxation payable 20(a) 392 392 - _
6,316 8,915 21 18
REEE/(AE)EME Netcurrent assets/(liabilities) 37,540 22,816 (15) (14)
EELERREAE  Total assets less
current liabilities 161,548 141,748 71,618 62,008
FFRBEE Non-current liabilities
IRTTER N HEAEE  Bankloans and
other borrowings 18 28,623 16,034 - -
LARIIEEYNCIE S Amounts due to subsidiaries  12(p) - _ 28,423 19217
BRI A E Deferred tax liabilities 20(0) 8,047 8,696 - -
37,570 24,730 28,423 19,217
BEEFE NET ASSETS 123,978 117,018 43,195 42,791
BARREE Capital and reserves
& Share capital 22 4,477 4,473 4,477 4,473
il Reserves 23 113,451 106,989 38,718 38,318
PR M as Shareholders’ equity 117,928 111,462 43,195 42,791
E S Tl Non-controlling interests 24 6,050 5,556 - _
Gl b TOTAL EQUITY 123,978 117.018 43,195 42,791
PR RO % Philip N.L. Chen
EEAKE Managing Director
EEA= H.C. Ho
WITES Executive Director
BTSRRI A Gk 2 — 35 © The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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irE R EB)7R CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE—T——F+-A=+—H -5 For the year ended December 31, 2012

PRER M
Shareholders’ equity
FEFERR
TEm
BRA  HtbEE  REBREF Non- R
Share Other Retamed controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity
(fg7E22)  (FffEE23)  (BfiE23) (Pff5E24)
in HK$ Million (Note 22)  (Note 23)  (Note 23) (Note 24)
RZF——FELA—H Atduy1,2011 4,472 39,436 65,811 109,719 5205 114,924
ANERE R Profit for the period - - 2516 2,516 220 2,736
BEEINEBAFIIRE  Exchange difference
EECZERER arising from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - 1,520 - 1,520 131 1,651
NEARE R A5 Total comprehensive income
for the period - 1,520 2,516 4,036 351 4,387
FERBERE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (2,415) (2,415) - (2,415)
BT Issue of shares 1 15 _ 16 _ 16
EEREER Employee share-based
payments - 96 10 106 - 106
MRZZT——F+=HA At December 31, 2011 and
=+—Bk January 1, 2012 4,473 41,067 65,922 111,462 5556 117,018
—E-—F—HA—H
2R i A Profit for the year - - 8,395 8,395 525 8,920
WMEEINIBATIEEE  Exchange difference arising
FEZ[R%EE from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - 150 - 150 - 150
AEEEENEREE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 150 8,395 8,545 525 9,070
KFEEREARE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (1,611) (1,611) - (1,611)
AEEFHRHR S Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - (761) (761) - (761)
AT Issue of shares 4 56 - 60 - 60
EEREER Employee share-based
payments - 8 225 233 - 233
BT IR SRS Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - (31) (31)
E"iggii At December 31, 2012 4,477 41,281 72,170 117,928 6,050 123,978
—BA=t—H

RIS RR R S AN T sk 2 — R D

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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4rE IR & MEZR CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

—&+= A=+—H L5 Z For the year ended December 31, 2012

Et;.;_z

BE_2——F &
+=A=+—H +=RA=+—H
: IFE 1E7NE A
BfaE Year ended Six months ended Year ended
in HK$ Million Note December 31,2012 December 31,2011 | December 31, 2011
KeEEE Operating activities
REKEEB RE Cash generated from operations 25 6,006 2,213 3,726
EAEIE Tax paid
B EATER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (439) (1,048) (1,048)
B ERSH China Income Tax paid (534) (164) (425)
RELE L2 Net cash generated from
ReRE operating activities 5,033 1,001 2,253
RETH Investing activities
BEETEE Payment for fixed assets (5,328) (6,952) ©9,771)
HJ";E Bl BEME Net sale proceeds from
TRIEFER disposal of fixed assets 5,170 3 4
BERZIHBAKRE Purchase of held-to-maturity
investments - (18) (13)
Bl EREAKRE Receipt of matured held-to-
IR maturity investments 450 - _
2UALE Interest received 586 170 333
BlELRFRRE Dividends received from
jointly controlled entities 36 18 45
= AIER/(#5)  Repayment from/(Advance to)
jointly controlled entities 35 8 (4)
ELETIREER Repayment of advances to
unlisted investments 1 1 1
R=1E A R B ERTT (Increase)/Decrease in bank
TRz (M) B deposits with maturity greater
than three months (3,474) 3,069 1,515
ARBEZSZ Net cash used in
REFE investing activities (2,524) (3,696) (7,890)
BMEES Financing activities
FIIRITER R HAM Proceeds from new bank loans
BEMEHIE and other borrowings 13,879 3,003 10,017
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (4,700) - (1,480)
TR MR HARE P A Proceeds from exercise of
share options 60 16 70
BT REM Interest and other borrowing
BEER costs paid (866) (164) (322)
EEERNER Finance lease charges paid @3 ) (13)
BERRE Dividends paid (2,372) (2,415) (3,175)
AT IR Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests (31) - 1)
BB IEIT R R IE Repayment to
non-controlling interests - - (63)
AR 2 EAREH Capital element of finance lease (104) (64) (126)
REMETE 2 Net cash generated from
ReRu financing activities 5,863 1271 4,917
ReRBESEEYZ Increase/(Decrease) in cash
#hn/ G and cash equivalents 8,372 (1,424) (720)
ExgH o Effect of foreign exchange
rate change 405 838 1,217
M—A—B/tA—HBz Cashand cash equivalents
RERBASEEY at January 1/July 1 19,212 19,798 18,715
BR+=-A=+—82 Cash and cash equivalents
HEeRBELZEY at December 31 15 27,989 19,212 19,212

BTSRRI RE T AN T ek 2 —HB D

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BA TR M1EE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA # A 841 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 EXRFBRFESFEH
BREARREEFEN T ——F+—A=
THtHZHRE  ARRZHMBFEEFLELH
HMAA=THRERR/RT-A=+—H %
FRERTEARANMBFEFLLR R
HR BRI 2 KB A RM B BEE
FHB -3 REFRACHBEETFY
RERE M BREALZEAR - WAEBH
BERCHMBFEEFEBRBAMNEE R T
—HA=+—H-

MRV BFEFEBELER - NP B
ME—_ET——F—A—HAE_T——-F+
“A=+—BLt+—@EA(&E==ZF—=
FHZA=Z+—HIEFE]) - MAMBER
RZLHBEFARE_T—FtHA—H
E-T——F+_-_A=+—HIt~EA
(BE_2—F+_-_A=1t—HIt~E
Al [ZZ—H8M)) - AR TE
A EEM ST IEL LR - RIBRCE BN
EHELB) ([HKFRSs RSy — T ——
F—A—HE-ZF——%+=-A=+—H
Ftt+t-@EAE#E-—ZE—F+=-A=+
—HUEFEEI K [ZTE——FE)2HKE
B RERERER - FRE2ERER © i
AREFEREETERNZMEHE U
A BF B R 2 LLEME o

2 EFESHEE

(@) BHIZA

RIS ERER THIRIR P A i 2 HKFRSs %
B MZBHRETESAMRGRML
FrEERER(EBUHREER) - (FE
S ERD ([HKASs ) M2 #gE - BEEARE
AHRARBECRBURSD) ZRE - NP
BRI ECBEEMAXHMERAFES
ERRAD ZERBERTE - AEEERMAZ
TEEFHRRBANT -

1 CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company
dated November 27, 2011, the Company’s financial year end date
has been changed from June 30 to December 31. The change is
to align with the financial year end date of the Company with that of
its subsidiaries established in mainland China, the financial results of
which are consolidated into its consolidated financial statements each
year, and their financial statements are statutorily required to be closed
with the financial year end date of December 31.

As a result of the change in financial year end date, the current
financial period covers a twelve-month period from January 1, 2012 to
December 31, 2012 (the “year ended December 31, 2012”), and the
comparative figures in these financial statements cover a six-month
period from July 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 (the “six months ended
December 31, 2011” or “P.E. 12/2011”). As the comparative figures
are not comparable with those of current financial period, financial
information for the twelve-month period from January 1, 2011 to
December 31, 2011 (the “year ended December 31, 2011” or “Y.E.
12/2011”), prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), has been disclosed for the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated cash flow statement and certain selected notes to
enhance comparability.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable HKFRSs, which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the principal accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. These new and revised HKFRSs have no significant impact
on the financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2012 and the six months ended December 31, 2011.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 33).

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interest in jointly controlled entities.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that

have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 31.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity, so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the period between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognized.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 2()).

(d) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement between the Group or the Company and other parties,
where the contractual arrangement establishes that the Group or the
Company and one or more of the other parties share joint control over
the economic activity of the entity.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets.
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities for
the year, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
items of the jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive income is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entity. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the jointly controlled entity is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a jointly controlled
entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when joint control
is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except where unrealized
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 2(j)).

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is
tested regularly for impairment (note 2())).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a
business combination is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

On disposal of an entity, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

165



AA TSR PM1EE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FEESFBR®

M=

1. REYRRZERFEEYE
REVMEERBHERSHEAIEA A
{ERREVE S WA R/ B AL E 2 T30 K%/
HIBTF - EFEEREFEEREESK
Mgz T RADAERZ B RT UMK AR
RIEREMR 2=

BREMEARTEAR  BRIEVEREE
BIESZEIBRMIDENRFELEE R
TREAISEFTE - AT EZSFHRMER D
EIRE WD PTE & A0 () Y ot B 18 B
RiE - WEWE <A WALKMEE2(0)
Pt ABR

WARERBEEHOGE —EYERER
IABRERAE € A K/ KIEE ANIEE - %
AR TENMEMN DB RARRIZED
¥ o EMEnBARKREMENYEERT)
DEABIBERERNFENER « 18
BEMEFTECRMERRNBEREROES
E‘JET&&%%%E’J%A o FETTE & kTR
2(g) Pt A

2. HFEREFYE
HEERPYERIARDEEAN - WA
PRANE R AT # 3R FE 2 BIEE AR o KA
BRETHBERAR BEAE  BRME2Z
BERA(HEE2(0 ))&ﬁfﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁf&ﬁ
o ATEBRETEFTMESBR MR
AR EMES R ER -

3. FEEZEYE
FEERAMEREIARBDEEN WA
FXANE J A B3R FE 2 K E AR o KA
TR E B EIE 2 LoD R
K BEEMMAMEEKRAMETE - 7] 23R
FEREEE2RBENMAMEE 2 A&t
MEEERKEDE IR 2ER °

166 | BEMELRRAT —T——FFR

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Properties
1. Investment properties and investment properties

under development
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognized in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in note 2(q).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as
are applied to other investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note 2(g).

2. Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are classified under current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
borrowing costs capitalized (note 2(0)) and other direct expenses. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

3.  Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are classified under current assets and
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including borrowing
costs capitalized, attributable to unsold properties. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price as determined by reference to
management estimates based on prevailing market conditions, less
costs to be incurred in selling the property.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Other fixed assets

1. Otherfixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses (note 2(j)). Gains or losses arising from
the retirement or disposal of an item of other fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

2. Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group

The classification is determined based on an evaluation of the substance
of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease. Leases of assets under which the lessee
assumes substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which the lessor
has not transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis and is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Other fixed assets (Continued)
2. Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company or the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(h).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are written off as an expense of the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(i)  Operating leases charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(n) Depreciation
1. Investment properties

No depreciation is provided for investment properties and investment
properties under development.

2. Other fixed assets

Depreciation on other fixed assets is calculated to write off the cost,
less their estimated residual value, if any, on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 50 years or unexpired lease term,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment ~ 4-20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized in the statement of
financial position at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss. Any impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired (note 2())).

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

() Impairment of assets

An assessment is carried out at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a current or non-current
asset, other than properties carried at revalued amounts, is impaired.

If any such indication exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognized as follows:

- For current receivables carried at amortized cost, the impairment
loss is recognized when there is objective evidence of impairment
and measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective rate where the
effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about events that have an impact on the asset’s estimated future
cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor. If in
a subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized in prior years.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognized in profit or loss.

For other non-current assets, the recoverable amount is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is recognized as an
expense in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognized. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not reversed.

(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (note 2(j)), except where the receivables are interest-free

loans or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,

the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (note 2(j)).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated cash flow statement.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference
between costs and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
1. Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Company issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognized as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognized in accordance with the Company’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. When no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognized in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized as deferred income
is amortized in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognized in accordance with note 2(p)(2) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of guarantee will call upon the Company
under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Company
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and
other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognized, less accumulated amortization.

2. Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. When the time value of the money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)
2. Other provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or loss as follows:

1. Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognized upon the
later of the signing of sale and purchase agreements or the issue of
occupation permit by the relevant government authorities, which is
taken to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have passed to the buyer.

2. Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognized on a straight
line basis over the terms of the respective leases, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payment receivable. Contingent rentals are recognized as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

S, Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

4.  Dividends

Dividends are recognized when the right to receive payment
is established.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized, are
recognized. The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes and the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Taxation (Continued)

When
development are carried at their fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(1), the amount of deferred tax
recognized is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
those assets at their carrying value at the end of the reporting period
unless the property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based on
the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

investment properties and investment properties under

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognized when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the
entity (“functional currency”). The financial statements of the Group are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
values are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated in Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

(t) Related parties

1. Aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.
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(i)

(i)

(V)

(Vi)

(i)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same Group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in note 2(t)(1).

A person identified in note 2(t)(1)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

Group’s internal financial reporting to the Group’s most senior

executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and

assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations. For disclosure purpose, a reportable

segment comprises either one or more operating segments which

can be aggregated together because they share similar economic

characteristics and nature of the regulatory environment, or single

operating segments which are disclosable separately because they

cannot be aggregated or they exceed quantitative thresholds.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v Employee benefits

1. Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement schemes

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, the cost of non-monetary

benefits and obligation for contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes, including those payables in mainland China and

Hong Kong under relevant legislation, are accrued in the year in which

the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

2.  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is measured at
grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted, and is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period taking into account the probability that the options
will vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-
based compensation reserve).

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognized in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the related employee
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price. If the options expire
or lapse after the vesting period, the related employee share-based
compensation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses according to the nature of services
and products provided. Management has determined three reportable
operating segments for the measurement of performance and the
allocation of resources. The segments are property leasing in Hong
Kong and mainland China and property sales in Hong Kong.

Property leasing segment includes property leasing operation. The
Group’s investment properties portfolio, which mainly consists of retail,
office, residential, serviced apartments and carparks are primarily located
in Hong Kong and mainland China. Property sales segment includes
development and sale of the Group’s trading properties in Hong Kong.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on profit
before taxation.

Segment assets principally comprise all non-current assets and current
assets directly attributable to each segment with the exception of interest
in jointly controlled entities, other assets, deferred tax assets and cash
and deposits with banks. The investment properties of the Group are
included in segment assets at their fair values whilst the change in fair
value of investment properties is not included in segment profits.
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(@) Turnover and results by segments

#

= R
Tumover

#F
Profit before taxation

—E-C-f + —E-CF
t=A=+-8 T=A=t-~ =
LEE LHEE
Year ended ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, | December 31,| December 31, December 31, December 31,
in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
2 Segment
YERE Property leasing
-BE —Hong Kong 3,016 1,483 2918 2,525 1,229 2,418
- R E A —Mainland China 3,082 1,393 2,601 2,371 1,072 2,005
6,098 2,876 5,519 4,896 2,301 4,423
MEHE Property sales
-5 - Hong Kong 1,274 193 193 846 150 150
HERE Segment total 7,372 3,069 5712 5,742 2,451 4,573
HelA Other income 2,774 189 331
THE A (M) Administrative expenses (Note) (626) (270) 455)
Kt AIREWE Operating profit before
2 AT EZEN change in fair value of
B R| investment properties 7,8%0 2,370 4,449
BREMEZ Increase in fair value of
DA investment properties 2,522 964 2,016
-NEBZYERE - property leasing in Hong Kong 1,703 ) 1,345
- ARERZ YEBRE - property leasing in mainland China 819 276 671
MBER Finance costs (348) (104) (154)
IR EDRNET Share of profits of jointly controlled entities 105 42 80
BB AT R Profit before taxation 10,169 3272 6,391
Ff%E Note:

TREREEREER _E=T=a8x(ZZ——HH :
—EEANEEL T —FF: —EBAT-BET) °
BEERARTREIENRNMERBBHNZ AT ENE
o AEERARMLELRSRH ©
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Administrative expenses included share-based payments of $233 million (P.E. 12/2011: $106
million; Y.E. 12/2011: $151 million) representing the amortization of the fair value of options
granted to employees over the vesting period and do not involve any cash outflow for the Group.
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3 EHBERPHER @ 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
(b) PHEEE (b) Total assets by segments
BEE
Total assets
in HK$ million
2 EB Segment
LIE SN Property leasing
- &% - Hong Kong 53,279 54,355
—- R A — Mainland China 70,924 64,476
124,203 118,831
LES 1S Property sales
- BB - Hong Kong 6,131 6,159
paRsi ot Segment total 130,334 124,990
BERNEIED Interest in jointly controlled entities 1,041 1,007
HihEzE Other assets 452 899
RERIBE = Deferred tax assets 12 35
R RIRITFER Cash and deposits with banks 36,025 23,732
BEE Total assets 167,864 150,663
4 HMKA 4 OTHER INCOME

+—H

_JJ:$E Six months

Year ended ended Year ended

\ N December 31, December 31,  December 31,

NBEETHE in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011

HEREYEK Gain on disposal of investment properties 2,148 _ _

ERITFBURA Bank interest income 602 168 300
ELHEERE AR AT S A Interest income from unlisted

held-to-maturity investments 19 10 19

P& 5 as/ (518 # 58 Net exchange gain/(loss) 5 (1) _

HAh Others _ 10 19

2,774 189 331
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5 BRELAZA 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
—E——F —ZT——%F
+=B=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
LEE Six months IEFE
Year ended ended Year ended
e — 2y December 31, December 31, | December 31,
BB BSITHE in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
BREADE R E R T 5IEIE Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
BRAEFAEEZRITEZKL  Interest on bank loans and other borrowings
HtEEZRE repayable within 5 years 400 117 180
ERRFREEZ Interest on bank loans and other borrowings
RITERRHMEER S repayable over 5 years 202 67 124
MEHOEM Finance lease charges 3 5 13
HAEEKAR Other borrowing costs 46 12 30
BEKALERE Total borrowing costs 741 201 347
o BB AE MY (M) Less: Borrowing costs capitalized (Note) (393) @7) (193)
WMIEER Finance costs 348 104 154
A=Y ESD %N Cost of properties sold 354 16 16
BIRA  BIEEEREER  Staff costs, including employee share-based
—BET=E8n(Z8—— payments of $233 million (P.E. 12/2011:
E@F‘EIEJ C—IBEREET $106 million; Y.E. 12/2011: $151 million) 907 404 710
—RERET— EF% JT)
E Depreciation 35 15 30
BEMRNER  BEAEE  Operating lease charges, including
AZ(ZZ——H/K: —F= contingent rentals of $Nil (P.E. 12/2011:
BB T ——FF: $12 million; Y.E. 12/2011: $24 million) 20 56 113
—FmaEET)
ZERET BN & Auditors’ remuneration
- IRBURTS — audit services 8 4 7
- DR MM IR - tax and other services 5 3 5
WEFFA and after crediting:
TEYZ HS WA LBTE Gross rental income from investment properties
BREESH BT less direct outgoings of $1,202 million
—EET(ZE——HM - (P.E. 12/2011: $575 million;
AELTHREET Y.E. 12/2011: $1,096 million),
—E——FE HEALT including contingent rentals of $345 million
NESL)  BEXAES (P.E. 12/2011: $176 million;
=EPThEEL(=F VY.E. 12/2011: $339 million) 4,896 2301 4,423
—HR RS
BEL: T —FE:
ZB=FhE&ET)
Bt 5E Note:
BERPVEZEERAEREFESZ 8N (ZT—H The borrowing costs have been capitalized at an average rate of 2.9% (P.E. 12/2011: 2.2%; Y.E.
B8 —E——FE: AoZ_%—)2FH 12/2011: 2.1%) per annum for properties under development.
KERL °
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6 EERSNEEBAECZHME 6 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BERTMEESeRIER LB IIEHITE  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of five
Lo ZZECMESLRMEWIEHNITE  Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Committee makes
ERBIIERITESHHBEFESE A recommendation to the Board on the Non-Executive Director’s and
SREMBIAITESHNHIMET - EZ= BN Independent Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration packages and
SIERBERENEEHE - $1iTEEMNE  determines the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors.
BIKIE - KEEARABNREBEREF -  Theemoluments of Directors are determined by the scope of responsibility
SEH| RIBITHEB AR EMBTE ° and accountability, and performance of individual Executive Directors,
taking into consideration of the Company’s performance and profitability,
market practice and prevailing business conditions, etc.

(@ == (@) Directors’ emoluments
EEMSFFIWT ¢ Details of directors’ emoluments are summarized below:

LABEBRETETE in HKS milion

BE
AL EH =B—=F
E 2= 3:11 BiRE +=A
REYFIE ST 8 Z Atk Ear=[g ;
Salaries, Group’s IEFE Six months
allowances BYETEAL contributions  Year ended ended
#8£ andbenefits Discretionary to retirement December 31, December 31,
Fees in kind bonuses scheme 2012 2011
HITES Executive Directors
PRESR Ronnie C. Chan 04 225 8.0 2.2 33.1 16.8
PREI1E Philip N.L. Chen 0.3 21.1 8.0 1.1 30.5 14.9
fAIZ8 H.C. Ho 0.3 4.3 37 0.2 8.5 35
=IRE(MiEE () Wiliam P.Y. Ko (Note (c) 0.2 9.1 3.8 0.9 14.0 7.3
e E(MEEd) Henry T.Y. Yiu (Note (d)) 02 5.8 - 06 6.6 49
FHTES Non-Executive Director
RER Nelson W.L. Yuen 0.3 - - - 0.3 0.1

BIFEHITEE Independent
Non-Executive Directors

BRisE S.S.Yin 0.3 - - - 0.3 0.1
ELESt Ronald J. Arculli 0.3 - - - 03 0.2
wEs H.K. Cheng 0.4 - - - 0.4 0.2
FR&E|S Laura L.Y. Chen 0.4 - - - 0.4 0.2
BEiaE P.W. Liu 0.4 - - - 0.4 0.2
(Epi= Dominic C.F. Ho 0.4 - - - 0.4 0.2
BE-Z——F Yearended

+=H=+—H December 31,2012 3.9 62.8 23.5 5.0 95.2 48.6

IEFE
HE-Z——%F Sixmonths ended

+—-HA=+—H December 31,2011 1.8 31.1 13.2 25 48.6

1EXEA
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6 ESNEREBEAEZHME
(%)

b) BEEFALTZHME

FRE&RHFALTF = (ZF——H

28 AARRBREZEZRMU(ZE

——HE : T)ARRARFIEES  #HE

Bl <& HA BT 5k 6(a) MM FE28(0) i ©

(c) BEBEEER_FT——F+=-A+=
ABERTES - BE-T——F+
Z“A=+—BLFE ENTEEE
rEZHERBEAE-—THENTE
7T AP BEHENHE6E) 2Me X
NTETZNRERFERTESERST
BAALNGIEEZH® - AEEMRR
RETEl 2 R R EMA -

(d HFERER=-"FT—=-F+=A+—
BRERTES BE_T—_F1
“A=t+—HLFE ENTHFE
FECZHERBALAET  HhE
EENH (@) 2BE R t+&ITx
MREREATESTRIEA/ANLRTA
BEZ#HE MAKERRNKTSZ
R o

() BRUALEMEIN ETEZMESRE
ARRBIREFEERAREREEER
R R A i AR Rt 81 R T At B3
1E o RRRER I Z B B AT
FE28(b) # R °

) BE=ZE——F+-_A=+—HIHF
ERZF——F+ZA=+—HILX
@A BERLEREZRSRITEA
BXNHREEABEBEEXRERSE
MBEAEHE -
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6

(b)

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (P.E. 12/2011:
all) are existing directors of the Company and two (P.E. 12/2011: Nil)
are ex-directors of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 6(a) and note 28(b).

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Mr. William P.Y. Ko resigned as executive director on December
12, 2012. Total emoluments paid to Mr. Wiliam P.Y. Ko of
$14.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 included
the emoluments set out in note 6(a) and $0.8 million paid as
salaries, the Group’s contributions to retirement scheme and
other expenses in relation to his employment as employee of the
Company following resignation as executive director.

Mr. Henry T.Y. Yiu resigned as executive director on December
11, 2012. Total emoluments paid to Mr. Henry T.Y. Yiu of $7.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 included the
emoluments set out in note 6(a) and $0.4 million paid as salaries
and the Group’s contributions to retirement scheme in relation
to his employment as employee of the Company following
resignation as executive director.

In addition to the above emoluments, certain directors and ex-
directors of the Company were granted share options under the
share option schemes of the Company and its ultimate holding
company, Hang Lung Group Limited. Details of which are
disclosed in note 28(b).

During the year ended December 31, 2012 and the six months
ended December 31, 2011, there were no amounts paid to
directors and senior executives above for compensation of loss
of office and inducement for joining the Group.
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7 HEWRERAZBIE

7 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

(a) #HFEMWmEkAZFHIES (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
Bz
—E-—F
t+=A=+—-A ToA=+—
ILFE Six months IEFE
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
REFIR Current tax
BEBNE Hong Kong Profits Tax 435 184 331
BAFEREZZIR Over-provision in prior years (12) ) @)
423 182 329
P EIFTSEL China Income Tax 550 226 436
973 408 765
RAERIR Deferred tax
WEWMEZ AT ER Change in fair value of investment properties 205 69 167
HibRE RELI =58 Other origination and reversal of
temporary differences 71 59 130
A&t (FsE20(0)) Total (Note 20(b)) 276 128 297
RIS BBt Total income tax expense 1,249 536 1,062

BEENSHBIRRE D RF/ PR b5t e
ARBEMABD Z A A(ZF——H
B:BAoZTREE: —T—FE B
DZTAFA)FE - FEABRERST
BEMEREASZ - TH(ZE——H
W:AoZ-TH: ZFT——FF B
Z—TH)AE R EFREMGEHIZERR
R E - RERB A RERBEAM 2SN
BLRERH_TTN\F-HA-—HRBEAL
Z BN 2 B BLE D 2 DM
TBLRPIISHH

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (P.E.
12/2011: 16.5%; Y.E. 12/2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year/period. China Income Tax mainly represents China
Corporate Income Tax calculated at 25% (P.E. 12/2011: 25%; Y.E.
12/2011: 25%) and China withholding income tax at the applicable
rates. A withholding tax of 5% is levied on the Hong Kong companies
in respect of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign
investment enterprises in mainland China earned after January 1, 2008.

BE—_T——F+_A=+—HItF
ErzEESLERAFEBANBEL(Z
T NEET T —F
B tEBRT)BTAERGAEERA
SFA o

(b) Share of jointly controlled entities’ taxation for the year ended
December 31, 2012 of $8 million (P.E. 12/2011: $4 million; Y.E.
12/2011: $7 million) is included in the share of profits of jointly

(b)

controlled entities.

185



AA TSR PM1EE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 HFEWEKRAZBIIE® 7 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEM ENT (continued)
(c) FIEX HERHAHNIABABI RS () Reconciliation between actual tax expense and profit before
&2 g taxation at applicable tax rates:

A==
175 1E A
Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
o December 31, December 31, December 31,
LAEH B & et E in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
R B A% A Profit before taxation 10,169 3,272 6,391
YRR R AT % B LA @ REHE Tax on profit before taxation at applicable rates 1,966 678 1,314
ZBiA
IEERBIUMA 2 HIBFE Tax effect of non-taxable income (717) (117) (241)
IR 2 BRIER & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 61 14 33
EE Az HEEEREM Tax effect of tax losses utilized and
AIREREEE 2 FIBFE  other deductible temporary differences (98) (50) (58)
AERZMEERBZFHEZE  Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses 49 13 16
WEFERB ZR Over-provision in prior years (12) @) @)
ERHESLH Actual tax expense 1,249 536 1,062

(d) “F/HR - EEMZEWZITARA  (d) There is no tax effect relating to the components of the other

HEHEMBZE o comprehensive income for the year/period.
8 MRERME(AEF 8 NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
RS R B4 R IR AR A BB AR M 2%  Net profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of $2,483 million
FMZTHEENTF=E8L( =T ——HfE (P.E. 12/2011: $2,712 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
“t+tEE—F=ZEET) ° statements of the Company.
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9 RKRE
@ AFE/MKRE

B R BITAE

in HK$ million

9 DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends attributable to the year/period

—g-=% +=A=+—
+=HA=t+—H 1ER1EA
LEE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2011

EE M REIREF HRE Interim dividend declared and paid of
B4 17 cents per share 761 - -
EEHMREIRERGRES Final dividend declared and paid of Nil cent
T(ZE——HR  Z s (P.E. 12/2011: Nil cent; Y.E. 12/2011:
“E——FF: BRETMI) 54 cents) per share - _ 2.415
NEZABBIEARIREER  Final dividend of 57 cents (P.E. 12/2011:
A= ——HE - 36 cents; Y.E. 12/2011: 36 cents) per share
=R ZE-—FE proposed after the end of the reporting period 2,552 1,610 1,610
= WAN(IT)
3,313 1,610 4,025
NEERBEIR 2 RERE  WEMEZR A  The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not
wERZAE- been recognized as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

b) BE=ZZT—F+ZA=+—HIER
BAZ+AE—TFT—EETKRHPRE
(REBESE=1+NUTZREEHZE
BOIRAHE IR -_T——F+_-A
=t HULEFEHERRE(ZZT—
—HE T HE—FHREET) °

(b) The final dividend of $1,611 million (calculated based on 36 cents
per share with issued share capital as at dividend pay-out date)
for the six months ended December 31, 2011 was approved
and paid in the year ended December 31, 2012 (P.E. 12/2011:
$2,415 million).
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10 BREF 10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) SWMEARESEFTIZATEE (a) The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
ETE on the following data:

Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
' December 31, December 31, December 31,
BB REITE in HKS$ million 2012 2011 2011
AUGTESIREARNEEZF| 2 Earnings for calculation of basic and
B ¥ (B R AE(R 4L F]) diluted earnings per share
(net profit attributable to shareholders) 8,395 2,516 4,890

fRinEx B
Number of shares

IEFEE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
B BRETE in million 2012 2011 2011

FAUGHESREARRER 2D Weighted average number of shares used

hniETE in calculating basic earnings per share 4,474 4,472 4,471
EEEERZBER D ZE Effect of dilutive potential shares —
- R {n ERfE share options 29 13 35

AUGTEGREERN M  Weighted average number of shares used
It in calculating diluted earnings per share 4,496 4,485 4,506
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10 ERER @) 10
(b) BERELHEARGH(TRIEREME (b)
NFEEE - WHKGERELERE &

JEFERS RS ) ZATE AT ¢

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The underlying net profit attributable to shareholders which excluded
changes in fair value of investment properties net of related deferred
tax and non-controlling interests, is calculated as follows:

HE
=4—F
1EX1EA
Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
e e December 31, December 31, December 31,
LAY EEITTE in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
1% B A 4l 1) Net profit attributable to shareholders 8,395 2516 4,890
WEYE T N ESE 2 FE  Effect of changes in fair value of
investment properties (2,522) (964) (2,016)
R R IE Y Effect of corresponding deferred tax 205 69 167
SENTIIREE 2 N TE  Effect of change in fair value of investment
BE) B properties of jointly controlled entities (62) (20) (38)
(2,379) 915) (1,887)
FEIE AR A Non-controlling interests 162 49 113
(2,217) (866) (1,774)
% 3R e (R B A AT Underlying net profit attributable to shareholders 6,178 1,650 3,116

RIERREEEAEANFEZ BIRBNA

The earnings per share based on underlying net profit attributable to
shareholders are:

BZE HE
—®-—=F t=A=+— E
+=A=+—H 1E7NEA
IEFE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2011
HAK Basic $1.38 $0.37 | $0.70 |
e Diluted $1.37 $0.37 | $0.69 |
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BE — &

)

11 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP
BRPITEME

Investment

B properties
Investment under Efth
properties development Others

fil

11 [

B R BT E

in HK$ million

AR ESALE - Cost or valuation:
RZT——%+tHA—H At July 1, 2011 85,918 21,524 279 107,721
bE 5 AR Exchange adjustment 909 494 2 1,405
NE Additions 104 7,310 29 7,443
HeE Disposals - - ©®) ®)
A Increase in fair value 956 ) - 964
#BA/ () Transfer 5,723 (5,723) _ _
W_Z—F+_A At December 31, 2011 and
=t+—HRZZE—=F January 1, 2012 93,610 23,613 304 117,527
—A—H
(ERI Exchange adjustment 34 @7) - )
NE Additions 403 5,614 79 6,096
& Disposals (3,054) - (18) (3.072)
ASEIER )i Increase in fair value 2522 - - 2520
A /() Transfer 4,708 (4,708) - -
R-T——F At December 31, 2012 98,223 24,482 365 123,070
+=—HA=+—H
ZEHE - Accumulated depreciation:
WZZE——FtH—H At July 1, 2011 . - 75 75
FE XA Exchange adjustment - - _ _
AERYTE Charge for the period _ _ 15 15
k£ Written back on disposals - _ ) )
RZZ——%+—-A At December 31, 2011 and
=t+—HERZZE—=F January 1, 2012 - - 87 87
—A—H
[ 5 a2 Exchange adjustment - - - -
REEFE Charge for the year _ _ 35 a5
& E Written back on disposals - - 7) 7)
R=-T—=F At December 31, 2012 - - 115 115
+=A=+-—~H
BRTEDFAE ¢ Net book value:
R-E——F At December 31, 2012 98,223 24,482 250 122,955
+=-HA=+—H
WoZ2——F At December 31, 2011 93,610 23,613 217 117,440
+—A=+—H~H
EE&E 2 KAES Cost or valuation of the fixed
HEWT : assets is made up as follows:
—ZE——_H+ZH=+—H December 31,2012
fh1E Valuation 98,223 24,482 - 122,705
BXAME Cost - - 365 365
98,223 24,482 365 123,070
—Z——F+ZA=+—H December 31, 2011
HE Valuation 93,610 23,613 - 117,223
B Cost - - 304 304
93,610 23,613 304 117,627
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11 BEEEE — &8 #m 11 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (continued)
VI 2 BRENFED T T An analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

ERAZEYZ
wEMZE Investment properties

Investment properties under development

LB EEITTEE  in HKS million

BRI Long leases in Hong Kong 34,440 34,417 - -
EBBINREAME  Long leases outside Hong Kong - - 797 760
FEPHMHR Medium term leases in Hong Kong 18,446 19,646 - -
EBBHNPEZ  Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 45,337 39,544 23,685 22,853
ARG MR Short lease in Hong Kong - 3 - -

98,223 93,610 24,482 23,613

(@) AEBZEREVENRZRTIEEYWE (@) The investment properties and investment properties under

HR—_E——F+-_A=+—HHEZFE development of the Group were revalued as at December 31,
—AKFEBETHEREEEREBRA 2012 by Mr. Charles C.K. Chan, Registered Professional Surveyor
AlzaMEEANSM(ERENSE )RR (General Practice), of Savills Valuation and Professional Services
B E RIS EEEEEITHE - Limited, on a market value basis.

REEREMEZ REFEANBER The net book value of investment properties of the Group includes
ERERYFEE2EE  HEmFE an amount of $Nil (2011: $5,985 million) in respect of an asset
RE(ZE—F AT AENTEH held under a finance lease.

BET)
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11
(@

(b)

192 |

BE&EE — K£E8®)

()
AEBEMEEEE 2 RAFERRE
URBEBARBRIES 2 b
EZY)—FHBEET(ZE——F : —
THEE) A KREBIRINAF H
RFz I EREYNBETL(Z
T——& : \B&m) KUK
BAEZ I EEERD=THEET
(ZFE—F:=FZa&T)°

MEHERSBRVENEZHES
WABBARTEATNBEL(ZF
—— 8 N EETREET
—E——FE:ATRE-—TAIAE
B

AEBRIFEFEHHENMZRER
WOMEME - ZFHO—ROP
RB—ERF AP EREER
% EREFHBEAAGR - REIE
HBREEHEN R ABREEZ
&k - MAKRBEEFIHH —FE LI
MHEHRELD - HETHEHOBIBERAE
% DH2RHEP 2 WAMERE

EEMWEARAR —T—_FFIf

11
(@)

(b)

FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Continued)

(Continued)

The net book value of other fixed assets of the Group included
long leases of $14 million (2011: $15 million) in respect of land
and building held in Hong Kong, medium term leases of $8
million (2011: $8 million) and long leases of $35 million (2011:
$32 million) in respect of land and buildings held outside Hong
Kong respectively.

Property leasing revenue includes gross rental income from
investment properties of $6,098 million (P.E. 12/2011: $2,876
million; Y.E. 12/2011: $5,519 million).

The Group leases out its properties under operating leases
and subleases under finance lease. Leases typically run for an
initial period of two to five years, with some having the option to
renew, at which time all terms are renegotiated. Long term leases
contain rent review or adjustment clauses and the Group has a
regular proportion of its leases up for renewal each year. Certain
leases include contingent rentals calculated with reference to the
revenue of tenants.
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1 EEEE — &B® 11 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Continued)

(b) ® (b) (Continued)
REER  XEBRKREMERER At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total future
RIREWE - BB TR HEEC S %M minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases in
AW 2 KRR BT - respect of investment properties and investment properties under

development were as follows:

24 HHEa

in HKS$ million Subleases  Other leases
—FR Within 1 year - 4,931 4,931
—FEERFR After 1 year but within 5 years - 7,497 7,497
hF% After 5 years - 2,207 2,207
- 14,635 14,635

payicl HMEL
in HK$ million Subleases Other leases
—FR Within 1 year 185 4,362 4,547
—FRIERLFN After 1 year but within 5 years 856 5,967 6,823
AF% After 5 years 1,401 922 2,323
2,442 11,251 13,693
12 B A B 12 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
A
Company
BB REITHE in HK$ million
EEMRRG - AE Unlisted shares, at cost 8 8
FEUR BT B A RI5RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 71,625 62,014
71,633 62,022
FEMBARZFHERSHAMIFESS © Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

(@) FEWHBRARFIBEAERE - 28K& (@) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

EETENE  MEBBHZERER with no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current
RE+ZEARTEWE - BHIEFE assets as they are not expected to be recoverable within the
MBNEEE o next twelve months.

(b) ERKWBARFEAELIE - 28K  (b) Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free with no

EETERE MEABBHZERER fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current liabilities as
ARTZREARTLEE - thIIIEFE they are not expected to be repaid within the next twelve months.
REALE -

/1L =4
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13 §& AT

)

& 13 INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

BB BESTHE in HK$ million

JEIEEEFE - FELTRGD Share of net assets — unlisted shares 1,082 1,013

FERE &R RIRIE Amount due to a jointly controlled entity (41) ©®)
1,041 1,007

JEREEATIRIES BEEM - LATHF  Amount due to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest-bearing
KB REBRTFERY  MEFEHZZR  at market rate with no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-
ERERRK+_EARNEE  #®H{EFE  current liabilities as it is not expected to be repayable within the next

MBALE o twelve months.
SENTZHEMEREFHNME36 c A& Detalils of jointly controlled entities are set out in note 36. The summary
REL AT 2 HEZRNEEF AR financial information related to the Group’s interest in jointly controlled
LU entities are as follows:
N BETHE in HK$ million
IEMENEE Non-current assets 1,146 1,084
RENEE Current assets 41 26
SERPaE Non-current liabilities (80) (77)
mENEE Current liabilities (25) (20)
BEFE Net assets 1,082 1,013

HE

= —F—F

IENEAR [+=A=+—H

Six months IEFE

Year ended ended Year ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,

in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011

EER Turnover 65 31 59
RNEE/HHF Profit for the year/period 105 42 80
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14 HbEE

14 OTHER ASSETS

in HK$ million

B R EBTTE
A LM ERHARE

Unlisted held-to-maturity investments

(BfF3E) in Hong Kong (Note) 452 398
ERTIELHTRER Advances to unlisted investee companies - 1
452 899
Ao BIEIR R —F 2 &/E Less: Unlisted held-to-maturity investments in Hong Kong with
EEIREIIEA maturity less than one year (Note) (452) (449)
& (MET)
- 450

MIEE -

RZB——F+-A=+—8 AEEFFFLHEFR
R EER - E-—=FNAE_ZE—=F+_A%
B WEFEREBF - HANEE_HNE(CE——F: —H
REE—BAR)ZAERRGEXRGTE  BFEHFFIRS

15 WERIBITER

in HK$ million

Note:

At December 31, 2012, the Group held investments in unlisted bonds which will mature from
September 2013 to December 2013. The effective yield of the bonds ranged from 1.6% to 2.9%
(2011: 1.6% to 2.9%) per annum, payable quarterly or semi-annually.

15 CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

THIFER Time deposits 33,417 19,808
RITIER Cash at banks 2,608 3,924
RAEMBIRRERNEE R Cash and deposits with banks in the consolidated statement of
RITIER financial position 36,025 23,732
T R =1E A& B HEIMERITIER  Less: Bank deposits with maturity greater than three months (8,036) (4,520)
GERERERNRE R Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement 27,989 19,212
REEEY
NEEH  KEB RS RIETEFRIRE At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and deposits with
BARGE _B(—Z—F : TI+E) banks were interest-bearing at an average rate of 2.0% (2011: 0.7%)

AR HE¥OMT

per annum with currency denominated in:

in HK$ million

B EE Hong Kong Dollars equivalent of:
AEHE Renminbi 32,840 19,074
peidins Hong Kong Dollars 2,142 3,497
ESIV United States Dollars 1,043 1,161
36,025 23,732
REEBFHEARERITERABNERS  The Group holds Renminbi bank deposits to meet its ongoing payment

NI H B RIA B BN NRELE

obligations in relation to its development projects in mainland China.
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16 BEUWERF R E A UK 16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(@) Bt AEKEZLEMmEKRZZEYK (a) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables with
IRKE AR AT the following terms:

B R BITAE in HK$ million

RARE—EA A Current and within 1 month 46 66

—ZE=f@A 1 -3 months 8 3

=—EANE Over 3 months 4 3
53 72

RIBEEKGBBETITIEAN - AEBZ{EE  The balance of bad and doubtful debts is insignificant. The details on
BUREFIBE IR EE30(c) ° the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 30(c).

(b) rEFEZHMEKZEIE=EZN\E (b) Included in other receivables of the Group are deposit of land

Erx(ZZ—%F: =EZ)\BET) acquisition in mainland China of $308 million (2011: $308 million)
R BERHEEE it e Rk M{EX and amount recoverable from a jointly controlled entity of $444
THoeET(ZE—%F : XEALT million (2011: $693 million) which is unsecured and has no fixed
ZEBT)ZARESE ATIFHKIE terms of repayment.

SEFRIR A SRR N B T R B o

17 SEYHE 17 PROPERTIES FOR SALE

BB ESTE in HK$ million
INE B2 FEREDYE —  Properties under development for sale located in Hong Kong —
REAH 32 long leases 1,296 987
UREBZFECERYE — Completed properties for sale located in Hong Kong —
BRI 22 medium term leases 4,813 5,127
6,109 6,114
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RITERREMEE
REER EERETERREMEEZ
BEERIOT ¢

18 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

At the end of the reporting period, bank loans and other borrowings

were unsecured and repayable as follows:

B R BITAE in HK$ million

—F Rk EIE] Within 1 year or on demand 1,113 4,700

—FREFR After 1 year but within 2 years 1,378 864

MERERFR After 2 years but within 5 years 18,955 13,197

REE Over 5 years 8,523 2,035
28,856 16,096

o R M E A Less: unamortized front end fees (233) 62)
28,623 16,034
29,736 20,734

FRN - MAERTERERSSE A NEZE NG
FE(ZE—HE SR AEE+HA
E: =T —&F TR =-BEELHAE)
FREFTE -

AEBZETEEXINMBRORS - %
EWBROBRAGERNEARHEZIEE
BREERENSERRERERAAT
BEFEZEXRTERNMREKRT « F
W AEBDTEE2ETREFRONER -

RZZE——F+-_A=+—H AEEH
At EB-_TFTtEET(ZZ—%: |
T+ = RB=TFTEI)ABARNBRITEEEE -

o s RRRIZ—EE2EHREHNNERR]
B —EEE=TREEL(ZE—F : =
TRET)ZHBHEREI([5TE]]) - B
HEB  AEBTEHFETETATEE
NTFhEER(ZE——F : T)+FHE
B ERFANRA=ZHRAAEZNI+H
B(ZF——F :F) -

All bank loans are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 0.6% to 8.5%
(P.E. 12/2011: 0.5% to 7.5%; Y.E. 12/2011: 0.3% to 7.5%) per annum
during the year.

Certain of the Group’s borrowings are attached with financial covenants
which require that at any time, the Group’s consolidated tangible net
worth is not less than and the ratio of borrowings to consolidated
tangible net worth is not more than certain required levels. During the
year, all these covenants have been complied with by the Group.

At December 31, 2012, the Group had $5,127 million (2011: $5,330
million) committed undrawn banking facilities.

In addition, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has a US$3 billion
(2011: US$2 billion) Medium Term Note Program (the “Program”). At the
end of the reporting period. the Group has issued in total in equivalent of
$5,799 million (2011: $Nil) 10-year bonds with coupon rates ranged from
3.55% 10 4.75% (2011: Nil) per annum under the Program.
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19 BAERRKREMENR 19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

B BEETE in HK$ million
FER R ERT B A (BT (@) Creditors and accrued expenses (Note (a)) 3,242 2,420
Bz (FI3E () Deposits received (Note (b)) 1,555 1,389
fENRI M B A T FE (KisE (c) Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (Note (c)) 14 14
4,811 3,823
Ft5E Notes:
@EMNFREFEAREEIN —FATSEMN 2R (a) Creditors and accrued expenses include retention money payable of $335 million (2011: $266
REBE=E=FTREBEL(ZZE—F : _E~ATH million) which is not expected to be settled within one year.
8) e

b EWRENE-_FTEL(ZE—F: \EATLEE (o) Deposits received of $920 million (2011: $857 million) are not expected to be settled within
RPN —FRNTEE - one year.

) FE R Z M B A R Z A Y AR - 08 &8 EEE (c) The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
BH - of repayment.

Bt AENERREMENRZ ENER Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the
HERE DT ¢ following aging analysis:

BB R EITEE in HK$ million
DS RREEIE Due within 1 month 2,446 1,752
=B REEER Due after 3 months 367 287
2,813 2,039
20 NEEEHMBMRRETLEZ 20 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
Bi1E STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) AEFHIE (@) Current taxation

BB BITAE in HK$ million

BEBFISTHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 202 184

B FT S B Provision for China Income Tax 186 170

LAEFE 2 BB AFIER Hong Kong Profits Tax payable relating to prior years 4 38
392 392
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20 REGZEBiREk Ltz 20 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED

BIE ) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) IEFEFIIE (b) Deferred taxation

B ITs in HK$ million
RIEFIABE Deferred tax liabilities 8,947 8,696
BERIAE B Deferred tax assets (12) (35)
RIETIA B B FE Net deferred tax liabilities 8,935 8,661

WNGEA BT TR IEERIBEE/ The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognized in the
(BE)WAEKKE/ BN ZEHIT consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during
the year/period are as follows:

in HK$ million HERDE
QN e
e BT
Depreciation BEAZ
allowances 1R IG 8
in excess YIZE Future
R of related  Revaluation benefit of tax Hity
BB HEER - Deferred tax arising from: depreciation  of properties losses Others
RZE—FtA—H  AtJuly1,2011 1,057 7.206 (32) 98 8,329
FARE R BB AR Charged to exchange reserve 18 186 _ _ 204
B AR/ (BA) Charged/(Credited) to profit or
(P 7(@) loss (Note 7(a)) 31 69 ) 31 128
R-ZE——%F+_H1 At December 31, 2011 and
=+—BKR-ZT——4% January 1, 2012 1,106 7,461 (35) 129 8,661
—A—H
FORE 5 R A B Credited to exchange reserve - ©) _ _ ©)
EQTEESW?D B/ (BEN) Charged/(Credited) to profit or
(FHEET7(a)) loss (Note 7(a)) 41 205 33 fc) 276
ﬁé‘i’g—:i At December 31, 2012 1,147 7,664 @ 126 8,935
—B=+-—

[Hih | TEaERIIEREDEATRHA  Included in “Others” is mainly deferred tax liabilities recognized in
M7 RO HERER Z BAREFRIBEE - respect of undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in
mainland China.
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20 REFEEHHARRETLEZ

BiTE (@)

(c) KRERZELEMIEBEEE
REBEARE THBEA RS EHRHE LR
Mt=FATtEETL(ZZ—F : +&
—FRNEET) MBS EIBMELNIELERE
BEFLER  AAR-_ZT——F+=A
—+—B - REEEEREENREE
b D AEE - L EBBEBOTG
BIENIERREER EW ARG - MR E
Wi EBH BB BEEAN AR F4A
FF&IERF o

21 BEENEIE
MEANRLEMNZBSRERLEE
mF

B R EBTITAE
EfNEE
—FR

in HK$ million
Amounts payable

Within 1 year

20 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized

The Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of $1,357 million (2011: $1,016 million) sustained in the
operations of certain subsidiaries as the availability of future taxable
profits against which the assets can be utilized is not probable at
December 31, 2012. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong operations
do not expire under current tax legislation. The tax losses arising from
the operations in mainland China expire five years after the relevant

accounting year end date.

21 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Total minimum lease payments under finance lease and their present
values are as follows:

ROENZ
HER2BRE

AR IRFE
STAZFIE
Interest
expenses
relating to
future periods

Present

value of
minimum

lease payments

minimum
lease payments

B R BT E

in HK$ million

&%
—FR

Amounts payable

Within 1 year

104 3 107

BMEBOAEZERFNEAT(ZFT——
FrLE)-
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The effective interest rate of the finance lease obligations is Nil (2011:
7%) per annum.
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22 JRZA

22 SHARE CAPITAL

RHEE RAEEE f&HEE RAEEE
Number of Amount of Number of Amount of
shares share capital shares share capital
(BEBR) (&) (B8R
(million) ($million) (million)
JETE Authorized
SEEE—T Shares of $1 each 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
BEEITRER Issued and fully paid
W—RA—R/+A—H AtJanuary 1/July 1 4,473 4,473 4,472 4,472
BRI D EAfE AT & Shares issued under share
Eisapdiich) option scheme 4 4 1 ]
w+=-—A=+—H At December 31 4,477 4,477 4,473 4,473
23 f#fE 23 RESERVES
(@ %H (@) The Group
E bR
Other reserves
&
¥ e
f&fn BRI . Employee RE
RiE Capital [ENf#E#E  share-based bl 1
Share redemption Exchange compensation #2%8 Retained Total
in HK$ million premium reserve reserve reserve  Total profits  reserves
RZF——FELA—H Atduy1,2011 32,890 2,066 4,095 385 39,436 65811 105247
ANERE R Profit for the period - - - - - 2516 2,516
BREFINAE QA Exchange difference arising
BRIEEAVIEN =R from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - - 1,520 - 1,520 - 1,520
A= 42EE Total comprehensive income for
the period - - 1,520 - 1,520 2,516 4,036
EFERARE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (2,415) (2,415)
BTN Issue of shares 15 - _ _ 15 _ 15
EEKREER Employee share-based payments 4 - - 92 96 10 106
R-_ZFB——1F At December 31, 2011 and
+TZA=+—HAK January 1, 2012 32,909 2,066 5,615 477 41,067 65,922 106,989
—E-—F—HA—H
RNEE A Profit for the year . - _ . - 8395 8395
BREBINAE R A Exchange difference arising
BRIEEAVIEN =R from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - - 150 - 150 - 150
NEFREZEEEE  Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 150 - 150 8,395 8,545
EEERARE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (1,611) (1,611)
KEZFHER S Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - - - - (761) (761)
BATR Issue of shares 56 - - _ 56 _ 56
EEREER Employee share-based payments 14 - - ©) 8 205 233
R‘\ig};:i At December 31, 2012 32,979 2,066 5,765 471 41,281 72,170 113,451
—BA=t—H
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23 @B 23 RESERVES (Continued)
(b) 7] (b) The Company
H
Other reserves
 mAED
AKX fHERE
Bty BEEHE Employee RE
iy Capital  share-based wmA  AREE
DI Share redemption compensation #8%8 Retained Total
BB REBTHE in HK$ million premium reserve reserve  Total  profits reserves
R=ZT——FELH—H At July 1, 2011 32,890 2,066 385 35341 2,559 37,900
AEHF M 2 E NS 42%8  Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period - - - - 2,712 2,712
EFERHRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - (2,415) (2,415)
BT Issue of shares 15 _ _ 15 _ 15
EEREE M Employee share-based payments 4 - 92 96 10 106
R-_ZT——F+_H1 At December 31, 2011 and
Eg— E RZF—ZF January 1, 2012 32,909 2,066 477 35452 2,866 38,318
NEE RN R 2 HE WS 4258 Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 2,483 2,483
EFERARE Final dividends in respect of previous
financial year - _ _ - (1,611) (1,611
REFEFHRE Interim dividends in respect of current
financial year - - - - (761) (761)
BITRR D Issue of shares 56 _ _ 56 _ 56
EEBEER Employee share-based payments 14 - ®) 8 205 233
E@i?gfi . At December 31, 2012 32,979 2,066 471 35516 3,202 38,718

i)

AEBERZZE——F+=-HA=1T—HMIR  The retained profits for the Group at December 31, 2012 included
BafMeE_fEtT a8 xt(ZE——  $276 milion (2011: $178 million) in respect of statutory reserves of the
F:—EBETN\BBT)NTREAHHEBL  subsidiaries in mainland China.

Al BT -

B EREERNERREAEDAE  The application of the share premium account and the capital redemption

BEBCREHEAND) BT NLEEEE TN reserve are governed by Section 48B and Section 49H of the Hong Kong

FIREE EHREBRERESIKNIEL  Companies Ordinance respectively. The exchange reserve comprises

RIS HRREE 2 ZRE - FUOMIFE2(v)  the exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

Frit - BERGHEERERFBECREER  statements of overseas subsidiaries. The employee share-based

REATR 2 R A2 AP E - compensation reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as explained in note 2(v).

T——_F+ZH=+—H ' ARQFT  The aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves available for

HOYRTFREZFHEESELEA=T(EZE distribution to equity shareholders of the Company at December 31,
“EBL(ZE—F : —+//UESRTF/NAE 2012 was $3,202 million (2011: $2,866 million).
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23 f#fEm)

(b) AT

BAREHE
AEEMNEAEERRZBEZEEEZAR
EAREBERFESE  AREREEDR
T AEEMFOERENZ - BREUAGIEK
AESEE o

AEEEBNMNERARS NEEELEANE
B NEAERRSEEKFAIEHRRNER
= PR [ 3R L 1 [F B AN P SR B B R AR
Bz EMETE  XREAREEZ XA
BREERR EHHEREBIELAE -

AEEEBRTABERRLRRSRENS
Ko WE BB ERKM MG ALERERE
BEARGRE - AEREFEREREINFE
A2 B - FEEERTERLRBEBLD
AYE - RRERBITER - ESERR
REat M IR R

o

Bk

R-B-—ZFR-F——F+A=1—
B AEEENFREKF - KRRAIHHE
EATF B A B X B SN B AT sk
IR o

24 FFERED

R A EMBRNARE (R + A
=t+—R)E2EHE KB QR R AE
3 R BRI RER - IFERER Z EE)
AEENFARRERK o

23 RESERVES (Continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to other
stakeholders, and to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in the light of changes in the
Group’s business portfolio and economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing ratio
and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future financial
obligations and commitments. The gearing ratio represents the
proportion of net debt to equity plus net debt. Net debt represents bank
loans and finance lease obligations, less cash and deposits with banks.
Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests.

The Group has a net cash position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

24 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests and the share
of profit or loss attributable to other shareholders in respect of the
subsidiaries not wholly-owned by the Group as at December 31. Details
of movement of non-controlling interests are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
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25 RERKEEK RS 25 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
S
82z
—B--F +
+=HA=+—H
IEE
Year ended
December 31,
2012

+
17N @A
Six months
ended
December 31,
2011

Year ended
December 31,
2011

BB BSITHE

in HK$ million

B 258 A s ) Profit before taxation 10,169 3,272 6,391
PR Adjustments for:
HERE YR Gain on disposal of investment properties (2,148) - -
RITFLEUA Bank interest income (602) (168) (300)
JEEMEHEIHBREFNBIUA  Interest income from unlisted

held-to-maturity investments (19) (10) (19)
B 15 & A Finance costs 348 104 154
e Depreciation 35 15 30
HEEMETEEERSE Loss on disposal of other fixed assets 11 - -
WEMEZ AT EZEM Increase in fair value of investment properties (2,522) (964) (2,016)
FEIEE &R TR Share of profits of jointly controlled entities (105) (42) (80)
EEREER Employee share-based payments 233 106 151
FeEMEZRL /(L) Decrease/(Increase) in properties for sale 19 (120) (228)
FEUBR R K E b lEU 3R 2 3814/ Decrease/(Increase) in trade and

(#5h0) other receivables 221 67 (792)

FEART R R BT E R 2 1840/ (Fi4) Increase/(Decrease) in creditors and

accrued expenses 200 (168) 281
EliiRE 2 m Increase in deposits received 166 121 191
FERRRMBRARFIAZRL  Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries - - (37)
REKEER RS Cash generated from operations 6,006 2,213 3,726

26 HAREE
REEAZ RARBERT ;

26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities were as follows:

NC])
Company

NG =R v

in HK$ million

B A TIPS ZRITER
mieftz &%

Guarantees given to banks to secure credit

facilities drawn by subsidiaries 29,994 20,821

AREWERMB AR 2 BB MEMRITE
ERMft ERERTMRETEA - B%EFE
ERBITEEZAFEBEAEHFTENR
KRERE(ZT—F:F)-
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The Company has not recognized any deferred income for the
guarantees given in respect of borrowings and other bank facilities for
subsidiaries as their fair value cannot be reliably measured and their
transaction price was $Nil (2011: $Nil).
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27 AEIE
(@) MEEE A MRS HE B S BA
APENT

in HK$ million

27 COMMITMENTS

(a) At the end of the reporting period, capital commitments not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

EEH Contracted for 5,527 6,441
BRERHRELD Authorized but not contracted for 29,344 27,551
34,871 33,992

FlAEIZERRAKERTEALS
ERH R IZEYMRAGESE 2 THKAR
PIREEAARRA -

(b) AEBIRE+FNERZ TR
$MOBRETHE - EFROE
EAEYERATEE 2 RARS -
REER - RRB M 2SR
W

The above commitments include mainly the land costs and construction
related costs to be incurred in respect of the Group’s development of
its investment properties in various cities in mainland China.

(b) The Group leases certain properties under non-cancellable
operating leases expiring within ten years. Certain leases include
contingent rentals calculated with reference to revenue from
the properties. At the end of the reporting period, total future
minimum lease payments were as follows:

in HK$ million

Within 1 year

28 EE®A

(@ EIKER

REBE AHIEERRTREHFB RS
B BT AER MBI ARAR
REARE YHEXESEEER @K
EEzAEDREE -

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme
for its employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group by an independent corporate trustee and managed
by professional fund managers.
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28 EERM®)

(@ RAEFR@®
BENEEHZEEZEAF©ZAHETH
DHER  BEB D LIRRBEEEMA T
TFE - BERERERAZHESAEBHFA
R ZETE - HE QU 2 Ty AGTEl
He 2 EHERN - REBTR T REHEKFE
METTFEASKREEES 2 HBERBAR
ERERE o ANEB TSI 2 HFUR
E MR BF S BN DA 75 S EDR
R REBRFRZEHERBE A T —
BB (ZE——H[E : —T&x) r mE
AREE 2 AREREBBRHAE—BET
(Z=2—HF : m+&7T) o

—IREREFRFIEATEEFE([BEEs
& )ERI - WRHBELIRBHEE S -
BENEEDHREE2BAEHEEA(L
RAE—EBATIT)2BD 2 AIEH @GR
Ko ARBZHFE2BMARKEBENER
ZIERFISIAREHEA SN REREZS ° N
SENFAEHZRBSHRERRANES
T(ZE——HfH : —B&T) °

HRAREZEREF S —HEHE2R
58 18 < AR (1 9 BB SR AR KT 81 ([ B AR IR
21)  BEERARAERARESFEIZKE
BERER - MHES A —RITEESEE
FRAGHEIRIEDAE o

ARAEFBEAMEE XK 2 HBRR
H{E B Ty BE 3t i U P2 3 2 SR AR AR
TSI ([P BRKENEE ) 2K E - %
EPEAMMBRARMEAEZHE—F
T DRESZXHEBZEABEADL
) P B AR PR A AR BIVE H A VE IR AR
BANEE  MABEEHHBRARAEZE
o B 1 P BB A B) 2 AT B B S SRR K
ZRE ZRIKRBMEE - ZFHE ALK
BRARANFAERZHFTBRES—TH
BELT(CZ—HF: —T&8mx) -
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(@) Retirement benefits (Continued)

Contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at a
certain percentage of employees’ basic salaries, the percentage varying
with their length of service. When an employee leaves the scheme prior
to his or her interest in the Group’s contributions being fully vested,
forfeited contributions are credited to reserves of the fund. Depending
on the level of reserves, the Group may direct the trustee to credit
dividends to members’ accounts out of the reserves of the fund. The
Group’s contributions may be reduced by the forfeited contributions,
but there was no such reduction of the Group’s contributions during
the year. Total contributions made by the Group for the year amounted
to $21 million (P.E. 12/2011: $10 million) and forfeited sums credited to
reserves amounted to $1 million (P.E. 12/2011: $0.4 million).

A master trust Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) is operated by an independent service provider. Mandatory
contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at 5%
of the employees’ monthly relevant income, up to a limit of $25,000.
The Group’s contributions will be fully and immediately vested in the
employees’ accounts as their accrued benefits in the scheme. Total
MPF contributions made by the Group for the year amounted to $4
million (P.E. 12/2011: $2 million).

As the Group’s provident fund scheme is an MPF Exempted
Occupational Retirement Scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”), eligibility
for membership of the ORSO and MPF schemes is identical. New
employees are offered a one-off option to join either the ORSO or the
MPF scheme.

Staff in the Company’s subsidiaries operating in mainland China are
members of a retirement benefits scheme (the “Mainland RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government in mainland China. The
only obligation of the subsidiaries in mainland China is to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to Mainland RB Scheme to fund
the retirement benefits. The local municipal government in mainland
China undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of subsidiaries in mainland China.
Total contributions made by subsidiaries in mainland China for the year
amounted to $24 million (P.E. 12/2011: $10 million).
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(b) BROHERER
RARAAIRZEEF+—A=Z+ZHFFEK
MR EI(TER ) ERZ=Z
——FW A+ N\ BRAFRDHETE
([#&tE8l] - EREFEFRBA (5181 1%&
FLARRIE - IRIBERTE - TEE—FRE
IR (7 BAHE - BRI 2 E IR T B &
b A EASEEAR T RK AN RIER - BRIE
B AR H &AL 1 A B R T E 2 T A IR
DERGSEER N - FrTEBeHEBER
HEMNBHBTtFAEREBERNER
EHBAFER -

AEEESARR A AEREA TR HR
mEE - BBXERMESANKEMRER
Bl BERERHEEEBEARR] ZBE
AR LIRS ARBERRMAERE=E
AT - BB REBEAEENEBRE S
AEB 2 RKERIIEFRIELE S -

RETE - ARREER(EERER
BAZLREAL(BEAKEREAKER
AZBTIRER)ROBMDHE  EAE
SRABBIRR LRI - MAKRBEZR/RXE
ZENEERETRABRF - BipHETE
EHEZRNRAKETE - XMARSBN
H{E RNELBRAZEHERNREERT
AAEERAZFHRME=ZEFP &S
B - AR 2 B M BN 2 5R0R
BEH - TEAREDHEARERDZ
HEHEF RN LR TUERE

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on November 22,
2002 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated upon the adoption of a new
share option scheme on April 18, 2012 (the “New Scheme”, together
with the Old Scheme are referred to as the “Schemes”). No further
options shall be offered under the Old Scheme, but in all other respects
the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
and all options granted prior to such termination and not exercised at
the date of termination shall remain valid. The New Scheme remains in
force for a period of 10 years commencing on its adoption date and
expiring on the tenth anniversary thereof.

The purposes of the Schemes are to enable the Company to grant options
1o selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group, to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize
them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the
future development and expansion of the Group by providing them with
the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company.

Under the Schemes, the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company is authorized to grant options to selected participants,
including employees and directors of any company in the Group,
subject to the terms and conditions such as performance targets as
the Board may specify on a case-by-case basis or generally. The
exercise price of the options is determined by the Board at the time of
grant, and shall be the highest of the nominal value of the shares, the
closing price of the shares at the date of grant and the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. The period open for acceptance of the option and
amount payable thereon, the vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option are determined by
the Board at the time of grant.
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

The movements of share options during the year are as follows:

&7 B B
Number of share options
&
—H—H
AR TEE
Outstanding on K% Outstanding on
Esdut =Pt January 1, B BT DiE8H  Forfeited/  December 31, which options
Date granted 2012 Granted  Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2012 are exercisable (HK$)
—ZEEMFERA=-1H 7,431,625 - (1,171,000 (830,000) - 5430625 —TTZRFRA-T+HE 9.20
May 20, 2004 —E—NFERATNAB
May 20, 2005 to
May 19, 2014
—EERFNA—H 500,000 - - (5600,000) - - —ETRFNA—AZE 12.35
September 1, 2005 —T—RFENA=+—8H
September 1, 2006
to August 31, 2015
TE 10,534,000 - (1,564,000) (4,200,000) - 4,770,000 —ZTZLHF+—HFFMUHE 16.75-2255
Z2-ETHE=A+NH o Y R AN=
November 14, 2006 to November 14, 2007
March 19, 2007 to March 18, 2017
+tENAZ+—H 59,908,000 - (1,041,000) (13,650,000) (921,000 44,296,000 —TTN\FN\A=+—H 17.36-27.90
TNF+=A 2F-\F+ZA=+H
=+—H August 21, 2008 to
August 21, 2007 to December 30, 2018
December 31, 2008
T ZF-ANRE 21,450,000 - (20,0000  (7,450,000)  (200,000) 13,780,000 —E-—H£-HAN\HZE 2646-27.27
—E-TFA—H ZECTFRA=1+—H
February 8, 2010 to February 8, 2012 to
June 1, 2010 May 31, 2020
—E-TFELA=1+NH 46,650,000 - - (6,000,000) (2,260,000) 38,390,000 —T——FtA=+NH 3079-36.90
E-T——FA+=AH E-T-—FXA+=AH
July 29, 2010 to July 29, 2012 to
June 13, 2011 June 12, 2021
—T——F+=AtA 1,350,000 - - - - 1,350,000 —T—=F+_A+HZE 2410
December 7, 2011 - —F+=ZARH
December 7, 2013 to
December 6, 2021
425t Total 147,823,625 - (3,796,000) (32,630,000) (3,381,000 108,016,625

LA RO B AT R BB — =
TEREE  YARREBH+FERSR
RITTE » L&A HARE R 5 R
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after which they will lapse.
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

In respect of share options granted to the directors and ex-directors,
the related charge recognized for the year ended December 31, 2012,
estimated in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy in note
2(v)(2) was as follows:

(1)

Mr. Ronnie C. Chan, $28.0 million (P.E. 12/2011: $18.3 million);

Mr. Philip N.L. Chen, $36.2 million (P.E. 12/2011: $19.2 million);

Mr. H.C. Ho, $13.8 million (P.E. 12/2011: $7.1 million);

Mr. William P.Y. Ko, $18.4 million up to his resignation as director
on December 12, 2012 (P.E. 12/2011: $11.3 million);

Mr. Henry T.Y. Yiu, $13.6 million up to his resignation as director
on December 11, 2012 (P.E. 12/2011: $7.4 million); and

Mr. Nelson W.L. Yuen, $16.8 million (P.E. 12/2011: $12.1 million).
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

i

=

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

Bz-%--% BE-2——%
+T=ZHA=+—HLEFE +=A=+—HB1~@EA
Year ended December 31, 2012 Six months ended December 31, 2011

g hniE
FHITEE EHITEE
()
Weighted
average
exercise price
(HKS)

(B%)
Weighted
average
exercise price

(HKS)

Number of
options

Number of
options

WN—A—B/tA—8 Outstanding at January 1/July 1 24.34 147,823,625 24.28 149,445,500
B ARAET T

[k s:qun] Granted - - 24.10 1,350,000

B1T7E Exercised 12.92 (3,796,000) 16.58 (955,875)

[ Cancelled 23.16 (32,630,000) - -

238U/ B Rk Forfeited/Lapsed 27.61 (3,381,000) 23.53 (2,016,000)

R+-—A=+—H Outstanding at December 31 24.89 108,016,625 24.34 147,823,625
AT

Rt+-—A=+—H Exercisable at December 31 21.06 40,141,525 19.60 42,042,225
Al FIT{E

4 PR 45 PR B

RE/MARESENEBERRRIESHEL
BRATERD R - RFREBTEZR
0 BB R BT T8 B B 2 B RO M0 F
BHEHER=—TNA\TABA= -

RERTE BN RETEESE B 2 NE
FHRES T NA\TNAA -

() PAGEE B BRI 2 IR 1D B2 10
EFORBAOEEANLE (2T
——F LB -
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No share options were granted during the year.

No share options were exercised by the directors in the period of their
employment as directors of the Company during the year/period. The
weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the
dates of exercise by the employees during the year was $28.53.

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise for share
options during the year was $28.81.

(i) The weighted average remaining contractual life of options

outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 6.4 years
(2011: 7.3 years).

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



29 BEALRS
FRECRPHHRREMBNOBEELIRS
RAEgRIN - /BN AREREREER
BEPRIATEEALRS ¢

@ ARRz—RZEMBAAMERLE
ZYETERES]  RAREZH
BRRNEIABSIEAEARIRE - NZ
E——F+ - A=+—BZFEAE—
FHNEETL(ZE—F : —FWmA
B e

b)) ESZRTEZEEBREMSERMIE6R
28(b) # 5= ©

30 BEEREREEEZERBER

ME - RBEL FEREERBRKER
SECEERK - AREEATKEEE
HEZBREIDEANEEZFRR

(@ FI=RER

AEBZ M XRERKERITERNEEE
E - AEETIERNERES  UERE
MEBHERER (WER) AFRITRE
BRREEE 1IN NREERL—ER
HEIE M KR 58I AE RN R -

ARUMBEERBBZMERKE14 -
15~ 18 ] 21 T LA R -

R (T AR T R B B 7 M
DT WFERBERERTE - DB
RRFERERZNREM—AEER
18 0 07 3 2 B S
W—EET—a&8T( T8 =/
57 -

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the transactions and balances already disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group entered into the following related party
transactions during the year/period in its ordinary course of business:

(@) A fellow subsidiary of the Company contributed funds as capital
investment to a subsidiary of the Company for the development
of Plaza 66, a property in Shanghai. The amount outstanding at
December 31, 2012 was $14 million (2011: $14 million).

(b) Emoluments to directors and key management has been
disclosed in notes 6 and 28(b).

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

Exposure to interest rate, liquidity, credit and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group has policies and
practices approved by management as described below in managing
these risks.

(@) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from deposits with
banks and borrowings issued at floating rates. Interest rate trend
and movements are closely monitored and, if appropriate, existing
borrowings will be replaced with new bank facilities when favorable
pricing opportunities arise. In addition, the Group established the
Programme which provides fixed interest rate facilities to the Group
and assists the Group to manage its interest rate risk.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities are
disclosed in notes 14, 15, 18 and 21.

Based on the simulations performed at year end in relation to the
Group’s bank deposits and borrowings, it was estimated that the
impact of a 100 basis-point increase in market interest rates from
the rates applicable at the year end date, with all other variables held
constant, would increase the Group’s profit after taxation and total
equity by approximately $142 million (P.E. 12/2011: $3 million).
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30 EIEMREREEERBER @) 30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

oM IR EREE R MET BAER  This analysis is based on a hypothetical situation, as in practice
b WIS RIRDEFRE - ML REY  market interest rates rarely change in isolation, and should not be
BIERIH N K EBIB 2 TR - EHTEE  considered a projection of likely future profits or losses. The analysis

ATEIE assumes the following:
— WHEARE(erE YT AN -  changes in market interest rates affect the interest income and
RITEEZFBWARSTH 0 & interest expenses of floating rate financial instruments and bank

borrowings; and

— FEHEMEBEERBEBEERSTE - —  all other financial assets and liabilities are held constant.
(b) REVEEE (b) Liquidity risk

NEBTEFRERERERARALFREMN  The Group manages its surplus cash centrally and the liquidity risk of
BAozEGHE S RAHESEKR - §E  the Company and its subsidiaries at the corporate level. The objective
MEREREAERAVBZ2HESREBEZRITR s to ensure that an adequate amount of cash and committed bank
g NENERHER 2E K - KEEFE  facilities are available to meet all funding requirements. Significant
BARKBEZBEEERESESSE R  flexibiity is maintained through diverse sources of committed credit
- UNEBRGETER 2 e REIE - lines to respond to unforeseeable opportunities and events.

EHRTRBERE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow

BRMEE —%& R  Between Between HEFLALE

» _ Carrying Within 1and 2 2and 5 Over

o3 7T in HK$ million amount 1 year years years 5 years
HITERREAMEE Bank loans and

other borrowings 29,736 35,401 2,020 2,218 20,664 10,499

TR 13 B33 K LA R £+ 35K Trade and other payables 4,811 4,812 3,557 736 430 89

R=—ZT——-F+=-HA=1+—H AtDecember 31,2012 34,547 40,213 5,577 2,954 21,094 10,588

EHARTBBRERE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow

—EZEMFAN —ERFA

IREE —4% /A  Between Between
o Carrying Within 1and 2 2and 5
TR E in HK$ million amount 1 year years years
BITERREMEE Bank loans and
other borrowings 20,734 22,735 5114 1,263 13,961 2,397
JREASF R AR I L b JE AR Trade and other payables 3,823 3,825 2,702 670 401 52
WZZE——F+=A=+—H AtDecember 31, 2011 24,557 26,560 7,816 1,933 14,362 2,449
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables and
deposits and bonds held with reputable banks and financial institutions.

[t maintains a defined credit policy including stringent credit evaluation on
and payment of a rental deposit from tenants. Proceeds from property
sales are receivable pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. In addition to the payment of rental deposits, tenants
are required to pay monthly rents in respect of leased properties in
advance. Except for sale of properties developed by the Group, it does
not hold any collateral over the receivables. Receivables are regularly
reviewed and closely monitored to minimize any associated credit risk.

The Group does not engage in any derivative transactions. Surplus cash
is placed with reputable banks and financial institutions in accordance
with pre-determined limits based on credit ratings and other factors to
minimize concentration risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set out in
note 26, the Group does not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group or the Company to material credit risk.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying

amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Currency risk

Currency risk arises when recognized assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group’s entities to which they related. The Group maintains certain
bank deposits denominated in United States dollars amounting to
US$143 million (2011: US$149 million) and 10-year bonds amounting
to US$500 million (2011: $Nil). Given that Hong Kong dollars are
pegged to United States dollars, the resulting currency risk on such
deposits is considered insignificant.

The Group also engaged in property development and investments
in mainland China through its local subsidiaries whose net assets
are exposed to currency risk. In addition, the Group holds Renminbi
deposits and bonds to meet its ongoing payment obligations in relation
to its development projects in mainland China which is denominated in
Renminbi. Where appropriate, the Group seeks to minimize its exposure
to currency risk in mainland China through borrowings denominated
in Renminbi.

Management estimated that a 1% appreciation/depreciation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar would not have a material effect
on the Group’s profit after taxation and the Group’s equity attributable
to shareholders would be increased/decreased by $744 million (P.E.
12/2011: $630 million).

The above analysis has been determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

(e) Fair value

The fair values of held-to-maturity instruments, unlisted investments,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, cash and
deposits with banks, bank loans and other borrowings are considered
approximate to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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31 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 28(b) contains information about the assumptions and their risk
relating to fair value of share options granted. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Valuation of investment properties and investment properties
under development

The investment properties and investment properties under
development of the Group were revalued at the end of the reporting
period by independent professionally qualified valuers on a market
value basis. For the completed investment properties, the valuers have
valued such properties with reference to market evidence taking into
account the rental income of the properties. The assumptions adopted
are based on the market conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period, with reference to current market sale prices for similar properties
in the same location and condition and the appropriate capitalization
rate. For the investment properties under development, the valuers
have valued such properties as if they were completed in accordance
with the relevant development plan allowing for any future construction
and other relevant costs required for completion of the development,
and where appropriate, by reference to the comparable market sale

and purchase transactions.

(b)  Properties held for sale

The Group determines the net realizable value of unsold properties
based on estimation of future selling price less costs to be incurred
in relation to the sale, with reference to the prevailing market data and
market survey reports available from independent property valuers.

(c) Impairment of assets

The Group tests regularly whether goodwill and other assets that have
indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined using fair value
less costs to sell or value-in-use calculations as appropriate. These
calculations require the use of estimates.
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31 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(d)  Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business
and judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

(e)  Recognition of deferred tax assets

The amount of the deferred tax assets included in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can
be utilized. The recognition of deferred tax assets requires the Group
to make judgments or based on the assessment of future financial
performance, the amount of future taxable profits and the timing of
when these will be realized.

32 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The ultimate holding company is Hang Lung Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong.
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SRR 2 KRR 33 FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BET——F+-_A=+—RHLFE" The Group has not early applied the following amendments, new
REFWEIZEZHARE B LM AEME  standards or interpretations which have been issued by the HKICPA
ﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁ'ﬂiﬁi’xﬂZ{/ £T - ¥R o 5L but are not et effective for the year ended December 31, 2012. The
RUATEET - ZBIAEXY A& Y A%EE  adoption of the following amendments or standards will not result in
& Jrﬁ%’”t?}(ij(m

substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

R B #sk LA 14
Fgh 2 Gt B AR

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 1(185T4%) MHER R 20 —E—FtA—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial Statements July 1, 2012
HKAS 19(4£E7T) EEREH —E-=F—-H—H

HKAS 19 (Revised)

Employee Benefits

January 1, 2013

HKAS 27 (2011) LAV e —T—=F—A—H
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements January 1, 2013
HKAS 28 /NS DS EE R = WNCI L 2 —T—=%—H—H
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures January 1, 2013
2009-2011 FF HKFRSs & 71| 2 F E it —E—=F—H—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle January 1, 2013

HKFRS 7(£&1&3])
HKFRS 7 (Amended)

TRTA  RE —EESREERSRARE
Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

—E—=%—-A—H
January 1, 2013

HKFRS 10 e MgmE =F—H—H
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements January 1,2013
HKFRS 11 i ek —=%—H—H
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 1, 2013
HKFRS 12 H AR s R —T—=%—A—H
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 1, 2013
HKFRS 13 NEEZER —ZE—=%—H—H
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement January 1, 2013
HKAS 32(4£4£5T) TRTA: 2% — HiFemEERSHEAE —mFE—A—AH

HKAS 32 (Amended)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9

Financial instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

ERTH
Financial Instruments

January 1, 2014

T—hF—H—H
January 1, 2015

34 REMBRE
EERN TG —A=+—AREY
A TR BB -

34 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Board of Directors on January 31, 2013.

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
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35 FEMBLAF 35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
R-E——F+-_A=+—H At December 31, 2012
BERTRA SR
(B¥) SE AT NGIiESS AR
Issued EmADL EEEDL Place of
NG| Share Capital % Held by % Held by E4 Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Antonis Limited* 10,000 100 100 MEHRE b
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP City Limited 2 100 - YERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Joy Limited 2 100 - MEERREE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
AP Properties Limited MEZERRHES B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
[A] % 34 100 -
‘A’ shares
(B & 6 100 -
‘B’ shares
AP Star Limited* 2 100 - PRI A aBE
Investment holding Hong Kong
AP Success Limited 2 100 - MEEE o
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Universal Limited* 2 100 - MHEHE HE
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Win Limited* 1,000,000 100 - MEHE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP World Limited 2 100 100 YEER B
Property development Hong Kong
Bonna Estates Company 1,000,000 100 100 MERE 578
Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
EBOERRAA 4,000,000 100 - MEHRE BB
Caddo Enterprises, Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
Cititop Limited 2 100 - MEZERLAE HE
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
BHERBRDF] R A BE
Country Bond Development Investment holding Hong Kong
Limited
[A] & 990 79.8 -
‘A’ shares
[B] % 1 100 -
‘B’ share
Dokay Limited* 2 100 - MERE BA
Property leasing Hong Kong
BEEEARATR 2 100 - R A BB
Easegood Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Fu Yik Company Limited* 3 100 - LIE SN B
Property leasing Hong Kong
EXBFRAF" 2 100 100 RIS & BB
Gala Ruby Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
Gowily Limited 2 100 - YERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @

R=ZE——F+=-A=+—H

NG|
Company

Grand Centre Limited

Grand Hotel Group Limited

EEBEEEAR AR
Grand Hotel Holdings Limited

[AlR&
‘A’ shares

[B] B

‘B’ shares

Hang Chui Company Limited

Hang Far Company Limited*

BRBR QA
Hang Fine Company Limited

Hang Kwok Company Limited*
B (FTBOBR LR

Hang Lung (Administration)
Limited

B (KE)BRAF

Hang Lung (Dalian) Limited
BiE(OT#)BRAR

Hang Lung (Jiangsu) Limited
B (Em)BRAF]

Hang Lung (Jinan) Limited
B2 (REH)BRAF

Hang Lung (Kunming) Limited
Bl (EE)BRAR

Hang Lung (Liaoning) Limited
Bi& (&) BRAR

Hang Lung (Shenyang) Limited
BE(RR)BRAR

Hang Lung (Tianjin) Limited
Bf2 (#85)BERAF)

Hang Lung (Wuxi) Limited
Hang Lung Park-In Limited

B TRKEGR AR
Hang Lung Project
Management Limited*

EREVEEEEGRAR
Hang Lung Property
Management Limited*

BB
()

Issued

Share Capital

(HK$)

10,200

62,163,123

6,000,000

200

10,000

10,000

10,000

100,000

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
At December 31, 2012

SE AT
EmADL
% Held by
The Group

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

NI
EmBEDL
% Held by
The Company

100

100

ES
Activity

Property leasing
RS E T L RER
Apartment operating

& management
PRI A

Investment holding

Property leasing
ZEREE
Investment holding
MEHEE

Property leasing
Property leasing

EIRRRTS
Management services

ERIRE
Investment holding
ERE
Investment holding
ERTE
Investment holding
ERKE
Investment holding
ERIRE
Investment holding
ERE
Investment holding
ERTE
Investment holding
ERKE
Investment holding
MELE

Property leasing

THREAER
Project management

MEERE

Property management

EEaiifavaA

R S B
Place of
Incorporation
and Operations
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
HE
Hong Kong
HE
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong
HE
Hong Kong
HE
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
HE
Hong Kong
HE
Hong Kong
EHE
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
HE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @
RZE——F+-_A=+—H

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
At December 31, 2012

T SR

) LS AR

Issued EmADL Place of

NG| Share Capital % Held by % Held by Ed Incorporation

Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations

BEMmERIBER AR 2 100 100 MERIR BB

Hang Lung Real Estate Property agencies Hong Kong

Agency Limited*

BEE(RE)BRAR 2 100 100 ERIRE BB

HLP (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong

HLP Finance Limited" 17T 100 100 B RBERRAS

US$1 Financial services British Virgin Islands

Bl ENBEIRBRAR] AR T 100 - 7% BB

HLP Financial Services Limited RMB1 Financial services Hong Kong

HLP Fortune Limited 1 100 100 MR B

Property development Hong Kong

BEEREARAF 2 100 100 B B

HLP Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong

HLP Treasury Services 2 100 - RN E aBH

Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong

Hoi Sang Limited* 2 100 - R E B

Investment holding Hong Kong

SHBRAR" 1,000,002 100 - MR HE

Lockoo Limited* Property development Hong Kong

Magic Modern International 1 100 100 EE 5

Limited* Advertising Hong Kong

Mansita Limited* 2 100 - MELE BE

Property leasing Hong Kong

Modalton Limited 2 100 - YERE B

Property leasing Hong Kong

Monafat Limited* 2 100 - MHEHE BB

Property leasing Hong Kong

Palex Limited* 2 100 - YRS BE

Property leasing Hong Kong

Pocaliton Limited 2 100 - MERE &

Property leasing Hong Kong

Rago Star Limited 2 100 - YERE B

Property leasing Hong Kong

Rioloy Limited 2 100 - LIE SN aBE

Property leasing Hong Kong

Stooket Limited 2 100 100 MEHE HE

Property leasing Hong Kong

Tegraton Limited 2 100 - YRS B

Property leasing Hong Kong

EMEXARAA 100,000 100 - MERE BB

Wai Luen Investment Property leasing Hong Kong
Company, Limited*

Yangli Limited* 2 100 - LIEZIEN- BE

Property leasing Hong Kong
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R=ZE——F+=-A=+—H

REA N B E 3
Wholly Foreign Owned
Enterprises in mainland China

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
At December 31, 2012

&R
Registered Capital

SE AT
EmEDL
% Held by
The Group

R RIFTER
BmAD
% Held by
The Company

S
Activity

EERiliipAva

R S I B
Place of
Incorporation
and Operations

REEEDEFRRA AR¥2,956,877,355 7T 100 - MEER B i

Dalian Hang Lung RMB2,956,877,355 Property development Mainland China
Properties Ltd.

EBRAERMEBR AR 781 4,660,000,000 7T 100 - MEER R A

Kunming Hang Ying HK$4,660,000,000 Property development Mainland China
Properties Ltd.

FEEEEMERRAA AR 5,073,996,324 7T 100 - MEEREAE R IR

Liaoning Hang Lung RMB5,073,996,324 Property development Mainland China
Properties Ltd. & leasing

LR BME M ERR AR 385,000,000 7T 100 - MEERREE IR

Shandong Hang Lung US$385,000,000 Property development Mainland China
Properties Ltd. & leasing

B EEERR AR 349,990,000 7T 100 - MEERLEE Bl A

Shenyang Hang Lung US$349,990,000 Property development Mainland China
Properties Ltd. & leasing

REEEDEFRRF 75 2,420,000,000 7T 100 - MEER R A

Tianjin Hang Lung HK$2,420,000,000 Property development Mainland China
Properties Ltd.

mi5EEMERR A A AR 3,020,746,261 7T 100 - MEZER R R A,

Wuxi Hang Lung RMB3,020,746,261 Property development Mainland China
Properties Ltd.

mGBHEMERRAR 78 509,000,0007T 100 - MEER AR

Wuxi Hang Ying HK$509,000,000 Property development Mainland China

Properties Ltd.

EERilif7 AV

EERIIE= VN NCIliES: K FE i 2

REIRMRING B (%7T) EmBEDL Place of

Equity Joint Venture in Registered Capital % Held by % Held by £ Incorporation

mainland China (US$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations

FEEAFEMEREERARR 167,004,736 82 - MEERLAE HE A

Shanghai Hang Bond Property Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. & leasing

PEEERIEREFR AR 165,000,000 69.3 - MEERIEE HEI A

Shanghai Kong Hui Property Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. & leasing

AN EERERE
© JEREESE G AN EBAER

tEARERGEINBARERIMESEWEZHS N '

P 5

Operated in Hong Kong
Not audited by KPMG

Represents the Group’s attributable interest in the commercial portion of the properties held

either directly or indirectly by the subsidiary

ERIHEERRBREAKE 25N RE
EREATEZTENBARR

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the Group which in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of
the Group.
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36 SE AT 36 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H At December 31, 2012
BETRA SR
(%) SE AT R RIFTER Sa—E ik
Issued EmEDL EEEDL Place of
Share Capital % Held by % Held by E3i Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
BEAEFRAT 5,000,000 36.8 - PRI A BB
Country Link Enterprises Investment holding Hong Kong
Limited
TREERAR AT ZERRE BB
Ease Smart Development Investment holding Hong Kong
Limited
[Al & 1 - _
‘A’ share
(B &% 1 100 -
‘B’ share
ERERERARE" 3 33.3 - MERE BB
Star Play Development Property leasing Hong Kong
Limited*
* ERETH I EBIER * Not audited by KPMG
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THFIMFELE TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BENA=THLFE

For the years ended June 30

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
in HK$ million (Bf=E1)
(unless otherwise stated) (Notet)
ruE Total assets 167,864 150,663 144,682 116300 88614 84,341 69244 60366 53096 47,226
BEYR Investment properties 98,223 93610 85918 80965 62,766 59,085 47,153 39,500 36,032 30,562
HEmE Properties for sale
-BREK - Completed 4813 5127 5058 5055 6923 6774 9501 10,159 10,693 7,005
- FRF ~Under development 1,296 987 905 800 760 43 41 - - 5018
R RARTFHR Ceashand deposits withbanks 36,025 23732 27,202 11535 8931 10578 6,994 5984 3206 1,063
nam Total liabilities 43,886 33645 20,758 18513 13428 15691 13407 16077 11,841 15273
SRITERR Bank loans and
HinfEs other borrowings 20,736 20,734 16,736 6458 4,661 4419 4782 8454 4113 9593
FESE Floating rate notes - - - - 1500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 540
ISR S Shareholders’ equity 117,928 111,462 109,719 93,105 71,894 66,377 54277 43246 40,288 31,019
EEFEEE Net assets (including
FrERHER) non-controlling interests) 123,978 117,018 114,924 97,787 751186 68650 55837 44289 41,255 31953
eSS Turnover 7,372 3069 5164 12057 4173 10080 4389 3657 6,955 4,533
BRRE(RAER Net profit attributable to
shareholders 8395 2516 5792 23561 3985 13,159 6371 4403 6813 4616
EXMA(FIEE2)  Underlying netprofit(Note2) 6178 1,650 2741 6674 238 5123 2048 1,627 2516 2,065
BRE Dividends 3,313 1610 3175 2951 2736 2736 2320 1,900 1,843 1439
FRER Per share data
&7 Earnings
-&EX - Basic $1.88  $056  $1.33  $568 8096  $318  $1.60  $1.19  $1.94  $1.53
- s - Dilited $1.87  $056  $131  $561 $096 $315  $158  $1.18  $192  $152
EAREM(MEE2)  Underlying eamings (Note 2)
-&EX ~Basic $1.38  $037  $063  $1.61  $058  $1.24  $051  $044  $072  $0.69
- % - Diluted $1.37  $037 9062  $159  $057 $123  $0.51  $044  $0.71  $0.68
[:45) Dividends
- ~ Interim 17¢ - 17¢  17¢  15¢  15¢ 13  13¢ 136 ¢
- K ~ Final 57¢ 36¢ 54¢ 54¢ 51¢ 51¢ 43¢ 38¢ a7¢ 33¢
- 2F/H — Total for the year/period 74¢ 36¢ 716 716 666 666 56¢ 51¢ 50¢ 446
B iEas(Mi3E3)  Shareholders’ equity (Note 3) $26.3 $24.9 $245  $224  $173  $160  $131  $116  $109 $9.4
BEFEBIEIE  Netassets (ncluding non-
kRS ) (H:E3)  controlling interests) (Note 3) $27.7 $26.2 $257  $235  $181  $166  $135  $11.9  $11.2 $9.7
aER(MEE) Gearing ratio (Note 4) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 9% 7% 24%
R Pay-out ratio 39% 64% 53% 13% 69% 21% 35% 43% 26% 29%
EXREEE Underlying pay-out
(Hf£2) ratio (Note 2) 54% 97%  113%  44%  114%  53%  109%  116%  70%  64%
ERITRE Number of shares
(BEBR) issued (in million) 4477 4473 4472 4159 4,146 4,145 4143 3732 3683 3,300
B & Notes:

1L RZ2——F+— A EFSRERIEEZHRFE
FHEARNAZTRERAT=A=+—H Bt ' K
SEZHBHRAR T ——FEtA—HAE+-A=1+—

BiEAEA -

2. BRI AREE S ERENIZRE - bt 7 EARLR)
&AM KK B R BB A E R ERTRENE

ZATFEEE R EA R IEMIEHERER

3. RENEH A RN iR/ AEFEREBITRE -

=2
-

4. AEERRFEEAREINFEEZ LR  FEBERRT

ERRAMEE

R EERRBERAAE - NRRE
RARITIE AR o R BB MR R s I SF PR e s

1.

In November 2011, the Board of Directors approved the change of the Group’s financial year
end date from June 30 to December 31. Thus, the Group has a six-month financial period
from July 1 to December 31, 2011.

. To facilitate better understanding of the Group’s operational results, the underlying net profit,

earnings per share and pay-out ratio are presented by excluding the effect of changes in fair
value of investment properties and investment properties under development and their related
deferred tax and non-controlling interests.

. Based on shareholders’ equity/net assets divided by number of shares outstanding at the end

of the reporting period.

. Gearing ratio represents net debt over equity plus net debt. Net debt represents bank

loans and other borrowings, floating rate notes and finance lease obligations, less cash and
deposits with banks. Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests.
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55

PR (2ER)

BRHEB (mErse)”

PRED 4k (ZFmirm)

RIER*

BEEIR AL#HBE 0V 2E£HES  OBE - AF#+*
B8 exmEE  OBE - A F#+*
PeR 4 *

BIRE wgrigs  AFat”
]8R

BEAS

Y osiTEE
* BUHHITEE

DIRECTORS

Ronnie C. Chan (Chairman)
S.S.Yin (Vice Cha/’rman)*

Phi|ip N.L. Chen (Managing Director)
Nelson W.L. Yuen®

Ronald J. Arculli Gawv, cvo, GBS, OBE, JP*
H.K. Cheng GBs, 0BE, JP*

Laura L.Y. Chen*

P.W. Liu sBs, JP*

Dominic C.F. Ho*

H.C. Ho

# Non-Executive Director
* Independent Non-Executive Director

EZEEE

BRESY 2222  OBE - AT+ (/)
PRAENG

B wrengs  xFmt

fa] BR B

AUDIT COMMITTEE

H.K. Cheng GBS, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Laura L.Y. Chen

P.W. Liu sBs, JP

Dominic C.F. Ho

RENEFWNEES

BAE sgni2s ATt (ZE)

EFR ALHBE  OV0 - 2 LHES - OBE - AFHT+
B8 222 OBE - AF#+

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

P.W. Liu sBS, JP (Chairman)
Ronald J. Arculli gBwm, cvo,GBS, OBE, JP
H.K. Cheng GBs, 0BE, JP

FER4as Laura L.Y. Chen

(EIp:) Dominic C.F. Ho

RIERK AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
PSR FE Philip N.L. Chen

ZLIRAR Bella P.L. Chhoa

NAEFE COMPANY SECRETARY

ZLIRAR Bella P.L. Chhoa

g EE REGISTERED OFFICE

B8 IRIBE 8 5
BITIRITRE—+/\#
E3E : 2879 0111
{82 : 2868 6086

28th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building
4 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel : 2879 0111

Fax: 2868 6086

Rk kR
#34F : http://www.hanglung.com
BEHIUE + HLProperties@hanglung.com

INTERNET ADDRESS

Website: http://www.hanglung.com
Email address: HLProperties@hanglung.com

%R AUDITOR
EEFSTMEBRET KPMG
HEDIAD Certified Public Accountants
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ETER LISTING INFORMATION

R=F—=F+=H=+—H At December 31, 2012

4,476,566,045 iz T IR EEEH 1.00 7T 4,476,566,045 shares of HK$1.00 each listed on
EEBBERIMBRAR MG The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

ARt 55 STOCK CODE

BABMERZA Hong Kong Stock Exchange 00101
it Reuters 0101.HK
EAE] Bloomberg 101HK
BFEEEM(KRD) BOARD LOT SIZE (SHARE) 1,000
EHIETES AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPT
E—RRBEEERS) Sponsored Level-1 (Over the Counter)
BEHRBG R, ZIERR CUSIP Number/Ticker Symbol 41043M104/HLPPY
BAEBEHR D 2 LR ADR: Underlying Share Ratio 1:5
FaER1T « AAIEEIRTT Depositary Bank: The Bank of New York Mellon

49k Website: http://www.adrbnymellon.com
REBF K& SHARE REGISTRARS

BRRREBEHZLRERAT Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
BAREFERRER—B/\T=% 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre

AMFALTEME 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Ei Tel: 2862 8555
B8R : Fax: 2865 0990
WE B R4 INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

A A= C.F. Kwan

ESEEz k| Email address: ir@hanglung.com

A & SHARE INFORMATION

f%{& Price &% {E Price

Fe & HEK A EE Fe & HEK A EE

High Low Total Trading Volume High Low Total Trading Volume

B B fetrgr 8 (FAR) B B fetrgr 8 (FAR)

HK$  HK$  Number of Shares ('000) HK$  HK$  Number of Shares ('000)
2012 2011
2 —2F First quarter 30.50 22.15 368,520 | Z—ZF First quarter 38.20 29.50 439,728
% —Z Second quarter 29.95 23.80 384,371 | % =7 Second quarter 36.25 28.90 365,474
% = 2= Third quarter 2840 25.05 341,777 | §=2 Third quarter 32.95 23.25 501,183
V87 Fourth quarter 31.20 2555 407,667 | Z5PUZE Fourth quarter 29.50 20.85 381,616
REB—=HF+ZA=+—HZRE: AB¥30.80T | R=B——F+=-A=+—HZRE: ABHE22107T
Share Price as at December 31, 2012: HK$30.80 | Share Price as at December 31, 2011: HK$22.10
R-B-——H+-A=t+—-HZWE: #B#1,3788F T | R=FE——F+ZA=+—HZmHE: 7B 088.5fF T

Market Capitalization as at December 31, 2012: HK$137.88 billion

Market Capitalization as at December 31, 2011: HK$98.85 billion
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